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COMPANY PROFILE
AR RY

The Group is striving to be a leading global eco-development
solutions provider, which is principally engaged in the
development, investment, operation and management of power
plants and other clean energy projects. As of 31 December
2023, the Group owned 140 solar power plants, 28 wind
power plants, 26 hydro power plants and 1 energy storage
power station with an aggregate grid-connected installed
capacity of approximately 8,577MW, which had total electricity
generation volume of approximately 11,994,209MWh for the
entire 2023. In addition, the Group also held 2 solar power
plants, 1 wind power plant and 2 hydro power plants through its
associates with an aggregate grid-connected installed capacity
of approximately 576MW, which had total electricity generation
volume of approximately 1,787,157MWh. Our power plant
network covers various provinces/autonomous regions including
Yunnan, Hebei, Inner Mongolia, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Guangdong and
Zhejiang, etc. as well as Australia and Vietnam.

Under the rapid growth of the clean energy industry, the
Company has attracted many strong investors, including
BEH (an integrated energy service enterprise of Beijing City),
CMNEG under CMG, China Huarong (one of the four major
asset management companies in China), QCCI| (a state-owned
enterprise) and ORIX Corporation (an international large-scale
group providing integrated financial services).

The Group aims at building the most efficient and advanced
clean energy operation and maintenance platform, and
establishing a green ecosphere by employing a low-carbon and
sustainable development model, so as to bring clean energy into
millions of families.

In the future, the Company will continue to seize the historical
opportunities emerging from the transformational changes in
international energy industry. By adhering to the development
concept of “focusing on main business, national layout, and
worldwide development” and with rapid quality development
as the core, the Company will accelerate the construction of
clean energy industrial ecosystem dominated by green energy,
complemented by multiple energy sources and characterised
by smart collaboration, in order to become a first-class
international clean energy ecological investment operator and
strive to maximise the value of the Company and the interests of
Shareholders.
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Dear Shareholders,

In the past year, we continued to strive and forge ahead, with
value creation as our foundation. We embraced international
and market-oriented concepts, strengthened top-level design,
perfected our corporate governance structure, and reinforced
our institutional mechanisms. We made every effort to
expand our business scale and continuously enhanced our
development efficiency.

We have remained committed to our core business while
achieving significant results in diversified development.
We have successfully expanded from a pure photovoltaic
power generation business to six major business segments,
including wind and photovoltaic power, hydro power, integrated
energy, gas turbines, green hydrogen, and computing.

We have optimised our operations and expanded our layout in
line with the development strategy of “dual-circle, one-centre
and one-focus.” The first 2.38GW wind power base project
of “north-circle” has been implemented, completing the civil
engineering, delivery and installation within four months and
setting a new record for the fastest construction period in the
domestic wind power industry. Both the “Power Transmission
from Jilin to Beijing” and the “Power Transmission from
Inner Mongolia to Beijing” projects have made breakthrough
progress. The “south-circle” focused on building cluster
projects with an increased investment to acquire a controlling
shareholding in Baoshan Energy, securing 952.44MW of hydro
power assets and marking a breakthrough from “zero” in hydro
power projects.

We have been deeply cultivating Beijing market. The controlled
capacity of new energy in Beijing has grown from zero to
exceeding 150MW, with both growth rate and installed
capacity scale leading within the city. We completed the
official online operation of the first phase of the Beijing
Al Public Computing Platform with a computing power of
500P (FP16 dense) in just four months, which has been
highly recognised by the Beijing Municipal Government, BEH,
and other superior units. This marks the beginning of a
new chapter in which “energy + computing” synergistically
promotes the innovative development of Beijing's digital
economy.
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We have focused on key regions such as Australia, deepened
strategic cooperation, and successfully acquired the largest
operational wind farm project in Australia, the Moorabool wind
farm. Our controlled installed capacity abroad has exceeded
2GW, gradually establishing the BJEI brand in the international
market.

We have established a first-class rating system within our
industry. In respect of credit rating, we have successively
obtained international credit ratings including an “A” rating
from Fitch Ratings, a “BBB+" rating from S&P Global Ratings,
and an “AAA” domestic credit rating from Lianhe Credit
Rating, fully opening up the Company's independent financing
channels in both domestic and international public markets.
In respect of ESG rating, we have been awarded an ESG score
from Sustainable Fitch, which is the highest ESG score among
companies in the PRC from Fitch Ratings.

We have innovated our equity financing models, successfully
launched the first public offering of photovoltaic REITs in
China, introducing a total of RMB4 billion in equity investment
from ICBC Financial Asset Investment Co., Ltd.*(TiE&RIE
EXEAIR/AE) and ABC Financial Asset Investment Co.,
Ltd.*(RiREmEEXRERRAT). We also issued RMB2.7
billion of photovoltaic subsidy asset-backed securities
(ABCP and ABS) and US$50 million of convertible bonds,
and completed over US$1 billion of credit financing abroad.
Additionally, we successfully registered RMB5 billion perpetual
medium-term notes and issued three tranches of such bonds
totaling RMB3.5 billion, continuously optimising our capital
structure.
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We have consistently established a professional manager
system and a fully market-oriented model, creating and
forming a system advantage with distinctive features of BJEI.
This has successfully united an excellent team, effectively
energising teams at all levels, with the team's strength
increasing year by year. Each individual has demonstrated
their abilities and value in the Company's development
process, gaining widespread recognition.

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the results
of BJEI for the year ended 31 December 2023:

In 2023, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB5,568 million and net profit of approximately RMB472
million. Total assets amounted to approximately RMB90,036
million with grid-connected installed capacity of 9.2GW.
The aggregate installed capacity of clean energy which
was controlled by the Company and to which the Company
was officially entitled was approximately 18GW. The green
electricity produced throughout the year reached approximately
13,781,366MWh.

ADHERING TO THE MAIN BUSINESS OF WIND
AND PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER, ADVANCING THE
OVERALL LAYOUT OF INDUSTRIAL ECOLOGY,
AND EMBARKING ON NEW STEPS TOWARDS A
DIVERSIFIED GREEN DEVELOPMENT

In alignment with the national “dual carbon” strategy, BJEI
will take roots in the energy sector, strengthen the concept of
green development, and continuously enrich the layout of the
clean energy industry with a profit-oriented approach, to lead
to the emergence of a new high-quality development landscape
for various green energies, including wind and photovoltaic
power, hydro power, hydrogen energy, and integrated energy.
By focusing on the development direction of national
artificial intelligence industry and seizing the opportunities
from the new round of energy structure adjustments and
information technology transformations, we will accelerate
the construction of the Beijing Al Public Computing Platform,
to effectively extend the clean energy industry chain, and
gradually form a new pattern with coordinated development
across six major segments, being wind and photovoltaic power,
hydro power, integrated energy, gas turbines, green hydrogen
and computing.
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The wind and photovoltaic power segment steadily advance
the strategic layout of “dual-circle, one-centre and one-
focus”. For the north-circle, we will carry out two “Green
Power into Beijing” projects in Inner Mongolia and Jilin,
ensuring significant advancements. For the south-circle, we
will prioritise the development in resource-rich and energy-
absorptive regions such as the Yangtze River Delta and the
Pearl River Delta. With the capital at the centre, we will quickly
scale up the development of distributed photovoltaic and
integrated energy projects in the capital, gradually increase
BJEI's installed capacity and influence in the Beijing area,
and create a demonstration presence in Beijing. We will
continue to focus on the overseas markets, accelerate the
projects implementation abroad, and advance the delivery of
acquired projects. We will make a strategic coordination of
energy storage and electricity sales businesses in Australia,
and promote the development and construction of the Wollar
energy storage project and the acquisition of electricity sales
companies. We will complete asset reorganisation in Australia
efficiently to further enhance the Company’s influence and
reputation in Australia. We will plan to establish a company
in Southeast Asian region, gradually expanding the asset
scale, and actively explore new energy markets in Europe,
Canada, New Zealand and other areas, aiming for substantial
breakthroughs.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Build the “energy + computing” main business integrated
development model within the digital computing business
segment. We will develop a medium and long-term
development plan for BJEl's digital computing business, with
a focus on accelerating the layout of computing business in
Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Inner Mongolia and other regions to
bolster the digital foundation for Beijing’s artificial intelligence
industry. We will recruit and train high-level, professional
talents to consistently develop the core strengths of the
computing centres.

Establish a green hydrogen segment, and develop high-quality
projects to secure strategic resources. We will implement top-
level design and establish well-defined tactics to ensure the
initiation of the Xuansteel 500MW hydrogen production from
wind and photovoltaic power demonstration project in the
first half of the year, and simultaneously promote the Duolun
County 500MW integrated hydrogen-ammonia production
from wind and photovoltaic power project, the Dengkou
County 500MW integrated hydrogen production from wind
and photovoltaic power project, the Tongliao 2,380MW green
hydrogen production from wind power and waste power project
and the Daqing comprehensive utilisation demonstration base
project for hydrogen energy, to explore industry models with a
user-first approach, contributing to a significant growth pole
for the sustainable development of BJEI.

Strengthen the development of integrated energy projects
of natural gas heating, cooling and power to achieve scale
effects. We will take the Yangxi project as a pilot to set a
standard for gas turbine engineering to prepare a talent
pool for future projects. We will deploy projects in southern
areas with stable gas supplies and significant thermal
loads to engage potential thermal users in advance. We will
steadily promote the merger, acquisition and construction of
the Jiangmen project in Guangdong, actively engage in the
preliminary work for the Rongchang High-tech Zone project
in Chongqging, and continuously enhance and improve the
regional integrated energy business, thereby constructing a
gas turbine business segment with the integrated energy.
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Speed up the development of a new integrated energy
segment, advance the implementation of energy storage,
charging piles and other projects, and improve the ability of
smart operation and maintenance services. We will dedicate
resources to completing a set of high-quality integrated
energy projects, thereby boosting the brand influence of BJEI.
We will thoroughly investigate the viability of charging piles
resource development and supporting services in the capital
and certain economically advanced areas. We will efficiently
operate two provincial energy storage demonstration projects,
400MWh in Rongcheng, Shandong, and 200MWh in Baise,
Guangxi, and actively explore innovative models for energy
storage’s participation in grid auxiliary services and spot
trading as an independent market entity. We will evaluate
the investment returns for shared energy storage projects
in various regions, such as Tianjin, Yunnan, Zhejiang, Inner
Mongolia and Guangdong in advance, gradually develop
energy storage system integration business, and investigate
the feasibility of investing in superior companies along the
energy storage industry chain, to make new advances for
the comprehensive development of integrated and intelligent
energy business.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN
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Closely follow national policies and actively strive for the
rights to develop large river basin hydro power projects. By
virtue of Baoshan Energy, we will expand and improve the
hydro power asset segment. We will keep a close eye on the
latest policy updates from the state, focus on the Xizang
hydro power basin for the development of clean energy
base in southeast Xizang, stay updated on the hydro power
development in the Nujiang River basin, and actively work to
secure the lead in developing the Yansangshu hydro power
plant and Guangpo hydro power plant in Longling County,
ensuring robust progress in the preliminary work.

PERSISTING IN ADVANCING THE CONSTRUCTION
OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SYSTEM

AND GOVERNANCE CAPABILITIES, EFFECTIVELY
ENHANCING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Deepen the reform of organisational structure to support the
new requirements of diversified development. In line with the
characteristics of the development stages of the six major
sectors, the Company will dynamically advance the reform and
innovation of its organisational structure from a matrix to a
more multi-dimensional form through models such as regional
management distribution, line management concentration,
and differentiated management authorisation, continuously
optimising the differentiated authorisation management
system to improve the operational efficiency of the
organisations. The Group will select pilot units to promote the
further innovation in the system and mechanism exploration,
ensuring comprehensive authorisation and charting a path for
the joint progress of both specialised and regional companies,
thereby solidifying the implementation of our reforms.
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Strengthen management improvement and continuously
consolidate the basic management system. Persistently
engaging in value creation initiatives that benchmark
against the world's first-class companies, and aligning
with the three-year enhancement target plan of “one profit
and five rates”, the Company will conduct comprehensive
and in-depth benchmarking with leading international and
domestic enterprises within the industry to keep improving
the quality of capital returns and the “value” of our results
of operations; manage benchmarking within existing power
plant areas, optimise our indicator system, and strive for
continuous improvement in regional rankings; create new
project operation and maintenance models through innovation,
research the construction of a market-oriented operation
and maintenance platform, and integrate operation and
maintenance with electricity marketing and sales and digital
transformation to enhance the cultivation of professional
operation and maintenance talents, so as to improve
operation and maintenance efficiency consistently.

Enhance compliance management and deepen the
construction of supervision system to safeguard the high-
quality development of the enterprise. The Company aims to
build an all-in-one horizontal and interconnected supervision
system. The Company will focus on the preliminary stages
of major matters such as decision making of investment,
mergers and acquisitions, construction of engineering
projects, signing of contracts, etc., fully implementing the
five-in-one interconnected work mode; further optimise the
development of an intelligent supervision system to make
risks more visible and manageable; ensure that supervision is
moved forward to achieve an organic unity of pre-, during-, and
post-event supervision; reduce the communication costs of
supervising business lines, and form a comprehensive, cross-
checking risk management supervision mechanism to reduce
the risk of corruption.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN
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Adhere to the positioning of the "Cost Reduction and
Efficiency Enhancement Year", comprehensively tighten
cost control, and tap into the potential for cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement. The Company will strengthen
the management of expenses in preliminary stages and
the cost control of engineering construction; maximise the
operational capabilities of our power plants and reduce
operation and maintenance costs to further enhance the
profitability of the power plants; strictly control management
expenses, strengthen budget control, and reduce unnecessary
expenditures; reduce financial expenses, strengthen
the planning of fund usage, coordinate comprehensive
budgeting, fund management, tax planning to further uncover
opportunities for lower funding costs; intensify efforts to
reduce procurement costs, enforce strict management of EPC
contracts and try to decrease engineering costs.

ADHERING TO A MULTI-FACETED APPROACH TO
ATTRACT STRATEGIC INVESTORS, GOING ALL OUT
TO REDUCE DEBTS, OPTIMISING THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL INDICATORS TO ENSURE SUSTAINABLE
AND HEALTHY DEVELOPMENT

The Group will implement equity capital through multiple
channels by actively promoting the issuance of additional
shares to attract strategic investors; continuously advancing
the issuance and expansion of REITs to increase equity
financing on a rolling basis; completing the issuance of
the remaining amount of the perpetual medium-term notes,
promoting the registration and approval of the subsequent
perpetual medium-term notes and issuing such bonds in
phases as appropriate; advancing the issuance of REITs
products and actively exploring other equity financing products
such as private perpetual bonds and private REITs; and
ensuring that the Company's domestic and foreign ratings are
maintained at a sound level of investment grade.
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The Group will enhance its ability to respond to overseas
market volatility risks and continuously strengthen financial
management. It will ensure the efficient and safe operation
of the capital chain by making dynamic predictions of
capital needs, planning the balance of domestic and foreign
funds and exploring the construction of a cross-border fund
pool; enhance the robustness of the Company's financial
performance by optimising overseas financial control and
conducting in-depth research on financial derivatives to hedge
the risks of exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations;
and actively connect with domestic and foreign financial
institutions to vigorously develop direct financing, so as to
resolutely ensure the Company's development capital needs.

The Group will strengthen its market value management
by optimising investor relations and enhancing investor
confidence. It will think from the perspective of Shareholders
and strengthen the deep link with each Shareholder to
rebuild the confidence of Shareholders; tell stories from
the perspective of individual investors, allowing the capital
market to see the stable growth curve of BJEI from profits
to scale and making more investors to truly understand and
comprehend the Company.
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ADHERING TO THE CORPORATE CULTURE OF
INNOVATION, BUILDING A CONSENSUS ON
DEVELOPMENT, ALLOWING EMPLOYEES TO FULLY
ENJOY THE DIVIDENDS OF DEVELOPMENT AND
GROW TOGETHER WITH THE COMPANY

The Group will fully unleash the vitality of the market-oriented
talent selection and employment mechanism. By continuously
optimising the innovative and efficient human resource
management model, continuously creating a market-based
employment environment and providing competitive salaries,
the Group will continuously optimise its compensation
incentive system to fully leverage the advantages of the
system and mechanism and stimulate the potential of
employees, aiming to cultivate a group of management talents
with entrepreneurial spirit, expert technical talents with market
competitiveness and pioneering talents with international
vision.

BJEI has been continuously exploring, innovating, establishing
and passing down its corporate culture. Throughout its
development, the Company has been committed to integrating
industries, talents, and wisdom and gradually formed excellent
cultural genes such as responsible, enterprising, innovative,
inclusive, valuing talents, pragmatic and efficient as well
as diversified and compatible. These cultural genes are the
steadfast forces for the Company's future inheritance and will
propel the development of BJEl's business to achieve new
breakthroughs continuously.

As the years change and new chapters unfold, looking to
the future, the great changes not seen in a century have
entered a period of accelerated evolution. With a new round
of technological revolution and industrial transformation
developing in depth, the electric revolution, market revolution,
digital revolution and green revolution in the energy industry
are on the rise. BJEI strives to accurately identify changes,
scientifically respond to changes and actively seek changes,
hoping to cultivate new opportunities in crises and open up
new situations in changes.
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Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my sincere gratitude to you for your long-term support to
BJEI. BJEI will give full play to its advantages of “energy +
computing”, actively adopt advanced technologies, formulate
reasonable policies, tap into potential industries, and jointly
promote the development of digital transformation of new
energy through international cooperation, aiming to achieve a
cleaner, more efficient and sustainable energy future!

Zhang Ping
Chairman

28 March 2024
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2023 HIGHLIGHTS
20234 K9H5d

® JANUARY —H ® February —_H8
Winning the “2022 Outstanding Contribution to The IAT BIPV distributed photovoltaic
Environment Award” of the First “Future ¢ ESG” Awards project in Yizhuang, Beijing, commenced
of KPMG grid-connected power generation
HKESEERR KK « ESGIAEANT 2022F EIRIE 16 R 7R EE Bl B BIPV A R T A TE
BHRAEE BHtHEEE

The 21.36MW distributed photovoltaic project (Phase I)
in Xundian, Yunnan, commenced grid-connected power
generation successfully

Ems8—{21.36K RO M NAREE R HEES

i © Ho2

A meeting to promote Tongliao 2,380MW large base wind power project was
organised and convened

EBARBEE2380KRARMABREHEES

The first carbon-neutral, green, renewable ABS backed by the receivables of
state subsidy on the market was successfully issued

R TH 31T T 45 B B Bk P A A% € B] 48 3% AU B /R FE RABS

The distributed photovoltaic project of Jingtou Building in Chaoyang, Beijing,
commenced grid-connected power generation

IRHABRRAED BN AREHEEE
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2023 HIGHLIGHTS
20234 Kgid

@ Mach=H

The first photovoltaic infrastructure public offering REITs in the PRC was approved

B rhEE B e RERR M AEREITs

The distributed photovoltaic projects of Qianhai Bonded Logistics Park (Phase Il) and
Shekou Garden City in Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, commenced grid-
connected power generation with full capacity

BERAmELUEFsFERYAEE _H BOTEERS AN CREELETEHREE

The distributed photovoltaic project of Donghu Comprehensive Bonded Zone Industrial
Park (Phase I) in Wuhan, Hubei, commenced grid-connected power generation

ALK ER B RERREERE - A M CREEHEEE

Receiving a “AAA” domestic credit rating from Lianhe Credit Rating

ERSHBEEER THIAAMIRRERTR

The first photovoltaic public offering REITs in the PRC was successfully issued and listed

B INEE 1T E BN E B R AEREITs

The Xuansteel distributed photovoltaic project in Xuanhua District, Zhangjiakou, Hebei,
commenced grid-connected power generation

AERKOECREMOHIAARBEHAELE

® April @A
Increasing capital in and obtaining control over Baoshan Energy

MEERRLER BSIER#

The Dougezhuang distributed photovoltaic project in Changping, Beijing, commenced grid-
connected power generation

IREFESHDHANARNREHBPEESE
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2023 HIGHLIGHTS
20234 K Hid

O

o

The Ningxu 90MW photovoltaic
project in Wulian County,
Rizhao, Shandong, commenced
gricdconnected power generation

IR HARABEHEMLIONK TR

A new breakthrough in operation and management was achieved,
and the ESG entity with the highest published score in the PRC was
awarded by Sustainable Fitch

KEEENSHRK EEEE

ERTHEIERNDHRSESGER

RAREBEEHAES

The Tianhu conference centre distributed photovoltaic project in

Fangshan, Beijing, commenced grid-connected power generation

IRELURSAE

FRODHIVERIBE HEEE

Winning the “Best ESG Company
Award” at the "8th Zhitong Financial
Capital Market Annual Conference and
Listed Company Award Ceremony"

ETEN\ESEVREATIEEZE
R AT EREAIE | 5 TREESG
NE)EE |

The Weichai Torch rooftop distributed
photovoltaic project in Shifeng District,
Zhuzhou, Hunan, commenced grid-
connected power generation

HMEENA EERENERBED AR
FRIBEHEEE

The issuance of the carbon-neutral, green,
renewable ABS backed by the receivables of state
subsidy was successfully renewed

X Dh A8 &5 Fik H AN 4% 5 0] 48 &5 B B 45 FE URABS

Beijing Al Public Computing Platform was officially
launched

BRATEEAHENFAENEM

The Pengjian distributed photovoltaic project in
Penglai District, Yantai, Shandong, commenced grid-
connected power generation

WEREGZEREZZSMANREBEEHBPEE

The distributed photovoltaic project
in Huairou Science City, Beijing,
commenced grid-connected power
generation

ﬁ?&%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ

Entering a new era of development in
Australia by acquiring the assets of
Lightsource BP

U BELightsource BPEE » 118N 75
RE AFPEER

Awarded the title of “ESG Pioneer Practitioner” by
Securities Daily

B S5 HRETIESGREBRITE IR

The lJingcang distributed photovoltaic project in
Dongguang County, Cangzhou, Hebei, commenced
grid-connected power generation

AIEMRABRFEDMIVCAERHBEEE
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® August /\H

RMB5 billion perpetual medium-
term notes was successfully
registered

R INEE A R BE50/2 TT YK 8
RHARE

November +—H8 [

2023 HIGHLIGHTS

September 1B

The first tranche of perpetual medium-
term notes was successfully issued

PR INE AT EH KBTI RE

October + H

20234 K Hid

The first international
green certificate deal was
completed

TN EEEREER S

The third tranche of
perpetual medium-term
notes was successfully

issued
B IO &% 47 55 = #h ok 48 AP
iz

The second tranche of perpetual medium-term
notes was smoothly issued

IEF 21755 —HAKETHAR

The 100MW photovoltaic project in Yungang
District, Datong, Shanxi, commenced grid-
connected power generation

LA RFE B EL100JK RICRIEE HAEHE

The Pico distributed photovoltaic project in
Jiading District, Shanghai, commenced grid-
connected power generation

LEREEERNHANRBEEHERE

The Suqu 100MW agricultural-photovoltaic
complementary demonstration project in
Tanmen Town, Qionghai, Hainan, commenced
grid-connected power generation

ERIEEEPIEHFEI00K LR B E1E
BHREEE
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GREEN ENERGY
#% L HE T

_ promoting low-carbon clean energy and
2sponding to global climate change
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tricity generation volume for
is approximately
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HE R RN B2 i

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 56, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company on 21 February
2020. He is also the chairman of each of the nomination
committee, the risk control committee and the sustainability
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang served as the assistant to
the general manager, the secretary to the board of directors and
group office director of BEH, which is a controlling shareholder
of the Company; the deputy director of the party-masses
work department, the director of the general manager work
department, the assistant to the general manager, the secretary
of the discipline inspection committee and the chairman of the
labour union of Inner Mongolia Daihai Electric Power Generation
Co., Ltd.* (R H 1S /BEEBREEAF); the manager of the
comprehensive management department and the vice president
of Beijing Jingneng International Power Co., Ltd.* (5 5 R FE B (&
BERGID B BR/AE]); the secretary of the party committee and
the general manager of Inner Mongolia Daihai Electric Power
Generation Co., Ltd.* (REXEHSBELZEERSTAT); the
general manager of Beijing Jingneng Thermal Power Co., Ltd.*
(ERZREERBRINDBIRAT); the deputy chairman of board
of directors, the secretary of the party general branch and the
general manager of Beijing Jingneng Power Co., Ltd.* QLI R
BEEB IR BIR/AT), the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600578); the executive
director and the general manager of Beijing Jingneng Coal-
fired Power Asset Management Co., Ltd.* QbR RAEEWEEE
BIEFRAT); the chairman of board of directors and general
manager of Beijing Jingneng International Power Co., Ltd.* (1t
RAEEEBERAR D ABR/A ) ; and the non-executive director of
Datang International Power Generation Co., Ltd., the shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 991) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
601991). Mr. Zhang has over 30 years of extensive experience
in business management and the energy industry. Mr. Zhang
obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from
Fudan University and a doctorate degree in management from
North China Electric Power University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lu Zhenwei, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 10 June 2013 and is a member
of the risk control committee of the Company. Mr. Lu is also a
director and the chairman of the board of directors of each of
China Merchants New Energy Group Limited* (B # i REE
ABBR/AF]) and China Merchants Technology Holdings Company
Limited* (B BRIEEBEBRAE]), the general manager of
China Merchants Innovation Investment Management Limited*
BHREeIMKREEIERREMEAR), the general manager of
Shenzhen China Merchants Yinke Investment Management Ltd.*
(RN HEERREAKEEEBRAT), and the director of
NEX. Mr. Lu previously served as a director of Beijing Huahuan
Electronics Co., Ltd.* Gt REREFRMABFRAE) and China
KZ High Technology Co., Ltd.* (FEIRHBEEMEBRAE).
From May 2003 to May 2008, Mr. Lu served as a director of
Shenzhen GuoHua Network Security Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
YIEERZ R R AERAT), the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000004). Mr. Lu
possesses profound understanding and unique insights in
project financing and business operation and has more than
decades of extensive experience in financial management,
business management and project investment. Mr. Lu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime
University and a master's degree in finance from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TS NS Pl )

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Guoxi, aged 57, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 June 2023. He is also a member
of the audit committee of the Company, and also serves as
the secretary of the party committee of the Company. Mr. Liu
worked in the general office of Beijing Municipal Government
from 2004 to 2016 and served as, among others, the deputy
director of the conference division, the deputy director and the
director of the information division as well as the director of the
fifth division of the secretariat of the general office of Beijing
Municipal Government successively. In 2016, Mr. Liu joined
BEH, a controlling shareholder of the Company, and served as
the deputy secretary of the party committee of institution, the
deputy director of the group office and the director of the office
of the party committee of BEH successively, and then joined
the Company in 2021. Mr. Liu graduated from Xi'an Institute of
Politics with a major in legal profession and obtained a master’s
degree in civil and commercial law from China University of
Political Science and Law. He has extensive legal knowledge and
experience in government work and corporate management.

Mr. Su Yongjian, aged 50, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 25 February 2022. He is also
a member of each of the remuneration committee, the risk
control committee and the sustainability committee of the
Company. Mr. Su also serves as the head of energy investment
department of BEH, which is a controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Su served as the secretary of the party committee
and the executive director of Jingneng Dongfeng (Shiyan) Energy
Development Co., Ltd.* (REEERMA (+1E) e RERERAR);
the executive director of Jingneng Shiyan Thermal Power Co.,
Ltd.* (REETIEBHEBRAF); the deputy general manager,
the general manager, the secretary of the party committee
and the chairman of the board of directors of Ningxia Jingneng
Ningdong Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (EERAEREE
BREEATE); and the deputy general manager of Inner
Mongolia Huaning Thermal Power Co., Ltd.* (N5 G ZEEME
APBR/AE]). Mr. Su has considerable technical expertise in the
electric power industry and extensive experience in operational
management. He has received many awards including the 2020
China Advanced Entrepreneur, the 2021 Science and Technology
Innovation Leader, as well as the Model Worker and the Quality
Contribution Award of Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region. Mr. Su
is a professorate senior engineer, and received a master’s
degree in electrical engineering from North China Electric Power
University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Hao, aged 42, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 20 March 2017, and is a member of the
risk control committee of the Company. Mr. Li is concurrently
the executive officer (responsible for Greater China Group) and
general manager of Greater China Group at ORIX Corporation, a
diversified financial services company, whose shares are listed
on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (securities code: 8591) and on
the New York Stock Exchange (trading symbol: IX). Mr. Li has
been with ORIX Corporation since October 2007. He is also a
director and the president of both ORIX Asia Capital Limited and
ORIX (China) Investment Corporation* (BX 1=+ (F[E) EEER
‘A3]), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of ORIX Corporation.
Mr. Li has been serving as a non-executive director and the
vice chairman of the board of directors of Shoucheng Holdings
Limited, since 27 September 2018 and 15 February 2022,
respectively, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 697). He served as a non-executive director of
Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd., whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2255). Mr. Li graduated
from the Graduate School of Finance, Accounting and Law at
Waseda University in Japan with a master’s degree in business
administration in finance. He has more than 16 years of
experience in the fields of investment banking and finance.

Mr. Lu Xiaoyu, aged 54, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 November 2022. Mr. Lu currently
also serves as a member of the party committee and the
deputy general manager of Qingdao Chengtou New Energy
Group Co., Ltd.* (EBWMEHMEREEBRLXE), which is a
subsidiary of the Company’s substantial shareholder, QCCI.
Mr. Lu joined the QCCI group in June 2012 and worked in its
capital operation department, financial management department
and strategic investment department successively. He has
extensive experience in financial management. Mr. Lu obtained
a bachelor's degree in economics from Central University of
Finance and Economics and a master’'s degree in engineering
from Ocean University of China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Jin Xinbin, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 31 December 2020. She
is also a member of each of the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the sustainability committee of the
Company. Ms. Jin served as the general manager of Huaneng
Energy & Communications Holding Co., Ltd.* (ZESEAEIRACHE
EXIERAR/AT); the chairman of the board of directors,
general manager and deputy general manager of China Huaneng
International Economic Trading Company* (50 B %E At B[R 4K
B 5AT)); the general manager of Hebei branch of China
Huaneng Group Co., Ltd.* (REIZEFEEBEARAT) ; the deputy
general manager of Huaneng Raw Materials Company* GEAE
FEMEIAT]); the vice president of Hebei Product Enterprise
(Group) Company* GRIlE¥ETZ (£8) AF). Ms. Jin also
served as an external director of BEH, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, from March 2015 to March 2019.
Ms. Jin has extensive experience in management and the
energy industry. Ms. Jin is a professor-level senior engineer. She
obtained a bachelor's degree in metallurgical machinery and
equipment from Northeastern University and a master’'s degree
in economics from Hebei University.
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Ms. Li Hongwei, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 June 2021. She
is also the chairlady of each of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Li currently also
serves as an independent director of China High Speed Railway
Technology Co., Ltd.* GEINBEIZMEBBRAE]D), the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000008) and an independent director of People.cn Co.,
Ltd.* (AR#ARMEFRAT), the shares of which are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603000). Ms. Li
served as the chief financial officer at deputy general manager
level of Beijing MTR Corporation Limited* (It R RE A IR
‘A|]); the deputy general manager and general manager of
finance and accounting department, a general manager and
the chief financial officer (financial controller) of the securities
clearing department of Beijing Securities Co., Ltd.* (At &
A#ABFEEE/AT); a supervisor of China Asset Management
Co., Ltd.* CEEEEEIEBRAFE); a member of financial
accounting committee of securities industry of Securities
Association of China (SAC); the manager of the taxation
department of Beijing Xinghua Certified Public Accountants;
the chief financial officer at deputy general manager level of
Beijing Heguang International Jewelry Co., Ltd.* (35 &A% R
kEABBR/AT); and a consultant of MTR Technical Consultancy
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* GBEE1irs4:8 GE=) BRAE). Ms. Li
is a senior accountant, certified public accountant of China
and certified tax agent of China, with extensive experience
in financial management and accounting industry. Ms. Li
successively studied political economics in School of Economics
at Beijing College of Economics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics, and studied industrial economics in
School of Business of Renmin University of China and obtained
a doctorate degree in economics.
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Mr. Zhu Jianbiao, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 June 2021, and is
the member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu currently also serves
as a vice chairman of the board of directors, an executive
director and the chief executive officer of Shandong Hi-Speed
Holdings Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 412), an executive director of
Shandong Hi-Speed New Energy Group Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1250) and
an independent non-executive director of IPE Group Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 929). Mr. Zhu served as the chief operating officer and
a member of each of the investment decision committee and
the investment management committee of CITIC Private Equity
Funds Management Co., Ltd.* (REEXKEESEEF/RAL
T)); the executive deputy general manager and the chairman
of the investment decision committee of Changsheng Fund
Management Co., Ltd.* (EERESEIEAEMRAST); the chief
inspector and the director of the research and development
department of Golden Eagle Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (&
EESEEFMRAT). He was also a lecturer of faculty of
investment and finance of Guangdong University of Finance
and Economics. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in private
equity investment, secondary market investment and financial
management. Mr. Zhu graduated from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in planning and statistics with a
bachelor’s degree in economics, and holds a master's degree
and a doctorate degree in finance from Jinan University.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 56, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer on 18 September 2020. He is also the president of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Zhu joined the Group in March 2020. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Zhu served as the manager of equipment maintenance
department, an assistant general manager and the secretary
of party branch of Shanxi Zhangshan Electric Power Co., Ltd.*
(LWAEELEEBREEAE) (“Shanxi Zhangshan EP”)
successively from April 2003 to December 2004; the chief
engineer and the deputy general manager of Shanxi Zhangshan
EP successively from December 2004 to March 2009; the
deputy general manager of Guodian Power Dalian Zhuanghe
Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (BB E T ABHF NEEERET
‘A7) from March 2009 to March 2010; the secretary of the
party committee, an executive director and the general manager
of Beijing Jingfeng Gas Fired Power Co., Ltd. * Qb RR LT
*EAMRSEAT) and an executive director and the general
manager of Beijing Jingfeng Thermal Power Co., Ltd.* (Jt TR
EHEFRSEAT) successively from March 2010 to June
2018; the deputy general manager of Beijing Jingneng Clean
Energy Co., Limited* (bR RAEFZERBENRMNBRLRED)
(“Jingneng Clean Energy”), the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 579) from
June 2018 to February 2020, and an executive director of
Jingneng Clean Energy from June 2019 to May 2020. Mr. Zhu
has extensive experience in the energy industry. Mr. Zhu is a
senior engineer in power engineering technology. He graduated
from Electric Power Division of Faculty of Power of Taiyuan
University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in power plant
thermal power and received a master’'s degree in engineering
from School of Power and Mechanical Engineering of Wuhan
University in industrial engineering.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Huang Hui, aged 51, was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company on 21 February 2020. He is also
the vice president of the Group and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Huang served as an executive
director of the Company; the deputy head of management
division of finance department and the head of price control
division of Inner Mongolia Power; the deputy manager of finance
department of Beijing Jingneng International Power Co., Ltd.*
(IERREBERERRKRHDABRAT); the chief accountant
and secretary to the board of directors of Beijing Jingneng
Power Co., Ltd.* QbR REENRMBERLE), the shares
of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600578); the chief accountant of Beijing Jingneng Clean
Energy Co., Limited* (AR RAEBEZEBRBEIRMDERA
Tl), the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 579), the chief accountant of its
Beijing branch and a supervisor; a deputy department head of
financial management department of BEH, which is an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company; a director and deputy
general manager of Beijing Energy Investment, which is a
direct controlling shareholder of the Company; and a director
of BEH Finance. Mr. Huang has extensive experience in finance
and management. Mr. Huang graduated from the Department
of Finance of Inner Mongolia University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor’'s degree in economics majored in
monetary banking, and received a master’s degree in business
administration from North China Electric Power University.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Diversification of Investment Locations and Portfolios

During the Year, the Group, striving to be a leading global eco-
development solutions provider, was principally engaged in the
development, investment, operation and management of power
plants and other clean energy projects.

Power Plant Projects

The Group has accelerated the pace of scale expansion
development of clean energy by actively expanding the
management scale of the solar power, wind power and hydro
power businesses through self-development and mergers and
acquisitions, as well as continuously improving the management
of its clean energy power business. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had 140 (2022: 105) solar power plants, 28 (2022:
20) wind power plants, 26 (2022: Nil) hydro power plants and
1 (2022: Nil) energy storage power station with aggregate grid-
connected installed capacity of approximately 8,577MW (2022:
approximately 5,603MW). As at 31 December 2023, except for
1 and 2 wind power plants which were located in Vietnam and
Australia respectively, the rest of the power plants of the Group
were in the PRC. The Group has well-diversified its power plants
in 26 (2022: 23) different provinces in the PRC during the Year.
In addition, as at 31 December 2023, the Group also held 2
(2022: 2) solar power plants, 1 (2022: 1) wind power plant and
2 (2022: Nil) hydro power plants through its associates with a
total grid-connected installed capacity of approximately 576MW
(2022: approximately 224MW).

The Group strategically develops, constructs and acquires power
plants to achieve predetermined minimal rate of return and
selects its power plants based on a combination of factors,
including solar irradiation, wind velocity of the site, water
resources conditions, applicable FITs, government subsidies,
conditions for local grid connection, electricity transmission
infrastructure and demand for electricity, etc.

Other Clean Energy Projects

The Group owned development rights in hydro power with an
expected capacity of approximately 5GW. The Company indirectly
holds 75% of the equity interest in the project companies while
the remaining 25% is indirectly held by the People’s Government
of Xizang Autonomous Region. The Group is waiting for the
planning of the PRC government’s ecological red line before the
construction of any hydro power plants.

In the short run, the Group will continue to focus on the
development of solar power, wind power, hydro power and energy
storage businesses, while diversifying its clean energy portfolios
in order to supplement the multi-type energy supply in the long
run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Electricity Generation

During the Year, the total electricity volume generated by the
power plants held by the subsidiaries of the Company has
significantly increased from approximately 7,141,204MWh
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
11,994,209MWh, or by approximately 68%. All these power
plants are grid-connected and are generating electricity steadily.

Table 1: Summary of Power Plants

BE

EAKEF“ XABDHKWBABMBSAE 2 &8
BHNEREEHBE S -_"_F+=H4
=+—HLIEFEELT,141,204 K B B K 1S 18
INZE4911,994,209K B B i“maa #68% - Fi B
ZEREWHEHBAT —BIETEE-

1 BEUHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-ALEE

2023 2022
Z%Z= .
Grid- Weighted Grid- Weighted
connected  Electricity average connected Electricity average
Number of installed  generation utilisation ~ Number of installed  generation utilisation
power plants capacity volume hours  power plants capacity volume hours
BEN  HPAER T I fHARR MEFHT
#B AE ¥g8 AR HE| BE B2 MANE
(Mw) (MWh) (Hours) (Mw) (MWh) (Hours)
(kE) (REH) (INBS) (kR (REES) (1B
Subsidiaries WBAF
Solar power plants ARSI 140 6,053 6,960,575 1,413 105 4,842 5,974,007 1,353
Wind power plants Bh%E 28 1472 2,603,386 2,769 20 761 1,167,177 2,560
Hydro power plants ot KB Bk ” 26 952 2,430,248 2,552 - S S -
Energy storage power station  fAE Big “e)
(Note (2) 1 100 - N/AFER - - - -
195 8,577 11,994,209 125 5603 7,141,204
Associates BENT
Solar power plants ABEEE 2 24 31,430 1,420 2 24 31,858 1,339
Wind power plant Bh%EH 1 200 746,097 2,132 1 200 55,520 N/ATEA
Hydro power plants KNEE 2 352 1,009,630 2,872 = = = =
5 576 1,787,157 3 224 87,378
200 9,153 13,781,366 128 5827 7,228,582
Notes: B 5E
(1) Since the electricity volume generated by the newly acquired hydro (1) HRIFWEBKHESENXETEEEHKIE

power plants was only recorded starting from their respective
completion dates of acquisition, and the period was less than
twelve months, the weighted average utilisation hours were not
comparable and therefore not applicable.

(2) Since the energy storage power station was connected to the grid
by the end of the Year, the electricity volume was nearly zero and
the weighted average utilisation hour was not available.

The details of the electricity volume generated from each
province for the Year are set out below. For accounting purpose,
the volume of electricity generated by the newly acquired or
constructed power plants during the Year was only recorded
starting from their respective completion dates of acquisition or
construction, as the case may be.

BB 2 5, AP SR 32 5 > AR R E) - — (8
B » B E 0 P 45 ) AR /NBS TR B BT LG 14 - R
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Table 2: Information of Power Plants by Settlement Types

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B e L B

&2 HEEHEEENREEIEL

As at 31 December 2023 Year ended 31 December 2023
RZE_Z£+ZA=+-H HECSZ-H+ZR=1-HLEE
Grid-
Number of Number of Number of Number of connected Electricity Average tariff
solar power wind power  hydro power energy storage installed generation per kWh
plants plants plants  power station capacity volume Revenue  (net c:é Y}'l-“)
i)
b BN *h 13 BI9EE
BENHE  BEUHE  BEUEA BUHE HARKAS BEE WA (ReHEER)
(MW) (MWh)  (RMB'million) (RMB)
Settlement types (AR
EHEn Locations fig CkR) (KEE) BEn)  (\RER)
1. Power plants held by the subsidiaries of the Company
FRAMBARFENEEY
(i) Total capacity on-grid”
RELREY
Yunnan, China 10 26 - 1,294 2,522,916 571 0.23
Hebei, China 16 - - - 1,293 1,797,029 607 0.34
Inner Mongolia, China 2 - - - 805 1,288,440 767 0.59
Shanxi, China B 8 - - 673 1,478,756 722 0.49
Xinjiang, China 6 4 - - 519 780,169 366 0.47
Shandong, China 9 - - - 469 375,139 176 0.47
Guangdong, China 5 - - - 430 198,592 151 0.76
Anhui, China 3 - - - 340 443352 256 0.58
Shaanxi, China 1 - - - 300 465,887 315 0.68
Qinghai, China 4 1 - - 240 361,586 286 0.79
Ningxia, China 2 - - - 220 323,296 246 0.76
Jiangsu, China - 2 - - 200 218,149 83 0.38
Liaoning, China? 2 - - - 200 - - -
Guangxi, China 2 - 1 179 84,063 69 0.82
Heilongjiang, China - 7 - - 145 172,632 56 0.32
Xizang, China 7 - - - 135 158,987 131 0.82
Hunan, China 2 - - - 120 116,744 98 0.84
Gansu, China 1 - - - 100 142,843 119 0.83
Hubei, China 1 - - - 100 113,246 98 0.87
Hainan,China 1 - - - 100 9,491 4 0.40
Henan, China 3 3 - - 74 128,800 4 0.34
Zhejiang, China 2 - - - 61 69,489 57 0.82
Jiangxi, China 1 - - - 60 74,137 34 0.46
Sichuan, China 2 - - - 50 83,264 56 0.67
Jilin, China 1 - - - 15 20,588 14 0.66
Australia - 2 - - 312 390,012 125 0.32
Vietnam - 1 - - 46 101,772 68 0.67
Sub-total NG 110 28 26 1 8480 11,919,379 5,519 0.46
(ii) Surplus capacity on-grid”/
e gy
China (no partition) FEEA
FotE) 30 - - - 97 74,830 49 0.6
Subtotal Vg 30 - - - 97 74,830 49 0.6
Total fit 140 28 26 1 8577 11,994,209 5,568 0.46
Il. Power plants held by the associates of the Company
FARMEARRANEEL
Shanxi, China - 1 - - 200 353,324 153 0.43
Jiangsu, China 2 - - - 24 31,430 67 212
Yunnan, China - - 2 - 352 1,009,630 235 0.23
Australia - - - - - 392,773 178 0.45
Total At 2 1 2 - 5716 1,787,157 633 0.35
Grand Total s 142 29 28 1 9153 13,781,366 6,201 0.45
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Notes:

(1) The total capacity on-grid mode refers to the settlement of all
electricity volume generated by a power plant with the grid; while
the surplus capacity on-grid mode means that a portion of the
electricity volume generated by a power plant is sold directly to the
end-users and the surplus electricity is settled with the grid.

(2) Since these power plants were newly acquired in December 2023,
there was neither electricity generation recorded nor revenue
consolidated during the Year.

Financing

The power generation business is capital intensive in nature.
The Group has been exploring various financing channels
to enhance its financing capability and reduce its finance
costs. As at 31 December 2023, the effective interest rate
per annum for bank and other borrowings was approximately
3.92% (2022: approximately 4.18%). The slight decrease in
the effective interest rate per annum is mainly attributable to
the arrangement that the Group has completed refinancing
the high-interest borrowings with low-interest borrowings in
RMB. Although the scale of the RMB financing continues to
expand, the new financing remains at a low-interest level, which
comprehensively leads to a decrease in the effective interest
rate.

Pursuant to the trust contract (the “Trust Contract”) entered into
between BEIED and China Industrial International Trust Limited*
(MEBEEELBRAT) (“China Industrial International
Trust”) in March 2023, the issuance of the ABCP on National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors to the
qualified investors in the PRC has been successfully completed
of a total size of approximately RMB1,000 million. Upon the
delivery of the underlying assets by BEIED in accordance with
the Trust Contract, China Industrial International Trust has
transferred the proceeds from the issue of the ABCP to BEIED.
The issuance of ABCP diversifies the Group’s fund-raising
channels to access the low-cost capital, which in turn can be
applied to improve the financing structure and to reduce the
balance of trade receivables of the Group. Further details are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 10 March
2023 and the circular of the Company dated 28 April 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In March 2023, a publicly-offered infrastructure securities
investment fund, which is the first publicly-offered infrastructure
securities investment fund in the photovoltaic power sector
in the PRC registered under the name of AVIC lJingneng
Photovoltaics Closed-end Infrastructure Securities Investment
Fund* (FHARAENXANAXNERREESKLEES) (Fund
Code: 508096) (“AVIC REITs”) was successfully listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and has raised a total subscription of
approximately RMB2,934.6 million. The listing of the AVIC REITs
can benefit the Group from obtaining funds for its operations,
reducing its net borrowings, improving its liquidity and
gearing position and providing capital to fund new investment
opportunities. Further details are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 8 April 2022, 6 July 2022, 12 August
2022, 30 December 2022 and 13 March 2023 and the circular
of the Company dated 3 October 2022.

In May 2023, BEIED successfully launched the asset-backed
securities program (the “ABS Program”) on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Pursuant to which, the ABS would be issued under
the ABS Program in the size of approximately RMB700 million
with the transfer of the underlying assets by BEIED to China
Merchants Securities Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (A&
EEEEARAE) (“CMAM”) in accordance with the asset sale
and purchase agreement entered into between BEIED, as the
vendor and original interest owner, and CMAM, as the purchaser
and project manager of the ABS Program. The issuance of the
ABS under the ABS Program can diversify the Group’s fund-
raising channels to access low-cost capital, which in turn can
be applied to improve the financing structure of the Group and
promote its operating activities and investments. It also allows
the Group to meet liquidity development needs and therefore
increase capital use efficiency and enhance operational
capabilities for the Group. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 November 2022 and
the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i L B

On 27 July 2023, the Company successfully registered the
perpetual medium-term notes in the aggregate amount of not
more than RMB5,000 million (the “MTN”) with the National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors in the
PRC. Pursuant to which, the MTN would be issued in multiple
tranches as and when appropriate within 2 years from 27 July
2023. During the Year, the issues of the first, second and
third tranches of the MTN of issue sizes of RMB1,000 million,
RMB1,500 million and RMB1,000 million at fixed distribution
rates of 3.68% per annum, 3.77% per annum and 3.65% per
annum have been completed on 20 September 2023, 20
October 2023 and 16 November 2023, respectively. The issues
of the MTN could further diversify the funding channels of the
Company for facilitating the future business expansion of the
Company. Further details are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 21 September 2023, 24 October 2023 and
17 November 2023, respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a net profit of approximately
RMB472 million (2022: approximately RMB472 million). The net
profit during the Year was approximately the same with the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Revenue and EBITDA

During the Year, the revenue and EBITDA were approximately
RMB5,568 million and RMB4,559 million, respectively
(2022: approximately RMB4,115 million and RMB3,465
million, respectively). The increase in revenue and EBITDA
of the Group was attributable to (i) the expansion in grid-
connected installed capacity from approximately 5,603MW to
approximately 8,577MW or around 53.1% by way of acquisition
and self-development of projects; (ii) effective operation and
management of power plants; and (iii) recognition of interest
income on deposits for investments during the Year.

The average tariff per kWh (net of VAT) for the Year was
approximately RMB0.46 (2022: approximately RMBO0.58).
The decrease in the average tariff per kWh (net of VAT) of the
Company was mainly attributable to the continuous increase
in the grid-connected installed capacity of the grid-parity solar
power and hydro power generation projects of the Group, and
the proportion of the electricity generation volume of these
projects in the total electricity generation volume has increased
substantially. Since the electricity price of the grid-parity solar
power and hydro power generation projects does not include
subsidies, a downward trend in the overall average tariff per
kWh (net of VAT) is resulted. Table 2 summarises the details of
the breakdown of revenue generated by settlement types and
locations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs

The total finance costs increased from approximately RMB1,514
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB1,997
million during the Year, or a rise of approximately 31.9%. It was
mainly attributable to the commencement of self-development
of power plants in a large scale and the gradual transition into
operations of these power plants, which leads to an increase in
financing needs and overall finance costs.

Income Tax Expense

During the Year, the Group’s operations in the PRC are subject
to the corporate income tax of the PRC (the “PRC Corporate
Income Tax”). The statutory PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
is 25%. Certain subsidiaries of renewable energy projects are
entitled to preferential tax concession. Income tax on profits
assessable outside the PRC has been provided at rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions (2022: Same).

Impairment Charge on Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the management of the Company (the
“Management”) performed impairment assessment on
property, plant and equipment with an impairment indicator
as at 31 December 2023 and had reflected the latest market
conditions and other relevant parameters in the assessment.
The Group engaged an external independent valuer to assess
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment. As
a result of the impairment assessment, the Group recognised
an impairment charge on property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB163 million (2022: Nil) for the Year. There
was no substantial change in the operating conditions for
the other remaining power plants of the Group and there was
no impairment indication for the remaining power plants as
compared to 2022 and therefore, no further impairment test
was required for the Year.

Impairment Charge on Financial Assets

The Management performed impairment assessment and
recognised an impairment charge on other receivables and
deposits of approximately RMB1 million for the Year (2022:
impairment charge on tariff adjustment receivables of
approximately RMB25 million).

B e S oy B

b2 pY s
MRENAEBEE_E_—_F+-_H=+—
BIEEEMNNARKL 14 B T MERE
ENAR®EL,997TEE T BIEA31.9% &
EHRAREREBRBIAMZE B I E
TEAEES ERREERMNEREMENAN
10 o

FRiSIFAX

RAFERE > B BB ES BEA T E
TEMIR (TMPEEZEPFFSR) - PEIEBERR
BREEMER25% A BLEEREENE
THEADZEEBERERE EF'I%?HC
RMNENHFAEREZRBREEEZEENE
MERFRER (CE"F 1 8R) -

ME--BERRENREXH

RAFEE  ARAEEE (MEEE)) #HHIKZ
T ZF+ZR=+—BHEREIHRNY
F BB RREET T REN G LR ET
RERT RFEHATHER R REMBER2H &
EEEZEIIBBUGEMTEYE -BER
REHYPIUR[EE8E - RFCRERT L > AEER
AEEEBYE BMERKRFEBREI LA
R¥1635ET (CTTZ2F | §) - ZEEWN
Hither TR BUENEER TR T " F11
Ebir S E REF) > BER T 3 B b I &R E B
KRRt AFEEBRETE- T RENR -

THEENRESH
EEECHMEMBWIREBERZEETRET
L UTHAFERIAEIHNARBLIES
T(CEICF EEREEUGRERES S
MARIE2588TT) °

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLatRETRBRER A TR 2 R

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =% — = 4E4EH)

39



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i L B

Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment Receivables FEURERIE « ZiE K BB G EUWERIE

The trade and bills receivables are usually settled within one to EWEBEERZEEBEN —Z2 B RNEF -
six months. For the tariff adjustment receivables representing BB RLEUWERIE (BN A R A B£8R 2 B
government subsidies on renewable energy will be settled in  #H85) #1288 S A B B 58 R 0 BRI BA B ER A9 &=
accordance with prevailing government policies and prevalent E{JTFE4EE

payment pattern of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.

Table 3: Breakdown of Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment 3 EWHRTE « 215 R BB/ AL B K AR B BF
Receivables “
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
ZZZ=F+ZH=+—-H ZZZZF+ZA=1+-H
Grid- Grid-
connected connected
installed installed
capacity capacity
v GigEE
AE RE
(MW)  RMB’million (MW)  RMB'million
AR AR

(KR BET kR) BET

Trade and bills receivables EUEIRIE R Z15 294 352
Tariff adjustment receivables EERMENIRE
PRC H
Tariff Subsidy Project List EEHIEREE 3,190 7,159 3,037 7,060
Others (Note) Hth (B8 5,387 766 2,566 909
Total st 8,577 8,219 5,603 8,321

Note: Including power plants which have not been enlisted in the Hfzf: BIEHAKRWIIABEBMEIBE BENEEY
Tariff Subsidy Project List and other power plants which are not REMAEZEFELREE Lo
entitled to subsidies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The problem of increasing amount of outstanding renewable
energy subsidies affects the future development of the
renewable energy industry in the PRC. In order to address
this issue, in March 2022, the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Ministry of Finance and the National
Energy Administration issued a joint notice on a national self-
examination of the renewable energy projects, focusing on the
compliance, scale of installed capacity, volume of electricity
generated, FITs, renewable energy subsidies and environmental
protection, so as to ascertain the latest factual situation of
the outstanding amount of the renewable energy subsidies
and to be able to cancel the renewable energy subsidies
for non-compliant renewable energy projects. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, a solar power plant of the
Group located in Inner Mongolia was alleged for certain non-
compliance issues and the local authorities demanded for a
compensation of approximately RMB216 million. Despite the
Management considering that the allegation is invalid and
without reasonable grounds, the Management agreed to return
the required subsidy in order to maintain the Group's operating
in Inner Mongolia. Therefore, a provision of the return of the
subsidy of approximately RMB181 million (2022: approximately
RMB35 million) and a write-off of tariff adjustment receivable of
approximately RMB110 million have been provided during the
Year. During the Year, there was no significant update on the
national self-examination of the renewable energy projects.

During the Year, the Group received tariff adjustment subsidies
of about RMB1,352 million. The Group expected that new
development on the national policy on the outstanding amount
of the renewable energy subsidies will be announced, and this
development is expected to reduce the outstanding situation of
subsidies to be received by the Group.

PR R L7 B

RS ERAEANCERNPIBEES 25
FEABEERITENRRER i HiE@E
B BRERNAEZEY PHEBKRER
EREN _ S __F=-BHMe%Hm—1EEH
B4 REE2EBEIENEN UG
HUE - ERASERE - LEE - LPBEE-T
BEERAULARIEREAZMR KMEE
ABREERBWIEXNSENRNMBERIBE R
BUERESAERIBEEREENTBLE
EEREL -REBEE—_E-_—_F+-B=+—
HBEEE AEE—EUR RS &K
BRI WIERTEEE T AEAREE M
BEACERESHENARIK21688 T o
EREEEERAEHERENAIREEK
B EEEBEREBEREMERNEM  UEH
FAERRATHNEE -FHIt > "EFEEHR
REBHBEEBEHEOARKISIEE T (T2
FIHOANREISEET) MiftEEBERHAGEU
IRBYARKI1108B T RNAEE  IBS
EREEZEBEI(FUESEABREM-

RAFE ZEBERNEBHENARE
1,32 Bt - AEERHAMERRK T M
B BERERMUAERSEIBERBERR
MER BHRCLEERTEMRAEERB AR
HRIER

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLatRETRBRER A TR 2 R

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =% — = 4E4EH)

41



42

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i L B

Bank and Other Borrowings

The Group is actively seeking opportunities of financing/
refinancing to lower the cost of funds and to improve liquidity.

As at 31 December 2023, the maturity and currency profile of
the Group’s bank and other borrowings are set out as follows:

Within

1 year 2nd year

—FR BoE
RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million

AEBEBER ARKEER

IR1T R ELfthfE 7R

FEBEREBBISRUE BREMBUR
BEERARIEZET RN -

RIZBZ=ZF+"RF=+—0>&~&ER]T
REMERNVEHEREEESEHINT

Over
3-5 years 6-10 years 10 years Total
ZELE NEHE +E# Mgt
RMB’ million  RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million ~ RMB’ million

AEWEER ARBEBER AR%EERT ARWEER

RMB ARE 14,871 11,413 13,840 10,136 2,559 52,819
US$ ey 4,807 - 3,534 - - 8,341
HK$ B 140 = = = = 140
AUD BT 9 532 = = S 1,473
20,759 11,945 17,374 10,136 2,559 62,773
Less; Unamortised loan 18 : R BBETREER
facilities fees (14) (10) (23) (19) 1) (67)
Carrying amount REE 20,745 11,935 17,351 10,117 2,558 62,706
Key Performance Indicators FERIRIEE

The Group measures the delivery of its strategies and manages
its business through regular measurements of several key
performance indicators, particularly on the following ratios:
EBITDA margin ratio, debt to EBITDA ratio, funds from operations
to net debt ratio and interest coverage ratio. The changes in the
key performance indicators for the Year were mainly attributable
to the expansion of the Group’s business scale.

EBITDA Margin Ratio: EBITDA margin ratio is a measurement of
the Group’s operating profitability and is calculated as EBITDA
divided by the revenue. The Group’s EBITDA margin ratio has
decreased by approximately 2% from approximately 84% for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 82% for
the Year. This was mainly due to additional operating expenses
caused by business expansion during the Year.

AEBBBATCHFEE TEIERTEE B
ZEBITDAF = (B HEBITDALL X ~ E4E IR
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EEMNEBITDAF EEHREE S "+
B=+—HIEEENN84A% N EAI2%ZE A FE
ER#82%  tlbTh T ERN A FEEHIERE

HERIMVEERM

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %  —4E4EH



Debt to EBITDA Ratio: Debt to EBITDA ratio is a measurement
of the number of years that will take the Group to repay its
debts assuming net debts and EBITDA are held constant. This
ratio is calculated as the net debts divided by EBITDA. Net
debts are calculated as total borrowings less cash deposits.
Total borrowings include current and non-current bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The ratio has increased during
the Year to approximately 12.3 (2022: approximately 10.3).

Funds from Operations to Net Debt Ratio: Funds from operations
to net debt ratio is a measurement of the Group’s ability to
pay its debts using its operating income alone. This ratio is
calculated as the EBITDA net of cash interest paid divided by net
debts. The ratio has decreased from approximately 5.8% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 4.8% for the
Year.

Interest Coverage Ratio: Interest coverage ratio measures the
Group’s ability to pay interest on its interest-bearing debt. The
ratio is calculated as EBITDA divided by net interest paid (actual
interest paid minus actual interest income received during the
Year). The ratio was approximately 2.49 for the Year (2022:
approximately 2.49).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PR R L7 B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i L B

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, GEARING
RATIO AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded current assets
of approximately RMB17,718 million and current liabilities of
approximately RMB28,397 million.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of
lowering cost of funds. Therefore, funding for all its operations
have been centrally reviewed and monitored at the Group’s level.
To manage the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates
on each power plant project, appropriate funding policies will be
applied including the use of bank and other borrowings, issue
of convertible bonds, issue of senior notes, medium-term notes
and corporate bonds or issue of new shares. The Management
will continue its efforts in obtaining the most privileged rates
and favourable terms to the Group for its financing.

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by total
capital. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position plus net debts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The capital structure (including its gearing ratio) of the Group as

at 31 December 2023 was as follows:

PR R L7 B

FERR T _=ZF+"RA=+—HHESX
RiE (BREEREGRELER) 0T :

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—E-= =
+—-A=+—H +ZB=+—H
RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBBEET ARBEET

Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 62,706 43,790
Convertible bonds AR ES 343 355
Total borrowings and convertible bonds fE 48 %8 K o A RS &5 63,049 44,145
Less: Cash deposits B IREER (6,806) (8,023)
Net debts FE 56,243 36,122
Total equity T ARER 17,063 10,183
Total capital BEARMEEE 73,306 46,305
Gearing ratio BEAREEIEE 76.7% 78.0%

Except for the US$50 million convertible bonds and certain bank
and other borrowings with aggregate amounts of approximately
RMB22,681 million which were carried at fixed rates, the
remaining borrowings of the Group bore floating interest rates.

During the Year, the decrease in gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to the increase in equity as a result of the issues
of the MTN. The Group will use its best endeavour to lower its
gearing ratio in the future by deleveraging its liabilities, including
but not limited to co-investing in power plants with strategic
business partners to reduce the capital expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i L B

As at 31 December 2023, the cash deposits of the Group were R _ZE-=HF+_"_HB=+—H > &x&£EERS

denominated in the following currencies: FERATHEESTHE !
Pledged Restricted Cash and
deposits cash  bank balances Total
Iﬂﬁ&
BIEREN ZRHRE RITEER st

RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARKEERT AREEER ARBEER ARKEER

RMB AR 619 6 4,979 5,604
HK$ B = 7 59 66
Us$ ESTy = = 923 923
GBP g - - 1 1
AUD BT = = 146 146
VND HEE = = 66 66
619 13 6,174 6,806

Representing: UTFREERS
Non-current portion JERNHR 150 = = 150
Current portion AnER 469 13 6,174 6,656
619 13 6,174 6,806

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitment R _Z _=F+_A=+—H x&EE#EH
in respect of property, plant and equipment amounted to FEREY ¥ HMERZHENEREKEH AR

approximately RMB8,985 million. 8,985E &t e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year,

the Group had the following material

acquisitions and disposals:

(a)

On 20 December 2022, MNS Wind Finance Pty Ltd (the
“Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the sale and purchase agreements with
Goldwind International Moorabool Limited and Goldwind
International Moorabool South Limited (the “Vendors”)
to acquire 25% of the issued share capital in each of
Moorabool Wind Farm (Holding) Pty Ltd and Moorabool
South Wind Farm (Holding) Pty Ltd (the “Target Companies”)
for a consideration of approximately AUD85 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB403 million). On the
same date, the Purchaser entered into the call option
deeds with the respective Vendors, pursuant to which the
respective Vendors irrevocably grants to the Purchaser (or
any other person nominated by the Purchaser) an option
(the “Call Options”) to purchase, and require the respective
Vendors to sell, additional 26% of the issued share capital
in each of the Target Companies. After the transaction of
acquiring 25% of the issued share capital of the Target
Companies was completed in January 2023, the exercise
of the Call Options and the acquisition of the additional
26% of the issued share capital of the Target Companies
were approved by the Shareholders at the SGM of the
Company held on 27 June 2023. The acquisitions of the
additional 26% of the issued share capital of the Target
Companies for a consideration of approximately AUD95
million (equivalent to approximately RMB462 million) were
completed in July 2023. Details of the acquisitions are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 20
December 2022 and 27 April 2023, as well as the circular
of the Company dated 9 June 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i L B

(b)

On 4 March 2023, Beijing Yunbao Energy Development Co.,
Ltd.* (ERE/REERFAZEAFRASE) (“BYED”), which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company established in the
PRC with limited liability, entered into the capital increase
agreement with Baoshan Energy and other independent
third parties, pursuant to which BYED conditionally agreed
to inject RMB885 million into Baoshan Energy by way of
cash contribution for approximately 65.7% of the enlarged
equity interest in Baoshan Energy (the “Capital Increase”).
Upon the completion of the Capital Increase in May 2023,
Baoshan Energy becomes a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and the Company has in turn acquired
the control of the 26 hydro power plants of Baoshan
Energy with grid-connected installed capacity of hydro
power reached 952MW. Further details are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 March 2023 and
21 April 2023.

On 27 September 2023, BEIED entered into the equity
transfer agreement with Xinjiang Xinfengyu New Energy
Development Co., Ltd.* (WEBZEIENERREAR
‘AF]) (“Xinjiang Xinfengyu”), pursuant to which BEIED
conditionally agreed to purchase and the Xinjiang Xinfengyu
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Beitun City Fengyu Wind Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (Jb
DHiEE REERIZARAST) (“Beitun City Fengyu”), for
a consideration of approximately RMB199 million. Beitun
City Fengyu is a company established in the PRC with
limited liability and principally engaged in the operation,
maintenance and management of a wind power plant with
grid-connected installed capacity of 49.5MW in the PRC.
Upon the completion of the acquisition in October 2023,
Beitun City Fengyu becomes an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Further details are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 27 September
2023.

(c)
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(d) On 27 December 2023, BEIED entered into conditional
equity transfer agreements with Tianjin Renhui New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.* (KZ{EMEREIEAERARE) for
the acquisitions of the entire equity interests in Daqing
City Shengbu Electric Power Co., Ltd.* (KEHRLE
BBR/AT) (“Daging Shengbu”) and Tianjin Huitong New
Energy Co., Ltd.* (RZEEBHIEBRBRLE) (“Tianjin
Huitong”) for considerations of approximately RMB101
million and RMB84 million, respectively. Daqging Shengbu
and Tianjin Huitong are companies established with limited
liability in the PRC and each is principally engaged in the
operation, maintenance and management of a wind power
plant with grid-connected installed capacity of 2Z00MW. The
acquisitions were completed in December 2023 and both
Daging Shengbu and Tianjin Huitong become indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Further details
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
December 2023.

(e) During the Year, the Group had also completed acquisitions
of certain subsidiaries in the PRC with aggregate grid-
connected installed capacity of 270MW. None of them is
individually material to the Group.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any other
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the Year.

PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE PROSPECTS FOR
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant
investment. The Group will keep abreast of the changing
market conditions and proactively identify suitable investment
opportunities with good prospects to enhance its future financial
performance and profitability.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL RELIANCE ON KEY CUSTOMERS

The key customers in the PRC for the sales of electricity were
subsidiaries of the State Grid and Inner Mongolia Power, which
are PRC state-owned electric utility companies that transmit
and distribute power in the PRC. As at 31 December 2023,
the receivables from the subsidiaries of State Grid and Inner
Mongolia Power were approximately 69.5% and 19.9% of the
total trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables of the Group,
respectively.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, approximately 39% of bank and other
borrowings of the Group were secured by the pledge over certain
power generating modules and equipment, guarantee deposits,
the fee collection rights in relation to the sales of electricity
in certain subsidiaries and/or pledge over the shares/equity
interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 1,790 full-time
employees (2022: 1,011). Employees were remunerated
according to the nature of their positions, individual
qualification, performance, work experience and market
trends, with regular remuneration review to reward and
motivate individual performance. The Group offers competitive
compensation and benefit packages to different levels of staff,
including additional medical insurance, discretionary bonuses,
various training programmes, sponsorship for further study, as
well as share option scheme for the benefits of the directors
and eligible employees of the members of the Group. Total
employee benefits expenses (excluding share-based payment
expenses) for the Year amounted to approximately RMB537
million (2022: approximately RMB351 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group operates mainly in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
For the operations in Mainland China, the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB. Minimal exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates is expected. For the operations in Hong
Kong, most of the transactions are denominated in HK$ and
US$. Since the exchange rate of US$ against HK$ is pegged
to each other under the Linked Exchange Rate System, the
exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates will mainly arise from
the translation to the presentation currency of the Group. The
Group did not resort to any currency hedging facility for the Year.
However, the Management will enhance the monitoring on the
Group'’s foreign currency exposure, should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant
contingent liability.

SETTLEMENT WITH NEX GROUP

During the Year, NEX Group transferred cash of RMB6 million
and will transfer the equity interest of its subsidiary operating
solar power plant with fair value amounting to approximately
RMB30 million in the first half of 2024 to the Group for
settlement purpose. The Management considered there is
sufficient provision for impairment on the balances due from
NEX Group. Accordingly, no expected credit loss was recognised
for the Year.

Further details are set out in the 2019 to 2022 annual reports
of the Company and the announcements of the Company dated
12 May 2020, 13 May 2020, 9 June 2020, 19 July 2020, 31
July 2020, 28 September 2020, 30 March 2021, 29 March
2022 and 30 March 2023.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Except for those disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other material
events occurred after 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report.

BB i L oy B

BEE = 557 & Ja B e 48 R 3 O

AEBFTERPTRHEREREEEEXZR 5l
TEARENEEMS  EABIRZUAAR
WEE AMEtEXRBEAREM -MEE
WEEMS > REIDRZUBERETER
HETHBBEXTHBEXRGE TEHEHE
W ERKFERTIEENRESTERR
JEWRHHE AEERAFELEEXBE
WEBHPTR -AM EEEREERER
meg g R A E B A NS E R

HE&E
RIE_=F+"RA=+—H ' x&EELE
EXRHEER-

HINEXEREE

RAFE NEXEEEOAEEREHZERE AR
e BT URKEEEEEAGEZEENDN
MEATRE (R_Z_NELHEEMNAHR
ﬁ%aﬁiﬁfmamsoﬁ%m) EEERR-E
BEIACMEBNEXEBEGRTIZETER
ﬁﬁéfﬁ At FERAFEERIEREERS
8o

—PHBHNEARABDZ_E—NEE_Z
::Eiﬁu&mﬁjamﬁ_g_gﬁﬁ
B+-_H-Z&2-_EFHR/+=H - ZZE_F
FRBAA-ZEZEFtEtA+ABR -T2
ZEFTA=+—H - ZZEZZEFABZ+N
H- & - —4®=HA=+H-—&E_-_®#=H8
TtH+hABRZEZ=F=B=1tHza%E"

MBRARBPREAFTE

PR EMBRRNEITAEEE N mEE
ﬁé:v__fﬁ-i— B=+—HRBEELEHR
HEf AR EMEREE

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLntfETRBIRE PR A B 24 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % — =AE4EH

51



52

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS

The year of 2024 is a critical year for implementing the “14th
Five-Year Plan”. As the global energy landscape continues to
evolve, the transformation of energy, technological innovation,
and the optimisation of the industrial chain have become the
key opportunities and significant challenges for the high-quality
development of the energy industry in the future.

The Company will continue to closely follow the national “dual
carbon” strategy, deeply embedding itself in the energy sector,
and solidly developing a philosophy of green development.
The Company will continuously diversify its industry layout
of clean energy, aiming to create a new ecosystem of high-
quality development of various green energy including wind
power, photovoltaic power, hydro power, hydrogen energy and
integrated energy. In line with the national direction for artificial
intelligence industry development, the Company will accelerate
the construction of the Beijing Al Public Computing Platform,
effectively expand the clean energy industry chain, and gradually
form a new pattern that develops “energy + computing” as main
sector with the synergistic development of six sectors including
wind and photovoltaic power, hydro power, integrated energy, gas
turbines, green hydrogen, and computing.

In terms of the layout of wind and photovoltaic power, we will
continue to focus on the main business of wind and photovoltaic
power and solidly promote the strategic layout of “dual-
circle, one-centre and one-focus”. The Company will focus on
developing large-scale base projects and high-yield synergistic
projects and enhancing its brand influence, striving to further
rapidly expand the installed capacity and resource reserves
within the year.

In terms of the layout of hydro power, by closely following
national policies, we will pre-emptively make overall
arrangements, and steadily advances to expand and optimise
the hydro power asset segment. We will actively seek to
secure the development rights for large river basins hydro
power, accelerate the development of the clean energy base in
southeastern Xizang, rely on Baoshan Energy to promptly follow
up on the hydro power development dynamics of the Nujiang
River basin, and actively pursue the leading right in developing
the Yansangshu hydro power plant and Guangpo hydro power
plant in Longling County, sparing no efforts to advance the
merger and acquisition of large-scale high-quality hydro power
plant assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of the layout of integrated energy, we will adhere to a
service-oriented philosophy, dare to innovate, and continuously
improve our self-developed “Smart Operation and Maintenance
Platform”, enhancing smart operation and maintenance service
capabilities. We will conduct in-depth studies on the feasibility
of charging pile resources and supporting services, and actively
explore innovative models for energy storage’s participation
in grid auxiliary services and spot trading as an independent
market entity. We will assess investment return rates and
gradually develop energy storage system integration services,
creating a new situation for the comprehensive development of
integrated smart energy business.

In terms of the layout of gas turbines, we will use the Yangxi
project as a model to develop our gas-fired integrated energy
business, build a multi-energy and complementary clean energy
supply system, and accelerate the development of talent pool.
We will enhance the development of integrated energy projects
of natural gas heating, cooling and power (KRARI:SE),
focusing on the projects layout in south regions with stable gas

sources and high thermal loads to create an effect of scale.

In terms of the layout of green hydrogen, the green hydrogen
industry is on the cusp of a new opportunity for comprehensive
acceleration. The Company will firmly adhere to its green
hydrogen and chemical development strategy, carry out top-level
design, and simultaneously advance multiple model projects
for hydrogen production from wind and photovoltaic power,
hydrogen-ammonia production from wind and photovoltaic power,
and hydrogen production from wind power and waste power.
By seizing strategic resources, the Company aims to form a
significant growth pole for its sustainable development.

In terms of the layout of digital computing, the Company
will conduct research and formulate a medium to long-term
development plan for its digital computing business. We will
accelerate the deployment of computing business in Beijing,
Tianjin, Hebei, Mongolia and other regions, aiming to provide the
digital infrastructure for Beijing’s artificial intelligence industry.
By gradually establishing ultra-large-scale intelligent computing
centres, data centres, and industrial clusters and prioritising
capability improvement in computing construction and operation,
platform services, and algorithm optimisation, we will create an
integrated development model of the main business of “energy
+ computing”, aiming to accelerate the formation of new stable
profit growth points.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i L B

A great change unprecedented in a century is also a great
opportunity unprecedented in a century. Under the guidance
of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the Company will continue to
be driven by value, with high-quality development at its core,
and accelerate the construction of a green-oriented, multi-
energy complementary, and intelligently synergistic clean
energy industry ecosystem. The Company will anchor its
goals, bravely take on historical missions, strive with vigor,
be bold in innovation, and work tirelessly to promote high-
quality development of energy industry in the new era. We will
continue to move swiftly and steadily on the path of green and
low-carbon development, forging ahead with determination and
perseverance.
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REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company believes
that rigorous standards of corporate governance enhance
the sustainability of the Company. To this end, the Company
has established and maintained a framework of corporate
governance policies and practices to apply the principles of good
corporate governance in daily operation. This framework is built
upon principles of accountability and integrity.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions of
the CG Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of corporate governance. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties. It is responsible for developing,
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company. In the corporate governance
framework of the Company, other key participants, including
Shareholders, senior management and other stakeholders,
have a role to contribute and interact in the process of decision
making and they set us in motion of continuing improvement in
our corporate governance practices.
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REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The diagram below shows the current corporate governance FEIFTRAATRENOESLEEERTE
structure of the Company and the relationship between 2EiE > RIRIREE :
key participants:
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CORPORATE CULTURE o 34

2

Corporate Mission =¥ Em
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To construct a clean energy industrial ecosystem dominated by green energy, complemented by multiple energy sources and
characterised by smart collaboration, and provide global energy users with full lifecycle services through value creation

BEGeRT SREMA BERRRANEREREXLERRR  BBEEASHENERAFPRERERBHRE

In such a new era with huge energy reform, new momentums and new values continue to emerge, collide, disintegrate and integrate.
High-quality development is a strong foundation for the energy development in China’s new era. Focusing on the national strategic
goals of “carbon peak and carbon neutrality”, the energy revolution should start from the entire industrial ecology, transform from
the pure production model with maximum energy quantity to the service pricing model with maximum energy value, and redefine the
attributes of energy through three dimensions of “green”, “integration” and “intelligence”. By building an industrial ecosystem and
realizing value creation, BJEI demonstrates its social responsibilities and obligations, and affirms its pursuit of faith and ideal value,
which is the original intention and significance of corporate and high-quality development.
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To become a first-class international clean energy ecological investment operator
BRRA—RHNERCEREREEREEED

It is necessary to adhere to the concept of co-existence between human and nature in order to create a community of life. Focusing
on the main business of clean and low-carbon energy development, BJEI emphasizes the concept of ecological construction,
achieves the symbiosis with energy value, and serves the better life of people around the world. With this as the blueprint for future
development, it provides a strategic direction and long-lasting answers to the corporate development in the future.
BREAEBANEdERAR HEARFAEBAHEREFNIER - RERKRREERSZ2EREREE RALBBRIES B
BEREEEEHES  RERARNEFLEERT LULAEAREERKERNER AARKEMA—EERNBERE T EEES
BAFAEE

© © © 0 0 0000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000 00000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 o

Core Value ZIMVEEE

© © © 0 000 0000000000000 0 000000000000 000000000000000000o0 L) @0 c'e 0 0000000000000 0 o

People-oriented and pursuit of excellence

AR BRI

BJEI firmly believes that the enterprise development relies on the wholehearted support from employees. As such, we continuously
deepen democratic management, build an honour system, and protect the rights and interests of employees for encouraging all
employees to work together and promote the development and progress of the enterprise. BJEI actively create a good atmosphere
that encourages and supports employees to work hard, and also creates a platform for learning, improvement, development and
progress, so that employees can share the achievements of corporate reform and development.
FREBRERRBEREZ2LEEREEIRECE TR CREEXERE BERERE A REEI#LD  UEBHE2RETEMAE R &
DBNEBEHEBREY - REBRBHRESHE SHEIRNEXNRESFE TAE2E B - EBR  EXNFE EFETH
FhEENSERHIMRE -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Responsibility and Delegation

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable for promoting the success of the Company and
achieving sustainable development of the Company. The Board
provides leadership and supervision of the Company, overseeing
businesses and evaluating the performance of the Group. It
focuses on formulating the overall strategies and policies with
particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance
of the Group, and make decisions on significant acquisitions and
other specified matters reserved for the Board.

HEZE
DAY-TO-DAY
OPERATIONS

\

The implementation of the Group’s strategies and policies
and the day-to-day operations are performed by the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management of the Company under
the regular monitoring and supervision of the Board and its
committees. These arrangements will be reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Company.

All Directors have separate access to the Management and are
provided with full and timely information about the conduct of
the business and operation of the Group. Upon request by the
Board, independent professional advice will be available to the
Directors to facilitate the decision-making process. Appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been arranged for
the Directors.

55 + BE

DIRECTION +
SUPERVISION

EXg

ERAEIRSEREN

EF G S 8 5 K H B it 5L HE B 45 2 B B AY
NREBARAAFNBEERESE - EFEHE
EREEARB -BREBAFIGETERZ
IF o HFE I E B HS RS KR 45 71
AREBERRMBRE TRERNREK

HitERESEERNEESEFEHRZ-

2

AEBNRBABERNATRASEEHS
FBATEREARTSREBEAEEEFER
HZEgNEMERREEZTET IEF
ZHRWER B URRNHATEEAF

NEE-

FREEEH I DR EEIEE AR IR M
BRAERET 2 EBRE B Z BN RE
HNER - FEEZFEERT EF0REBEILE
EZR UBEHEREK - AABEAHESRKR
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The Board has also delegated certain functions to the Audit ZEEGNEBETHBAESETEREZE S i
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, MZEEE - IELEZTE T BAREHZE SR
Risk Control Committee and Sustainability Committee, further HEXREREZE S > BLFBEHNEATLEESA
details of which are set out in this report of corporate ¥R e

governance.

FHEFCEZZHRER

Key matters reserved for the Board

Organisation &

e : Governance & risk management
succession planning

approve the

MHE TR SR

approve and

decide the Group’s

EakEAREE

develop the corporate governance

strategic plans monitor the organization structure and policy

and annual annual budget structure Bl E B EE A EBRBUER

operation and and annual REAREBEN A

investment plans financial plan 2088 develop the ESG policy and review

of the Group HEREBEEE the relevant reports

#EREBERE EREREE consider the I EESGEER > W ERERAMR S

BB R EFEE A5 st 8l appointment of

EU R ETE Directors approve and review the terms of
approve the ZEEENEMTE reference of board committees

approve major
investments and
transactions

selection and
appointment
of the external

approve the
remuneration policy

HERBNEEEE BN HESE

establish and maintain risk

HEBRERER auditor and incentive management and internal control
R5 HEESNEEIZ B schemes systems, review and monitor policies
BRI ER R b 37 M B 2R R R and practices on compliance with
approve issue £ BhstE legal and regulatory requirements
of Shares and B R A R PR B IR R BB S &
other securities review and approve the #o ST RERB R R ERUTEE
within the approve the appointment or BEREEHRE
authority given by annual and removal of senior
Shareholders interim financial management of the establish and review shareholders’
TERR R IR ER results and Company communication policy
E Rt EEITR approve their HERATSRE B Rt sY R R BB IBUR
R EMES publication BAENEZFEHE
R Ko fit A ) review the Company’s compliance
approve other E R AR with the CG Code and relevant
material HEERAER review and monitor disclosure in this report of corporate
corporate i the training governance
activities and continuous W AARBREEEERTAZE
#EEMmEAL professional HERRALEERRS 2 HEK
E S| development of B

Directors and senior
management of the

develop, review and monitor the

Company code of conduct and compliance
B REREER manual for Directors and employees
RNBSHREEA FIE B AEREEREEZ

EREIIRFER
EER

IRTARERFM
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Composition of the Board

EEGHEM

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, including two ZE=ZIHRANLEEMAN OEMBLHNITE
executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and three FE LR ITEEL="LBIIIIFRTES-
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors who served HE_ T _=F+_HA=+—HLEESZ=
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2023 and EMEZERBIEBEEASERAHEMNES
changes in Directors up to the date of this annual report are as  EEHUIT :

follows:

Name of Directors

EEps

Changes in Directors up to the date of this annual report

BEXFHRAPNESEE

Executive Directors
WiTES

Mr. Zhang Ping (Chairman)
SRERE (FE)

Mr. Lu Zhenwei

EHRE ST E

Non-executive Directors
FEMITES
Mr. Liu Guoxi
FEESLE
Mr. Su Yongjian
BROKRSTE
Mr. Li Hao
FERE

Mr. Lu Xiaoyu
BEEFEE

Mr. Zhao Bing
i

Appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 5 June 2023

B-E_=ZFNFLAEEBZIDIIFNTEE

Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 5 June 2023

B-E = NAaHERTHFANTEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIJERITES
Ms. Jin Xinbin
gt

Ms. Li Hongwei
EN IR Eodun

Mr. Zhu Jianbiao
e iy a
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Directors’ biographical details are set out in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report
on pages 24 to 32. The Board believes that its composition
is well balanced with each Director having sound knowledge,
skills, diversity of perspectives, and experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
its members. Updated list of directors and their role and
function has been maintained on the website of the Company
and that of the HKEXnews. The names and identification of the
Directors are disclosed in all corporate communications issued
by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman provides leadership and governance for the
Board so as to create the conditions required for effective
performance of the Board as a whole and effective contribution
by individual Director. He also ensures that the Board performs
its responsibilities and all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chief Executive
Officer has the delegated power to manage the Company and to
oversee the business activities of the Company. The positions of
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Zhang
Ping and Mr. Zhu Jun, respectively.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. The Company has
complied with the requirement for appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.10(1)
of the Listing Rules and the requirement that at least one of
the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
throughout the entire year. The Company has also complied
with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. With such a
weight of the independent non-executive Directors, there is a
strong independent element in the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement. The independent non-executive
Directors contribute by ensuring due governance process,
reviewing and providing independent advice to the management
performance. They also bring in objective and impartial
considerations for connected transactions and other issues of
the Group.

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SRR

EEEEFRHNEAFERBE24EN28TES
REREEBEABZHEI —fH -EFEHEH
EREETE BREFHERRAERX
BAEBZRBEN# Ko ZTICBREL - KR
R/ REHEMH

MEFEMAN EFENEBUEME X
BoRBREMEARHREMGR RMNES
LEEHEABNBEEN AT MBI RKE
SRUETH - EFURKRENERELD
RARKATNNEZFRARDBARKE-

ITRRERFRITE
TROBENDSAENELREETT  UAE
FEFTERAMMERRERENESFLE
RERMAENERE IRFRESCRITEAR
BENKESmMAEERRIGENEE B
FRTERMESRENEELARAMEE
AANEBF LR - TERERIATEZRSE
DRBRFRERRESLERE

BIEMITES
EEgRAE LB IUIFRNTES HERE
EEABN=ZDZ— ARFEEFEEETE
MHRAEIA0W)ERERZEE LV =2 BILIE
HITEER LHRAUEIL0Q)EREE L —
LBUFRTESTEAEREENEXER
FEBBEENSHAERNTEEEER
NABINEET EHHRAE3.10MEERRZRE
BIUFERTESRE BEEETZTAKE D
=N — o BIUIFRTESHNILLES AE
EEHRBANBIL TR FETEREL
BIUHE -BUFRITESERREENE
BREF BEEBRRBUMILREBILE
RETEMFHEM RETHNAEERERS
REMEFREZFELALENERE-
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The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual written confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no change
of circumstances which may affect the independence of each
independent non-executive Director. The Board considers that
all independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent.

Board Independence Mechanisms

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. The Board
has established mechanisms to ensure independent views and
input from any Director are conveyed to the Board for enhancing
an objective and effective decision making.

The governance framework and the following mechanisms are
reviewed annually by the Board, to ensure their effectiveness:

1. Three out of nine Directors are independent non-executive
Directors, which meets the requirements of the Listing
Rules that the Board must have at least three independent
non-executive Directors and must appoint independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

2. The Nomination Committee will assess the independence
of a candidate who is nominated to be a new independent
non-executive Director and the contribution to the diversity
of the Board according to the board diversity policy adopted
by the Company from time to time before appointment and
also the continued independence of existing independent
non-executive Directors and their time commitments
annually. On an annual basis, all independent non-executive
Directors are required to confirm in writing their compliance
of independence requirements pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and to disclose the number and nature of
offices held by them in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments.

3. External independent professional advice is available as
and when required by individual Directors.

4. All Directors are encouraged to express freely their
independent views and constructive challenges during the
Board and/or board committee meetings.

ARBEBWREZBUIFRTESFRELHR
AE3 IBRMEBIMMEL 2 FEEER
B BERGRN TEBRECAETE
BBIUFATESTZBIUIM -EFGRNAMN
BEBIUFNTESHNTE LHRAE3.131%
FREs 2B M aT(Eiesl T ABIL Ao

EXRTHIIMHS
ARBERBEFENBHIMHRENTEEE
AREFENENMNEREEZE -EFEER
UHHIUEREINESNBIER RERE
BEESEFE UREARRZZTELERAN
o

EXEEFRAEARBRUATHE > LI
REBMML :

1. WBREFTA-ZLRBIFATES"
FeELTRUMESFELSREBEEL=
LBIUFATES BEMZENET
FRTEFVREEFTTAEEL =D
Z—HIEE °

2. RELZEGRZEMBIULUFEATES
Al R AR RBEAATDRANEFTES
TIEHRRFEERBZEEANEL
Mo RERNEZEEZTCHENER X
RESEFEREBIIFATESHST
BEIMERRENFERA - 2BBT
FRTEREFARAMRELHRAE3.13
FUAEEEEDRERETEB/IULENR
RE 0 BB W F A AR A B) 5 AR AP 4
EBAMNEHE RMEENUKREME KK
1o

3. HENESFHTE ISRINBBIEE
ER-

4. TREBEZENEFER HNEFES
CERLERAERNEBUERKREDR
ERMERERE -
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5. No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors.

6. A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
who has a material interest in a contract, arrangement or
other proposal shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any Board resolution approving the same.

7. The Chairman meets with independent non-executive
Directors annually without the presence of the executive
Directors and non-executive Directors.

8. Site visits are arranged for Directors from time to time to
enhance their understanding of the Company’s operations
and development.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and considered procedure for
the appointment of new Directors. Details of the nomination
policy of the Company are set out in the “Nomination Policy”
section of this report of corporate governance on pages 75
to 77. The Nomination Committee identifies suitably qualified
individuals for directorship to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and makes recommendations to the Board
on proposed appointments. A new Director may be appointed
by the Shareholders at general meeting or by the Board after
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the Board.
In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-Laws, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or, subject to authorisation by the Shareholders
in general meeting, as an addition to the existing Board but
so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed
any maximum number determined from time to time by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director so appointed
shall hold office until the next following AGM of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Every Director is appointed for a specific term and should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
In accordance with bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years at each AGM.

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SRR

5. BUFRTESRIEERTRRERRE
AR R B IR FEEREN o

6. REN RFNEMEZTHEAEAR
ZHNEE (BEBIFNTES) 1550
HEEBREFENEMNESFTRERZRE
FWEAEEAR

7. ERSEEITESRIFATESERE
BB TRBIUIFATERTEE

8. TEMZHIEFETEMER IMA
REHKTADEBRERNT o

BEECZAREE

RARBBEE—ELEAAREZZERFUZRE
MES - BRARBARABENFEBHNA
PEEAREEISETTE IERHE —e
RLLZECEEYEBESETEETNEENR
AT UREARABZELEHRE HEE
SHERFHEIEZ MEFULREE
ESHEZHARENREAZIHEETZE
T UIEHESS 2R TR e ESE
AU -RIEZREMBE8I)E EFHEHE
TREERZEETAALTEHITES  LUIEMH
EEG RN TR ERRERNREREATH
BEFARBEEGZIBHEST HEMEMT
ZEEANEITEBERERNRIEAEARKE
EZLER-FIZEZERESEZEHELRAD
A TEREBEAGAL ETEERNZ
AR FEEBE(F

BLEFHEZEEEEH TARIE=
FHERET-—R-REEEMAIES4(DIF
REERRBEAE L ER=0Z—2EF
(HMEFABLF=2FH ARREFEL
BRLOR=n2z—2#EB) ARERE &S
LEFRARIB=FHEREI—R-

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLatRETRBRER A TR 2 R

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =% — = 4E4EH)

63



64

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
R IRH

Each Director has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company. Except for Mr. Liu Guoxi, who
has been appointed for a specific term of three years, all the
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a specific term of one year. All
Directors are subject to the retirement and re-appointment
provisions of the Bye-Laws.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Liu Guoxi, Mr.
Li Hao, Ms. Li Hongwei and Mr. Zhu Jianbiao had retired from
office, and been re-elected as Directors in the AGM held on 27
June 2023.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Upon each appointment, an induction briefing and a Directors’
induction handbook were given to each of the newly appointed
Directors. Such briefing and handbook primarily introduce
the laws, rules and regulations to which the Directors
should observe and adhere during their tenure, as well as
the Company’s policies, codes, compliance manual, and the
business, operations and development of the Group.

During the year 2023, the Company has arranged trainings
which were presented by professional firms to the Directors.
The Directors also recognise the importance of keeping abreast
of the business activities and development of the Company,
and developing and refreshing their knowledge and skills and
thus continuously attend seminars and/or briefings to refresh
their knowledge. In addition, a number of reading materials in
relation to the amendments or revision of applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards and policies of the countries and regions
in which the Group operates, such as guidelines, newsletters,
reports, consultation papers and interpretations issued by
regulatory bodies or professional firms, are also circulated to all
Directors from time to time.
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The Company has maintained record of the continuous
professional development participated by the Directors. A
summary of the Directors’ participation in the continuous
professional development which included reading materials,
regulatory updates, monthly reports and attending briefings
and/or seminars during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this annual report is as below:

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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AN GEEESSHTEST =L EMNCR-
REE_ZE_=F+"_A=+—BLEFELK
BEEAFRBP EE2UFEZELE (B
EREMN - EERWEN - ERHREURZ
BERT R, NEXE) NEESHIWT

Training
b=
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Zhang Ping REEE v
Mr. Lu Zhenwei EiRETE ol
Non-executive Directors EMITES
Mr. Liu Guoxi (appointed with effect from REAERE G-E_=FNALHEEZT) v
5 June 2023)
Mr. Su Yongjian BRI E ol
Mr. Li Hao L v
Mr. Lu Xiaoyu BETEL v
Mr. Zhao Bing (resigned with effect from MEkd (B -F - =F A7 HEFFE) ol
5 June 2023)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHMITES
Ms. Jin Xinbin ST L+ v
Ms. Li Hongwei =R Eoun ol
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao RRIFLAESE v
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BOARD PROCESS EXgER

Key Features of Board Process EZCEFEMN
14 days’ notice of regular Board + proper briefed on issues arising at meeting + record in sufficient details
meeting or reasonable notice in MERRENEEEBESHR on the matters considered
timely manner with agenda and decisions reached
KEERZEEEHI4HEHHES - prompt and full response to queries raised AR RS SRR AT E R
BERBENNSERN 1RIR 2 CIFEFT IR H AR RE B2 BIBRIEMZ AR
all Directors are invited to + access to the Management +  record any concerns raised
propose any additional matters REREBEN RPN EAAEER
included in the agenda
FiBESERIREZETPEE - independent professional advice in appropriate records are open for
MEMAZEINET circumstances at the Company’s expenses inspection by Directors

BHERBUSEER BRMHAQRZM AU HERER

S t&
lg:ﬁ,?;e Active
=~ participation
Formal notice R RER and contribution

with sufficient

HAE2 8Kk AR

time
& 5@&%@5&1 3] ) /-\fdeque:_te
ERBEH information broper
TERH records
HEE iR

Board papers with reliable information have meeting at least 4 times a year and have meeting when required

accessible to all Directors are provided in SEHEEVORENREERBEE
advance

AR ESEEEBESH I ERZ O EERY - promote a culture of openness and debate
BEggEME HE AR mXE

sufficient materials to enable the Board to encourage all Directors with different views to voice their concerns, if any

make informed decisions BEEFARARRNMEEEREEAFAINER WA)
BEEHEFEANBERENTEER
allow sufficient time for discussion and ensure Board decisions fairly reflect
Board consensus

BT RARBNRUEERESTTRRATRRESGHH
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OTHER KEY FEATURES OF BOARD PROCESS
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EFTREFHHMET

The Chairman held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.

ITEREMEERENBER TRABIYIFNTEETEITER-

Transactions where any Director is considered having a conflict of interest or material interests shall be
dealt with in a physical meeting with presence of independent non-executive Directors who have no material
interests.
HAEMEEKREARNRZPEENGERIAEEEA D ZRZENBEARG 2B YN TESTEHEZ
R8s CEEo

Any Director having conflict of interests or material interests shall disclose his/her interests in accordance
with the Bye-Laws before the meeting and shall abstain from voting on the resolution(s) approving such

transactions and shall not be counted in the quorum.

FAHEEN nBRNERETNERTAN TR RIEERA

EZRZE BRI ANEEAH-

MR B A m M AR S HLE R R R 57 RO R &

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established its Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Risk Control Committee and
Sustainability Committee on 14 March 2000, 28 September
2005, 23 March 2012, 23 July 2013 and 1 February 2024,
respectively. Details of authority, role and responsibilities of
each committee are set out in written terms of reference which
are available on the Company’s website under the Investor
Relations section and the website of the HKEXnews. The Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Risk Control Committee and Sustainability Committee reviewed
its terms of reference from time to time to ensure they remain
in line with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Amendments
to the terms of reference shall be submitted to the Board for
approval and adoption.

EEZEY
EEgNNR_TTEF=ATHEE =
EREFAA-_TNANB-ZF-—_F=H
“+=BEZF—=FtHAZ+=HKZF
“ME_RB-—HMUBREZEEE HHESR
2 REZEE ARZEHZEGRAFRAE
RZEE -RZBG2RN ABKBEHR
HRHEERERE AIREARSEIERE
ERG—RRRBEZELERN BREEE
mMEEE REZEE ARZENZEERK
ARHEEREZE TR ERERE
RINTE EMRAER-BRHBEE5TA
ERERGHUERIRM -
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The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Risk Control Committee and Sustainability Committee. An
agenda accompanying board committee papers are sent to the
committee members at least three days prior to the meeting.
Sufficient resources are made available to the committee
members when required. The secretary prepares full minutes of
the committee meetings with details of the matters considered
by the committee members. The draft minutes are sent to all
committee members of respective committee for comment
and approval after each meeting and the final version of the
minutes are sent to the committee members for their records
within a reasonable time after the meeting. The chairman of
the respective committee summarises the activities of that
committee and highlights issues arising and reports to the
Board after each committee meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Li Hongwei and Mr. Zhu Jianbiao, and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Liu Guoxi. The Audit Committee is chaired by Ms. Li
Hongwei who possesses relevant professional qualification and
expertise in financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee acts as an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor. It is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor.
It is empowered to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards. It reviews,
makes recommendations and reports to the Board on findings
relating to the financial statements, reports and accounts,
financial reporting system, internal control and risk management
systems, and compliance issues.
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K BAENEREZEGHEER - WERE
ZETERNBERCHR EDHIESR
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HEANANZEEMEELRBRAHNFZHC
o MREFCHR 2B - ASREECER
B RLEEEIFERELZEGEH  RHARK
ARFEE WREEGER-
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The Audit Committee held three meetings (two of which were —E_=F ' BREEGHTT=XgH (H
with the external auditor of the Company) to deal with the HIMXEEARATINEZEET—F B RE) LRI
following matters during the year 2023: UTEIE:

SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2023

—E-FRBIEZBE

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company about the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 as well as the financial and accounting policies and practices of the Group;

AANEI R —RER R wRAEESE S+ A=+ H I FENKRERFEEZEURTERMTH
RESHERERER

reviewed and discussed the non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022;
B R RAEESRE S S+ -A=1+—H I FENFRRFERERTS ;

reviewed and discussed the composition structure and qualification of financial management department's staff of the
Group;
Bt Rl mA BN B EERETHAREEREE ;

reviewed and discussed with general manager of audit and supervisory department about the internal audit work of the
Group;
R EEEREIE—FRs ey mAER R ET L7 ;

reviewed and discussed with general manager of legal and compliance department about the risk management and
internal control matters of the Group;

R A REREE—FRE AR EERREERABIEREE ;

reviewed and considered the independence, retirement, re-appointment and remuneration of external auditor of the
Company;

B e AN SN Z BN B I R E BB ERF

reviewed and discussed the unaudited condensed consolidated interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2023; and
BRRFNGAEESEE S _—F A=+t HEAEANKRKSEZGREETHESR &

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company about their annual audit work plan in relation to the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.
BARNBIMNERH—AER R RERA RS E S =+ A=+ —HIFEXENFESEZ T EstEl-
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The external auditor performs independent review or audit of
the financial statements prepared by the Management. Grant
Thornton has been re-appointed as the independent auditor of
the Company by Shareholders at the AGM held on 27 June 2023
for a term until the conclusion of the next AGM. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid or payable to
the auditor of the Company (including their affiliated firms) for
their services rendered is summarised as below:

B BT =

SNEZEMSEEERENMBRKE
BWIBRKNEZ x&ﬂﬁé\:gizﬁ/\ﬁ
“T+tHETHREEFAGS LEERE
EMETAARBBIUZEM  FHETE
KREBFAGEREER BEZZ =
+ZE=+—HLEFEE MAABZEE (8
EREZBE AT PRIRERBENRELE
FZ BT

2023 2022

—g== —E-=
RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBEET ARKEEET
Statutory audit EEEZ 7 6
Non-audit services® JEZ B PR 2 3
Total =11 9 9

Note:

(1) The non-audit services represented the services relating to the
financial review, tax consultancy and financial advisory.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor with respect
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the section “Independent
Auditor's Report” on pages 129 to 138 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
members, including two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Jin Xinbin and Ms. Li Hongwei, and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Su Yongjian. Ms. Li Hongwei is the
chairlady of the Remuneration Committee.

Mt -

(1) FERERFBIEAMMBER RBLHRTE
SBFRIARTS ©

BUBBMEMRE_S-_=&£+=8
S+-BLEEZGAMBEREL EERT
B B 120 138 B HBETRE ) —

HMNEEE

HINEEGRE-RME SEMEEILIF
HITES AW T RFAFRL LT UK
—RIFRNTES BFKBALE - FAHBL L
PHEMEESEERE-
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The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting and passed
three written resolutions to deal with the following matters
during the year 2023:

REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SRR

FMEEE T EHEARESREFETLR
BERABENRDERKRE RERTERE
EEAREREEABNHFINBREEBRE
SERHEZR URBENATESRERE
BABZHMEBRRNESTSRHES-

TR CH O HMEESRIT T —REH UL
BB=MEARBRUEEUATEE

SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2023

“ERCZFMEIEZHE

MMEEFATESNESHSRHEES

of senior management;

Company; and
MAEARBTESREBEAENHMEHINEZRRELES S &

RAREBRESEIREBRERLEZ

ey Ry mAEBMNFMBRUREEREREEASNFIMNEGES ;

made recommendations on the directors’ fee of a newly appointed non-executive Director;

reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of Directors and members

made recommendations on the remuneration and remuneration adjustment of the key senior management of the

made recommendations on the grant of share options under the share option scheme of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Jin Xinbin and Mr. Zhu lJianbiao, and one executive Director,
namely Mr. Zhang Ping. Mr. Zhang Ping is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

RBZEEG

RBPEZEGHRE-LNE BEMBBEILIE
HITES MW LT RARBIERE UK
—HRTES BRFPAEE-RFEERRES
LZEEEF-
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The Nomination Committee is authorised to formulate nomination
policy for the Board’s consideration and implement the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship and
senior management. The board diversity policy which has been
adopted in 2013 outlines the Company’s commitment to ensure
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives which are appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. It also sets out that all Board members will
be appointed based on a merit basis with due consideration to
the board diversity. While selecting candidates for directorship,
the Nomination Committee has taken into account of a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge.

In reviewing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
shall give adequate consideration to the board diversity
policy. The Nomination Committee believes that the current
composition of the Board is balanced and diversified (including
gender diversified) with the high-calibre members from different
cultural backgrounds and possessing professional expertise of
various industries, which indicates that the board diversity policy
has been well implemented.

Gender diversity of the Group's workforce is one of the key
areas which the Board places great emphasis on. As at 31
December 2023, the total number of employees of the Group
was 1,790 and male and female employees of the Group
accounted for 79.7% and 20.3%, respectively. The Board
considers that the gender ratio in the workforce (including senior
management) is satisfactory and reflects the Group's business
demand and operational needs.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge, experience and length of service) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, and identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships and chief
executives, the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

RAEZECERENERVBRHTESTEE
B RATRZEFKBERE  UERABARER
EREZhOMEEABBMUANEZESHFR
BRE-R-_Z-—=ZFRMWZEFETZ TR
REBBETARDZAH IRREFTEEER
READEBMEGEEMERE  ERK
ZREBEZENS T - HTREMBE
FEREBNERESETURBE BFZE
EFGINEER-EREEEANER 2
LZEECREZTCAEFEER & E
ARS8 XERBEER K5 (B
K HAM) ~ RAERAH
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BEFEZITEHR - RLZEERR EF
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TEEXNANSEZEAT EEEHER
R EBEENZTE BREEEZ L
BRBERD B

AEBERETINMENZTEAEEE T+
DERN—EEREFH R _=ZF+_
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting and passed two _ZT_=F 1IELEEBGRT T —RGH I
written resolutions to deal with the following matters during the BEMPDZ2E RZZUEEBE TEIE !
year 2023:

SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2023

—ECCFREIEZME

made recommendations on nomination of candidates for the position of non-executive Director;

MIRBIFATESEEARLES ;

made recommendations on re-election of retiring Directors in the AGM for the year 2023;

MR B =ZFERFRBFAE LBERTEFRHES

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and the board diversity policy of the Company; and

BANEFGHORE HE ERKRZTE URERABNESTE L TEEE; &

assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

SHEBIIFRITEERIBIIE
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41-50 51-60 61-70

Length of service

BR#5EHA

@
0 (o
@

An analysis of the current Board composition: HEAMEESHMN DN
Designation
o dih a:ih dzh dzh
[ |1 |1 |
Executive Director #{7E% Non-executive Director FEHI1T# 5 Independent Non-executive Director
BUIFNTESR

Gender
1l

|1 |

Male F 1% Female %1%

Region
&

|| |

Hong Kong &7 Mainland China =157 #f
Age
FHe
|1
5 years or below 6-9 years 10-15 years
SEIT 694 10-154F

Skills/industry
experience
BETELR

50 50
0 50

@,
O

Expertise in finance/management Professional accountant Expertise in energy/engineering Legal

8% EEES HEZHE BERTRRITESRS R

Directorship with

other public companies
REMARAT
BAEEEHA

10 f0 jo0 jo jo jo

@
@

Details of the directorship in other listed companies are set HAREEM T ATEREE ZFBEHNAER
out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” [BEBEEKSREEABEZHE —H-
section of this annual report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 18 December 2018 and disclose as below.

1. Objectives

1.1

1.2

The Nomination Committee shall ensure the Board to
have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business and strategy during nomination
process.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to Shareholders for election as
Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

2.2

2.3

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate as a Director:—

Reputation for integrity;

Accomplishment and experience in the relevant
industry, in particular, in clean energy;

Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and do not
mean to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person,
as it considers appropriate.

Retiring independent non-executive Directors, save for
those who have served as independent non-executive
Directors for a period of nine consecutive years, are
eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.
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2.4 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent to be appointed as Directors and to
the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of
or in relation to their standing for election as directors.

2.5 Proposed candidates might be requested to provide
additional information and documents, if considered
necessary by the Nomination Committee.

3. Nomination Procedures 3.

3.1 A meeting of the Nomination Committee will be
called, and nominations of candidates will be invited
from the Board members, if any, for consideration
by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting.
The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

3.2 In case of filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval; in case of
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

3.3 Until the issue of circular to the Shareholders, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at
the general meeting.

3.4 In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election
at a general meeting, a circular will be sent to
shareholders. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence
(applicable to independent non-executive directors),
proposed remuneration and any other information,
as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules
and regulations, of the proposed candidates will be
included in the circular to Shareholders.
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3.5 A candidate is allowed to withdraw the candidature
at any time before the general meeting by serving a
notice in writing to the Company.

3.6 The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting.

Risk Control Committee

The Risk Control Committee currently consists of four members,
including two non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Yongjian
and Mr. Li Hao, and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Ping and Mr. Lu Zhenwei. Mr. Zhang Ping is the chairman of the
Risk Control Committee.

The aim of the Risk Control Committee is to strengthen the risk
analysis, judgement and decision making of the Board. The main
responsibilities of the Risk Control Committee are to assist the
Board in evaluating and deciding the risk level and risk appetite
of the Group in achieving its strategic and business objectives,
in identifying, mitigating and control of risks associated with
significant investments, material operation and financial
matters and other major activities of the Group, and in making
recommendations on improvement of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company.

During the year 2023, the Risk Control Committee held
five meetings and passed four written resolutions to review
and conduct risk assessment on acquisition and disposal
transactions, exercise of call options, investment and
construction projects, and made recommendations to the
Board for consideration or otherwise made suggestions to
the Management. Transactions reviewed by the Risk Control
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023 and have
already been disclosed include:
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SUMMARY OF WORK DONE DURING THE YEAR OF 2023

—ECCFRMIEZHME

+ reviewed and discussed the capital increase of approximately 65.7% of the enlarged registered capital in a project
company;

FER @A —EEEASFHAES. TREEAFMERIEE ;

+ reviewed and discussed the investment and construction of various photovoltaic and wind power generation projects,
combined natural gas heating cooling and power generation project, agricultural-photovoltaic complementary
power generation projects, fishery-photovoltaic complementary power generation projects and forestry-photovoltaic
complementary power generation projects in the PRC;

BRENAEERERUNPRNEELARKRANEBEE - RAKNLCEBHEES B EFHEBER - ACEME
BEERMIEEMESIER ;

+ reviewed and discussed the acquisition of 100% equity interest in a project company which owns wind power plants with
the construction capacity of 49.5MW in Xinjiang Province, the PRC;
BRI R mUE — BB AB100%KE  Z AN RENEEEEERDER49.5KENEHEEBL ;

+ reviewed and discussed the acquisition of 51% equity interest in a project company which owns a wind power plant with
the construction capacity of 200MW in Jiangsu Province, the PRC;
BRI R wmE—EEE AB51%KRE  ZARRPENIHEHEE —ARREER100KENE HEBL ;

+ reviewed and discussed the establishment of the Beijing Al Public Computing Platform which provides computing services
to enterprises and organisation in Beijing, the PRC;

ERRHMBULRATEEAHRBEN TG ZFaRTEILRNEERBBRHE RS

+ reviewed and discussed the acquisition of 100% equity interest in four project companies which own five solar projects
with a total generation capacity of 1,037MWp in Australia;
BRI T m B HEIEE A B100%K#  ZE AN REMNES AEEERTESHEEL3TIKERMNAMREER ;

+ reviewed and discussed exercise of call options to acquire 26% equity interest of two project companies which own a
total of two wind farms with aggregate installed capacity of 312MW in Australia; and
BRI R RITEREAENNEMEIEE AT26%KE  ZE AR N RNGHEEMEEKAESHI1I2KENEASE
%5 &

+ reviewed and discussed the acquisition of 100% equity interest in two project companies which own a photovoltaic power
plant with construction capacity of 200MW in Liaoning Province, the PRC, respectively.

ERRTmEMEIEE AT100%%E > ZF AN TEEEEDHIES —EEREFESI100KRACREBLL
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Sustainability Committee

The Sustainability Committee was established on 1 February
2024, which currently consists of three members, including
one independent non-executive Director, namely Ms. Jin Xinbin,
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Su Yongjian and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Ping. Mr. Zhang Ping is the
chairman of the Sustainability Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Sustainability Committee are
to monitor the formulation and implementation of the Group’s
vision, strategies, policies, systems and practices regarding
sustainable development matters and make recommendations
to the Board, so as to facilitate the development and
implementation of sustainable development matters of
the Group, drive the Group’s high-quality and sustainable
development and growth and combine and integrate sustainable
development into the Group’s production, operation and
corporate culture.
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The attendance records of each Director at Board meetings, %%% N =FHFEALAAESZEE
committee meetings and general meetings of the Company in & -ZEZZEMBREATHCHEEHTIUWT -
2023 are set out below:

Attendance Record of Directors and Committee Members in 2023

R CEEERZAGHENERLELE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Risk Control

General Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings
BEnZEE® HWEEg R4%ZEE il
Exges BREAE L g3 g% ZEgEE
Number of meetings FERY 13 4 3 1 1 5
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Zhang Ping RERE 13/13 3/4 = = 1/1 5/5
Mr. Lu Zhenwei EREEE 7/13 2/4 = = = 3/5
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Liu Guoxi AEELEY 6/7 2/3 2/2 = = =
Mr. Su Yongjian Bkt 3/13 3/4 = 1/1 = 2/5
Mr. Li Hao ﬂ.f‘ﬁi 0/13 0/4 - - - 1/5
Mr. Lu Xiaoyu BEREFRE 9/13 2/4 = = = =
Mr. Zhao Bing @ HERE? 1/6 0/1 1/1 = = =
Independent non-executive ~ BLFHITEE
Directors
Ms. Jin Xinbin HE . 12/13 4/4 = 1/1 1/1 =
Ms. Li Hongwei FABLT 12/13 4/4 3/3 1/1 = =
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao Rl s 10/13 2/4 2/3 - 0/1 -
Notes: Mo -
1.  Mr. Liu Guoxi was appointed as a non-executive Director and a 1. ZBIEEXLEBEB T _=ZF\BFHHEEZEAS
member of the Audit Committee with effect from 5 June 2023. 3F$ﬂﬁé$7§z§¢?§ﬁ pg=
2. Mr. Zhao Bing resigned as a non-executive Director and ceased to 2. MELERERHBSEBNRBZHEMER
be a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 5 June 2023 BE-E-=%,"A% EIiﬁ?‘Tf?F%ﬂﬁé%ET
due to his desire to devote more time to his other commitments. BEEEZEZEENE-
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
18 December 2018 and as below.

1. Objectives

1.1 The Dividend Policy is designed to set guidelines
on dividend distribution that maintain the balance
between appropriately rewarding Shareholders through
dividends and retaining necessary capital to support
future development of the Company.

1.2 The Board will recommend dividend distribution based
on various internal and external factors while striving
for fairness and sustainability.

1.3 The Dividend Policy shall be in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, laws and rules in the jurisdictions that the
Company has operations and the Bye-Laws, as in force
and as amended from time to time.

2. Parameters to be considered while declaring dividend

2.1 Dividend distribution is contingent upon various
factors, and their combination thereof, which are listed
below and the Board shall consider these factors in
the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole before deciding the dividend.

current and prospective financial performance of
the Company;

growth and investment opportunities;

other macro and micro economic factors; and

other factors/events that the Board may deem as
relevant.
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3. Utilization of retained earnings 3.

3.1 The Company would employ the retained earnings for
conducting activities in normal course of business,
including but not limited to funding the Company’s
future business growth/expansion plans or such other
purpose the Board may deem fit in the best interest of
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

4. Circumstances under which shareholders may not expect 4.

dividend

4.1 The Board may vary or not recommend any dividend
if the criteria for recommending of dividend has not
been met by the Company, including but not limited to
events/factors listed below:

loss or inadequacy of profit or cash flow;

decision to undertake any acquisition, amalgamation,
merger, takeover that will result in significant capital
outflow;

the Company has been prohibited from declaring
dividend under any contractual obligation or by
any regulatory authority; and

any other extraordinary circumstances.

5. Provisions regarding various classes of shares 5.

5.1 The provisions contained in the Dividend Policy
shall apply to all classes of shares of the Company.
Currently, the Company does not have any other class
of shares (including shares with differential voting
rights) other than ordinary shares.

6. Amendments 6.

6.1 To the extent any change/amendment is required
in terms of applicable laws or rules, the laws or
rules would prevail over the Dividend Policy, and the
provisions in the Dividend Policy would be suitably
modified to make it consistent with the requirements
of the law or rules. Such amended Dividend Policy
shall be placed before the Board for noting and
necessary ratification.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group. It
recognises the importance of integrity of financial information
and endeavour to present to the Shareholders a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of the performance, position
and prospects of the Group. The Board also acknowledges its
responsibility for preparing the financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the Group’s affairs and of its results and
cash flows. The Board receives from the Management such
explanation and information as necessary to enable it to assess
the financial information and position of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. The accounting policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical estimates. It
also requires Management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in the Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Company has used appropriate accounting
policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates, and that all applicable
accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of risks that the Group
is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems. On an on-going basis,
the Board performs supervision and annual inspection on the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is accountable for the internal
control and risk management systems and is responsible for
the review of their effectiveness. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group on an annual basis and reviewed the works carried
out by the audit and supervisory department which has a
primary role in assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of
the internal control system and acts independently and reports
to the Board and the Audit Committee. The Company has
been constantly optimizing and improving its internal control
management measures, so as to restrict the internal control
and risk management from the perspectives of internal control
management activities, internal control system development,
organisational structure, internal control evaluation and defect
identification, and the online office automation (OA) system
is adopted as the supervisory system of the internal control
and risk management. In accordance with the regulatory
requirements, the Group organises annual risk identification
and assessment as well as internal control evaluations.
Additionally, the Group collects suggestions for the rectification
and optimisation of internal control deficiencies. The Group will
ensure that these suggestions can be implemented within a
reasonable time. The Board and the Audit Committee conducted
an annual review on effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems for the year ended 31 December
2023. After reviewed the reports from the relevant departments,
the Board and the Audit Committee are satisfied that such
systems are effective and adequate. The Board also authorised
the Risk Control Committee to manage and implement risk
control procedures.
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The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of
Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission in June 2012 to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information
is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. The Company
regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the inside information.
Also, the Company makes Directors, senior management and
employees keep abreast of the latest regulatory updates. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or
policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

Dealing with risk is an integral part of how it protects and
creates value. Our business focuses on the development,
investment, operation and management of power plants and
other clean energy projects. Understanding emerging risks in the
renewable energy industry and establishing effective mitigation
measures show our commitment to a sustainable development
of business. We have identified a number of risks associated
with our business, which include:

Weather and climate risk — Renewable energy power plants
rely on the amount and intensity of natural resources, which
are affected by weather and climate conditions. Adverse
meteorological conditions could have a material impact on the
power plant’s output and could result in generation of electricity
below expected output, which in turn could adversely affect our
profitability.

Our response — We select renewable energy power plant projects
based on criteria such as geographical and meteorological
conditions of the site as part of our main inspections. During
the development and maintenance of our renewable energy
power plants, we cooperated with the leading suppliers in the
PRC to create and develop equipment which can be adapted
to different latitude, topography and climatic conditions. At
the same time, we built up a professional team in respect of
operation and maintenance of our existing renewable energy
power plants with strict operation and maintenance policy and
risk prevention measures.
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Policy risk — The Group’s results of operation could be affected
by tariff and government subsidies for renewable energy which
depend, to a large extent, on political and policy developments
relating to environmental concerns in the PRC and overseas
markets in which the Group operates.

Our response — The Company selects renewable energy power
plant projects with appropriate FITs or government subsidies,
and strong demand and consumption for electricity in the
locality. In the meantime, our operation and maintenance
team pays close attention to the changes of local and
national energy policies, gets timely feedback and takes
corresponding countermeasures. The Company also proactively
communicates with the local governments, grid companies and
electricity consumption enterprises to provide more electricity
transmission solutions.

Development strategy risk — Due to unclear development
strategic objectives, incomplete and unreasonable development
strategic decision-making mechanism, inadequate supervision
and failure to timely carry out evaluation and make adjustments
according to environmental changes and other reasons, strategic
decision-making mistakes may be resulted, making it difficult to
achieve strategic objectives, and bringing uncertainties to the
strategic decision-making and effectiveness of decision-making
of the Group.

Our response — In formulating our development strategies,
the Company takes into account market changes, competitive
pressure, technological advancement, politics, economy and
other relevant factors to comprehensively respond to various
potential risks. At the same time, we monitor risks on a real-
time basis and conduct risk assessments on a regular basis,
and formulate corresponding countermeasures for each
potential risk. We maintain a flexible mechanism such that
the Company can respond more quickly when facing risks. We
also strengthen our team cooperation as building strong team
cooperation can enhance our ability to cope with risks.
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Development and construction risk — When the Company
develops and constructs renewable energy power plants, it must
first obtain the relevant local grid company’s consent to connect
our renewable energy power plants to the local grid and obtain
the related government approvals and registrations. Obtaining
such consent for on-grid connection and government approvals
and registrations may depend on a number of factors, including
but not limited to the availability and the reliability of existing
grids, the progress of construction and the quality of these grid
connection facilities, efficiency of the administrative bodies
and the regulatory framework. Failure or delay in obtaining such
consent, approvals or registrations may hinder or prevent the
development of its renewable energy power projects as planned.
Besides that, the construction quality is also an important factor
to affect the power generation efficiency of renewable energy
power plants.

Our response — The Company employs a strict and systematic
approach to evaluate potential development projects. The
Company maintains an updated list of qualified and reliable
suppliers and third-party contractors with a proven track record
to provide EPC services, through a bidding process or through
our affiliates or other cooperative arrangements, to ensure
the qualities of their services. Throughout the development
process, the procurement and construction departments
organise tenders, communicate with bidders and coordinate
with our development teams to meet all local technical and
legal requirements for on-grid connection and the construction
of our projects. In the meantime, we also build up an on-site
management team to monitor the construction quality and make
sure the construction quality meets the Company’s standard and
requirement. The Company will assess location of development
sites and secure site control for project development. We
believe that our methodical approach to potential development
of renewable energy power plant projects, together with our deep
industry knowledge, strong and long-standing relationship with
other stakeholders will lend us an advantage in development of
renewable energy power plant projects.
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Safety management risk — The uncertainties brought by
incomplete safety management standards, inadequate
implementation of management standards, equipment damage
due to hidden dangers of safety accidents, damage of operation
environment, occurrence of accidents or casualties due to
integrated reasons, administrative penalties imposed by
national or local safety authorities, and inability to carry out
normal production and operation, to the normal production and
operation and reputation of the Company.

Our response — We strictly study and comply with relevant laws
and policies on safety management to continuously improve our
corporate safety management organisation, constantly revise,
improve and implement corresponding standards of safety
management, strengthen the publicity and training of safety
awareness of all employees, reinforce major responsibility of
responsible personnel at all levels, improve the Company’s
two systems of production safety assurance and supervision,
continuously improve the three-level safety supervision
network, adhere to preventive maintenance and management
of equipment to ensure safe production input, enhance the
development and assessment of emergency response capability
to continuously strengthen basic safety management standard,
increase investment in technology to eliminate potential safety
hazards through digital and intelligent means, and improve
safety management level and efficiency.

Operation and maintenance risk — A majority of the Company’s
existing renewable energy power plants are scattered across
different regions in the PRC. The area in which the Company’s
power plants are located is large and the number of devices is
huge. The ongoing operation of its facilities involves risks that
include the breakdown or failure of equipment or processes or
performance below expected levels of output or efficiency due
to, among other things, wear and tear, latent defects, design
error, operator’s error or force majeure events. Any curtailment
of electricity we generate in the PRC could also have an adverse
impact on our results of operations.
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Our response — The Group has built up and maintained
professional operation and maintenance team to provide
preventive and corrective operating and maintenance service
on site. At the same time, the Company regularly maintains its
renewable energy power plants with an intention to enhance
the utilisation rate, rate of power generation and system life of
its renewable energy power plants to the utmost. The Company
engages ground contractors who are on call to promptly remedy
any issues that may arise. The development of transmission
infrastructure and our participation in more power market
transactions, including inter-provincial renewable energy
transmission, help to mitigate loss from any curtailment of
electricity.

Overseas investment risk — The Company is exposed to various
risks in overseas expansion and investment, including overseas
policy risks, transaction risks of overseas projects and post-
acquisition management and operation risks.

Our response — The Group chooses those located in countries
with stable policies, good relationships with China and relatively
high internationally recognised ratings when selecting overseas
projects. The Group also engages intermediary team familiar
with local laws and policies and with rich similar experience in
such transactions to provide services. The Company will select
experienced operation and management teams to operate and
maintain the acquired project thereafter.

Competition risk — The Company faces competition from local
and international developers of renewable energy power plants.

Our response — The Company has an established track record
in acquiring, developing and operating a high quality and well
diversified portfolio of renewable energy power plants across
the PRC. Our leading market position and extensive experience
in the PRC renewable energy industry give us the opportunity
to participate in renewable energy policy discussions and
enable us to have significant influence in the development
of renewable energy industry related policies and standards.
The Company believes that its significant scale and leading
position in the PRC renewable energy industry provide us with
economies of scale, broad operational experience and resources
base, bargaining power with EPC contractors and suppliers,
and significant industry and regulatory relationships, which
will continue to provide the Company with attractive renewable
energy power plant acquisition and development opportunities.
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Finance risk — Renewable energy business requires intensive
capital investments. Significant amount of capital is required
to meet our capital requirements and fund our operations,
including payments to suppliers for products, equipment
and components and to contractors for design, engineering,
procurement and construction services. Our ability to meet the
payment obligations of our outstanding debt depends on our
ability to generate significant cash flow in the future and obtain
external financing. This, to some extent, is subject to general
economic, financial, competitive, legislative and regulatory
factors as well as other conditions that are beyond our control.

Our response — Our leading position in the PRC renewable
energy industry, the support from the Shareholders and the
strong relationships with our lending banks provide us with
access to a variety of tailored financing solutions, including
onshore solutions, such as finance lease and project finance,
and offshore solutions, such as equity financing through new
shares allotments, and debt financing through the issue of US-
dollar convertible bonds, etc. The Company plans to actively
reduce its financing costs and further diversify its channels of
financing. The Company believes its stable cash flow profile,
the long-term nature of its operation of renewable energy power
plants and its ability to raise equity and debt capital to finance
growth provide it with flexibility to optimise its capital structure.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions
by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to each Director,
all of them have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and our own code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhang Xiao was appointed as the Company Secretary and
the Authorised Representative on 30 July 2019. Ms. Zhang is
an assistant vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited (FEITXRFER (FF) BRLE), a
professional services provider specializing in corporate services,
and has over eleven years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field. Ms. Zhang has been admitted as an associate
member of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom
in 2019. Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Computer
Science from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2010
and a master’s degree in corporate governance from The
Metropolitan University of Hong Kong in 2018. Mr. Zhang Ping,
the Chairman and the executive Director, is the primary contact
of Ms. Zhang at the Company. All Directors have access to
the advice and services of Ms. Zhang to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are
followed. During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Zhang
has taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
according to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

Publication of
financial reports,
announcements,
circulars and
press releases
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Shareholders
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The Company adopted a shareholder communication policy on
26 March 2013, which stipulates the objectives of the Company
in communicating with its Shareholders, both individual and
institutional, and, where appropriate, the investment community
at large. The Company aims to provide its Shareholders timely
and clear information, and allow the Shareholders to engage
actively with the Company in exercising their rights.

Information is communicated to the Shareholders mainly through
general meetings, the Company’s website (http://www.bjei.com)
and corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, notices, announcements and circulars, which are
available on websites of the Company and the HKEXnews and
hard copies of reports and circulars that are despatched to the
Shareholders as requested.

The Board is dedicated to maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in the general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote at the general meetings for and on behalf of them
if they are unable to attend in person. Directors will make an
effort to attend and the external auditor will also be available
at the AGM to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any
general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’
approval, members of the independent board committee of
the Company will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, all votes of the shareholders at general meetings are
taken by poll.

Having considered and reviewed the various existing
channels of communication and the feedbacks from the
Shareholders, investors and analysts, the Board considers
that the shareholder communication policy has been properly
implemented and effective during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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Shareholders’ rights

Calling and putting forward proposals at a general meeting of
the Company

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”), to require
a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business or resolution specified in such requisition. Such
written requisition must be duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned and to be verified by the Company’s share registrar.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

To request to convene a SGM, the requisitionists shall deposit
their requisition in writing, together with the proposals to be
considered at such meeting, at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong as announced by the Company
from time to time and for the attention of the Chairman and
the Company Secretary. The requisition will be verified with
the Company’s share registrar. If it is in order, the Company
Secretary will pass the requisition to the Board for consideration
and a SGM will be convened by sufficient notice to all the
registered Shareholders in accordance with the requirements
under the Bye-Laws. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid,
no SGM will be convened and the requisitionists will be advised
of this outcome.

To put forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written request setting
out the proposals duly signed by the Shareholder concerned at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
as announced by the Company from time to time and for the
attention of the Chairman and the Company Secretary. The
request will be verified by the Company’s share registrar. If it
is in order, the Company Secretary will pass the request to the
Board for consideration. The Board will decide whether it is
valid and appropriate to put such proposals at a Shareholders’
meeting.
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Proposing a candidate for election as a Director at a general
meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 85 of the Bye-Laws, no person other
than a Director retiring at the general meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office (as defined
in the Bye-Laws) provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Accordingly, to nominate a person for election as a Director,
a Shareholder shall lodge a written notice duly signed by the
Shareholder concerned at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong as announced by the Company from time
to time and for the attention of the Company Secretary. In order
for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal, the
written notice must include the following information: (i) the full
name of the person proposed for election as a Director; (ii) the
candidate’s biographical details as required under Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the candidate’s written confirmation
on the willingness to be elected as a Director and written
consent to the publication of the personal data as required by
the Listing Rules. The notice will be verified by the Company’s
share registrar. If it is in order, the Company Secretary will
pass the notice to the Nomination Committee for examination.
The Nomination Committee will assess the suitability of
the candidate proposed by the Shareholder and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship if it thinks fit and appropriate. If
such notice is received by the Company after publication of the
notice of the Shareholders’ meeting concerned, the Company
will publish an announcement or issue a supplemental circular
setting out the particulars of the proposed Director and may
need to adjourn the Shareholders’ meeting as and when
required by the Bye-Laws.
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We have posted on the Company’s website the procedure for
Shareholders to convene and put forward proposals at general
meetings including proposing a person for election as a Director,
and to vote by poll at general meetings.

Enquiries

Shareholders may directly enquire about their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders
and the investment community who have enquiries in respect
of the Company may write to the Company Secretary by
post to Unit 1012, 10/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or by email to
csd@bjei.com.

The Board has reviewed corporate governance practices of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 and this
corporate governance report. It will continue to review, monitor
and improve the policies and practices of the Company for
the purpose of ensuring the compliance of the CG Code and
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution was passed by the Shareholders at the AGM
held on 27 June 2023, approving the amendments and adoption
of the Bye-Laws in order to, among others, conform with the
core shareholder protection standards set out in Appendix Al
to the Listing Rules. The updated Bye-Laws is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEXnews.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
operates its business through its subsidiaries. The Group is
principally engaged in development, investment, operation and
management of power plants and other clean energy projects.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023, and discussion of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. A discussion
on the Group’s likely future business development is provided
in the “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report. Our risk
management system and description of the principal risks and
uncertainties the Company may be facing are provided in the
“Report of Corporate Governance” of this annual report. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2023 using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the “Five-year Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of this
annual report.
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The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.00 cent (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.91 cent)
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: HK1.00 cent (equivalent to approximately
RMBO0.90 cent) per ordinary share). The proposed final dividend
is expected to be paid on Friday, 12 July 2024 to Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 26 June 2024, subject to approval by
the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 18 June
2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 315
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company and its movements
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws,
or Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased a total of 65,906,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration (before expenses) of
approximately HK$14.75 million. All the repurchased Shares
were cancelled on 18 March 2024.
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Particulars of the share repurchase are summarised as follows:

ALz BT ¢

Aggregate

consideration

(before

expenses)

approximately

MARE

Number Purchase price per Share (RetB)

of Shares BREEE B4

Month of repurchase repurchased Highest (HK$) Lowest (HK$) (HK$ million)

FEEAH BERHEE RE (B R{E 1) (BBa®|T)

September 2023 15,500,000 0.218 0.200 3.32
—E=FNA

October 2023 50,406,000 0.242 0.209 11.43

“EBET=%+A

The Board considered that the above share repurchase was
made for the benefit of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole with a view to enhancing the net asset value and earnings
per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution as computed in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to approximately RMB1,839
million.

POVERTY ALLEVIATION AND CHARITABLE
DONATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had made
poverty alleviation and charitable donation of approximately
RMB8 million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB11
million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for approximately 12%
and 80% respectively (31 December 2022: approximately 16%
and 99% respectively) of the Group’s total revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Besides, the total amount of
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of items
which are not of capital nature was less than 30% of the total
purchases of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their close associate(s) or any
substantial shareholder of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or more of the number of
issued shares of the Company) had any interests in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhenwei

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Guoxi
(appointed with effect from 5 June 2023)
Mr. Su Yongjian
Mr. Li Hao
Mr. Lu Xiaoyu
Mr. Zhao Bing
(resigned with effect from 5 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Jin Xinbin
Ms. Li Hongwei
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao

In accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-Laws, at each AGM
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third), shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Mr. Zhang Ping, Mr. Lu Zhenwei and Mr. Su Yongjian, being
one-third of the Directors, shall retire from office by rotation and
be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has
entered into any service contracts with any member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed their independence and considered that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 24 to 32 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed below in the sections headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions”
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year ended
31 December 2023 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2023.

BRrREEFAG TEESF EEHEA
NEBFEAKBEREFI L ERAERR—F
A AEHEEE (/fm,ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁl‘) BN BE T LA#R
LEZRBEEH

ARCCERESBUFATESFRELHR
AE3 13RI FHZ EEBURRE A AF
BREBE BRI ZIESIFEREZEBTL
M URBEEBUFATEZTI/BUA
+o

EEREREEABZEE
KRB ZEERSHhEEBAEZBEZBH
SRR EFRE24E328 ©

EENEAXRZ ZHASHNEDR

BRI HERER S Rira M BBRERM =
362 THBATXRZIZEHMPEEIN XA
BRHEAANB AR MEITAESHEES
EENEREEINBEEEAEGER
BHE_Z_=—F+ZA=+—HILFEH
BREE_S_=—F+_/A=+—HLEE
fi{jﬁFﬁ{Eﬁﬁﬁuﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬁ$$%}%E)\]%k
R ZHREH
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2023 had the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its holding company, or any subsidiary of
its holding company was a party entered into any contract of
significance with the controlling Shareholders or any of their
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered
into for the services provided by the controlling Shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or the chief executives or their associates in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were
as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HHEWY

BEXEW

BRERERFAKEBEEN RBEE_ZT_=F
TR=+T-—HLEFEEAKE A28 %
HEMWBLAR HIERATDIHEZERAF
ZREARBAEMERIERRRIAKEZE
W E AR AERMNERGH  TEMRER
RRIAREZERMMBLFRBFERFH
HEMAMB AR ZRBILERNEREGL

EFRETETHASRKG ERK
PRkiREER 2 E

RIEZ=F+B=+—"H EEHFE
THRAERIFENHBARAR D REEM
¥ OEAE (BB ES MBS KRG SEXVIMAE
ZHE) ZEMKRM HERMD NGB T
BB AKRABIREESRPEKAF 5352
BEEZELMA > XERE SRR
CIFTE 2 BETFAISTTH G A RA B KB R FR
ZRmRFEBWT

REQBDROREMRGZITFE

Number Total number
of Shares/ of Shares/ Approximate

underlying Shares underlying Shares percentage of the
Name of Director(s) or held held issued Shares™”
chief executive(s) Capacity/Nature of interest FR¥FRR1T FR¥FIR1T LB BTRH
EEYTETHAEYA Bin/ EEtE HHRAR D 8 E MHRAR (D 48 & ZEEANE
Mr. Zhang Ping Beneficial owner 7,000,000 31,000,000 0.14%
RERE BEEBEBA 24,000,000
Mr. Liu Guoxi Beneficial owner 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.06%
EELE BEmBEREA
Mr. Zhu Jun Beneficial owner 1,200,000 29,250,000 0.13%
KERE EmBEBA 28,050,000
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Notes:

1. These percentages are calculated based on 22,399,550,432
listed Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

2. These are the Shares underlying the share options were granted
by the Company on 16 June 2022 under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 15 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executives or their associates had any interests and
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Bye-Laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all actions and losses which he/she may incur or
sustain in or about the execution and discharge of the duties of
his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto, to the extent as
permitted by law.

Furthermore, during the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance to protect the current directors
of the Group and the directors of the Group who resigned during
the Year against potential costs and liabilities arising from
claims brought against them. The permitted indemnity provision
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended
31 December 2023 for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

RELIEF FROM TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

By sE

1. ZEELSLER-_BE_=F+"H=+—H
B 8£1722,399,550,4320% F A 5T & o
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EPARFRE Z M) ZEMRMD BRI R EE
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RIEEZEEMA T2ESTFNEERN FESR
EEEMEBRTRIITHBHIELERM A
MIE R TMAUEERI T 2 —FeA R1E
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—t+—HEEEERERMEBENESE R
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FFEEZ BETERRBEEE - ENESF
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above and “Share Option Scheme” below, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 was the
Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries, or any
subsidiaries of its holding company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights
during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in (i) the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below, (ii) the issue and/or movement of equity/
convertible securities as described in the section headed
“Fundraising Activities Through Issue of Equity/Convertible
Securities” below and (iii) as set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group during the Year, or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to further establish a long-term incentive mechanism
closely linked to the Company’s performance and long-term
strategy, the Shareholders approved the adoption of a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) at the SGM held on
15 June 2022.
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Details of the share options granted under the Share Option WREE_Z _=F+_HA=+—HBLFE
Scheme to Directors, chief executive of the Company and R iREEREAIAES AR TEBTH
employees of the Group and movement in such holding during ABRERAEERESH ZEREREES 2

the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows: SEIBWE
Changes during the year
EREH
Closing price
of Shares
hefore the Outstanding
date of grant Outstanding at31
Exercise (HKS$/share) at 1 January December
price REHEH 2023 2023
(HK$/share) Azl RIBZ= RZZZ=
Grantees Date of grant TfEE K -B-H Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed +=B=1—H Exercise period
EEA RHASH (ERA) (BREE) HRTR Rl 1 ENOR b3t WA E{TRAE
1. Directors
g3
Mr. Zhang Ping 16 June 2022 0.240 0.242 24,000,000 - - - - 24,000,000 16 June 2024 to
RERE it 2 15 June 2027
~ATRE ZETRE
~A+RE
EIZtE
~AtTRERY
Mr. Liu Guoxi® 16 June 2022 0.240 0.242 - - - 13,000,000 - 13,000,000 16 June 2024 to
HEEREY “BIE 15 June 2027
~ATRH ZZIRE
~ATAH
EIECtE
~AtTREY
2. Chief Executive Officer
BRHAE
Mr. Zhu Jun 16 June 2022 0.240 0.242 28,050,000 - - - - 28,050,000 16 June 2024 to
RERE “BICE 15 June 2027
~ATRH ZZIRE
~ATAE
EIZTtE
~ATREY
3. Other senior officers 16 June 2022 0.240 0.242 375,690,000 - - (13,000,000) (31,710,000 330,980,000 16 June 2024 to
and employees 7% 15 June 2027
HtISREEAS ~ATRE “ETRE
kiEg 7~At+7iA
EIZCtE
~ATRERY
15 June 2023 0.200 0.198 - 90,700,000 - - - 90,700,000 15 June 2025 to
“3°-F 14 June 2028
~ATEH ZEZCRf
~ATER
EIZI)\E
~ATEAY
Total 427,740,000 90,700,000 - - (31,710,000) 486,730,000
&3
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Notes:

(1) All share options granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme shall vest in three tranches within a period of 3 years
in proportions of 34%, 33% and 33%, i.e. 34% of the share
options (the “Tranche 1”) granted shall vest on 2nd anniversary
of the grant, another 33% (the “Tranche 2") shall vest on the 3rd
anniversary of the grant, and the remaining 33% (the “Tranche
3”) shall vest on the 4th anniversary of the grant. For the share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme in this table,
“exercise period” begins with the 2nd anniversary of the grant
date. None of the grantee has been granted share options
representing more than 1% of the total issued shares of the
Company.

(2) Mr. Liu Guoxi has been appointed as non-executive Director with
effect from 5 June 2023. Accordingly, the details of share options
granted to him is separately disclosed under the category of
“Directors” in the table above.

A summary of principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set
out below:

On 15 June 2022, the Company adopted the Share Option
Scheme at the SGM, under which the Board may, at its
discretion, offer to grant share option(s) to (i) Directors, (ii)
senior management of the Company, (iii) core management
and technical and business personnel of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and (iv) core technical personnel
and key management personnel of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries who, in the opinion of the Board, will have a
direct impact on the overall operating results and sustainable
development of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain
and motivate the Company’s outstanding talents, establish a
long-term incentive mechanism closely linked to the Company’s
performance and long-term strategy, and closely link the
Company’s management and core employees with the interests
of the Company and its shareholders, thereby further enhancing
the Company’s value.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
(i.e. 2,242,794,843 Shares) unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from the Shareholders. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the maximum number of Shares in respect of which
share options may be granted together with any share options
outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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By 5E

(1) ARABIRBEERESSREZRMABRER
#34% 33% K% 33%ELFIMRIELAB A D = HEER
B BNFriR KRR 2 34% (ME—Ht)) HE
HmmiBERE > B9033% (ME ) BRE
Hm=BERB Mk ~33% (MFE=4t1) &
R IYE E 5B o AR P IRIS BB AR 5 B
2 BRI T TR AR B Emm B
ERB - MEARAERGEATBETRGS
HEH1%L ERIBERGE o
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each participant
(including exercised and outstanding share options) in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue.

Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
deemed to have been granted and accepted by the grantee and
to have taken effect when the Company receives the relevant
granting document duly signed by the grantee on date of grant.

The exercise price for the Shares in respect of any particular
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

The number of Shares in relation to the share options available
for grant under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January
2023 and 31 December 2023 were 1,815,054,843 Shares
and 1,756,064,843 Shares respectively. As at the date of this
annual report, 2,242,794,843 Shares were available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme, representing approximately
10.04% of the Company’s total number of issued Shares as
at the date of this annual report. No share option has been
cancelled during the Year. The number of Shares that may be
issued in respect of share options granted under all schemes of
the Company during the Year (i.e. 90,700,000 Shares) divided
by the weighted average number of Shares in issue for the Year
(i.e. 22,399,550,432 Shares) is approximately 0.4%.

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of
six years from the date of its adoption. As at 31 December
2023, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme was
approximately 4.5 years.

REFM+ZEARER RFTEKB2EEZRE
R (BREETERERTEZERE) T
TEREETRBTETZRODBE ~15
BEEHITRMBEBILI%

ERREREEABRANRBEHEHEXAREZEN
ERERTXMAE REBRESSREZE
B AE RN AR 1F B [ AR AR H I B AR AR A
By BEEM -

RIBFERES B RENEAS EBRERY
RERMDZITEBEASUTEEZESE !

() HBXFANERUBH (ARAREXH S8R
BERATZRDESHE;

(i) RERHEAMAMLEEXEMIAEH
BERAITZRDFHESHE ;S &

(i) BRAPEE-

N_E_=—F—H—HBRERZEZ=ZF+=
B=+—H BREFSETIHEHER
R RN EE D RIA1,815,054,843
§%521,756,064,8438% - IR AR EZR HEF > B8
RS 8I18 2,242,794,843K & (FBE
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The recognition of compensation cost of share options is based
on their fair values of the share options on grant date. The fair
values of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
during the Year measured at the date of grant were determined
by using binomial model. The significant assumptions used in
the model to derive the fair value were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HHEWY

HENERENBMA AT REBRER RS
BfzZAREMSE REAFEREBERE
STEIRENERENREE B ENARE
ThERZRANREEE - ERE P fE A LUE
BRARBEBZEABRAT :

16 June 2022 15 June 2023

Date of grant —E-= —E-=
R B ~NB+7<H ~NAB+EHH
Risk-free rate Tranche 1 35—t : 2.971% 3.640%
mE A= Tranche 2 55 —#t : 3.013% 3.534%
Tranche 3 S5 =4t : 3.035% 3.451%
Expected volatility 50.256% 45.317%
FEHR R &
Expected dividend yield 0% 4.63%
TEHIRE X
Life of share options (years) Tranche 1 55—t : 3 years () 3 years (F)
BT (5) Tranche 2 55 —#t : 4 years () 4 years (£F)
Tranche 3 5 =1t : 5 years (£F) 5 years (£F)
Fair value (HK$ million) 42.0 5.1

AREBEEET)

After vesting, when the share options are forfeited prior to the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the “Share-
based payment reserve” will be transferred to the “accumulated
losses” within the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The fair value calculated inherently subjective and uncertain due
to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model used.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the register of substantial
Shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO shows that the following persons (other
than those disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures”) had notified the Company or the Stock Exchange
of relevant interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company.

BEER SERENREWBRIHORY TR
TR D BB R DB AR
BREROEnEHRITRFBIE R

EFTEHIBRRRFTAREENRE > AnE
WEtE S THATEEMD

FERRNRGREMRGFZEDR
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the RERXB RN RERARSZIFE
Company
Number of Total number of Approximate
Shares/underlying  Shares/underlying percentage of the
Shares held Shares held issued Shares”/
Name of Shareholder(s) Capacity/Nature of interest FrisRRin,/ FiisRM,/ EEBTRMD
BR#ESR/ 25 a7/ Bt HERAEE TRRRAEH ZBHERLY
Beijing Energy Investment Beneficial Owner 7,176,943,4987 7,176,943,498 32.04%
REERE BREEAA
CMG Interest in controlled corporation 2,388,607,089¢ 3,399,675,329 15.18%
BEREE N 5
Interest in parties acting in concert 1,011,068,240

pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of SFO
REES R RAIBTRARAE R
R-BIBALz#E

CMNEG Beneficial owner 579,944,250 3,399,675,329 15.18%
RENERER BaEBA
Interest in parties acting in concert 1,519,518,5137

pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of SFO

REESRHSRAETRAREGAN-DITHA L2 RE

Other 1,300,212,566
Hifr
NEX Beneficial owner 274,055,449 2,099,462,763 9.37%
BREEAA
Interest in controlled corporation 186,627,621
REEEEz#R
Interest in parties acting in concert 1,638,779,6937

pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of SFO
REZSRBRIRAIETRAAT R
R-BTBALZ#R

China Huarong Interest in controlled corporation 3,040,799,9339 3,040,799,933 13.58%
FEER REEEEz G

Huaqing Solar Power Limited Beneficial owner 3,048,750,000¢ 3,048,750,000 13.61%
EERRERAT BREEAA

China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited Investment manager 1,564,591,933 1,564,591,933 6.98%
EEE$ (EH) BRAT RERE

China Merchants Securities Interest in controlled corporation 1,355,624,93740 1,355,624,937 6.05%
BERS N A 5

China Structural Reform Fund Co., Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,216,793,3094 1,216,793,309 5.43%

(“China Structural Reform”) REEEEz 5

TEEErEERBEREERNBRAR
(r BRREREE)
Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation 1,216,793,3094 1,216,793,309 5.43%
TEBEHERTRHERAS REEZEZ#H
Zeng Xiangyi Beneficial owner 7,903,800 2,107,366,563 9.41%
2z BafEBA
Beneficiary of a trust 6,403,200%%
REZHEA
Interest in controlled corporation 50,948,548
REELE #h
Interest in parties acting in concert 2,042,111,015%

pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of SFO
REESRAERA ENTER R T HE
R-=BIBALz#E

Notes: Mo -

1. These percentages are calculated based on 22,399,550,432 1. ZZEEDHEIER-_Z-_=F+"F=+—H
listed Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023. B81722,399,550,4328 EHRDET & -
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These Shares were held by Beijing Energy Investment, which is a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of BEH.

(i) 508,450,273 Shares were held by Snow Hill Developments
Limited (“Snow Hill”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CMG;
(if) 579,944,250 Shares were held by CMNEG, which is indirectly
owned as to 79.36% by CMG; (iii) the economic interests of
1,216,793,309 Shares were beneficially owned by Shenzhen
Guotiao China Merchants Merger and Acquisition Equity Investment
Fund (LP)* (RYIEFEEEHERELEESSRLE (BRER))
(“Shenzhen Guotiao”) via an agreement between Shenzhen Guotiao
and China Merchants Technology Investment (ShenZhen) Co.,
Ltd.* (RYITBEEREEERR2AE) (“Shenzhen Technology
Investment”), and an agreement between Shenzhen Technology
Investment and Bosera Asset Management Co., Limited* (1BRFE
2 EIEERAT) (“Bosera Asset”). Shenzhen Guotiao is managed
by Shenzhen City China Merchants Huihe Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Limited* (RIITIBAEEREREESERES
fR/AF]) as general partner, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
CMG; and (iv) the economic interests of 83,419,257 Shares were
beneficially owned by Shenzhen City Guoxie First Equity Investment
Fund (LP)* CRIITEG—HREREESSBEE (BRE
%£)) (“Guoxie First”) via an agreement between Guoxie First and
Shenzhen Technology Investment, and an agreement between
Shenzhen Technology Investment and Bosera Asset. Guoxie First
is managed by Shenzhen City China Merchants Guoxie First Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Limited* CFIITEEE %= 5%
RIEREESEEARAT) as general partner, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of CMG.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert with CMNEG, including NEX, Pairing Venture Limited,
Magicgrand Group Limited and Sino Arena Investments Limited,
pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO. CMG was
taken to be interested in 1,011,068,240 Shares.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.
CMNEG was taken to be interested in 1,519,518,513 Shares.

Shenzhen Guotiao and Guoxie First, being the associates of
CMNEG, beneficially own 1,216,793,309 Shares and 83,419,257
Shares respectively.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.
NEX was taken to be interested in 1,638,779,693 Shares.

These Shares were held by China Huarong Overseas Investment
Holdings Co., Limited (FEIZERI/BIMEEERBIRAE), which
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Huarong Huagiao Asset
Management Co., Ltd. GERIZEBEEBIERMD AR AE), owned
as to 91% by Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd.
CERMBUaREBEBREMAR). Huarong Zhiyuan Investment
& Management Co., Ltd. is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Huarong.
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10.

11.

12.

k3%

14.

iS58

16.

17.

These Shares were held by Huaqing Solar Power Limited, which is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of QCCI.

Among these Shares, 55,412,371 Shares were held by China
Merchants Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (BEESEEFREA
TJ), which is owned as to 45% by China Merchants Securities, and
1,300,212,566 Shares were held by Bosera Asset, which is owned
as to 49% by China Merchants Securities.

The economic interests of these Shares were beneficially owned
by Shenzhen Guotiao, which is owned as to 75.81% by China
Structural Reform. China Structural Reform is indirectly owned as
to 38.2% by CCB Trust Co. Ltd.* (E{EELHEMREMEAE)and
22.9% by China Chengtong Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (H7 & & &
EEEABRE/AF]), and managed by Chengtong Fund Management
Co., Ltd.* GlBE = EIEHRAE)) as general partner.

Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd.* (FREEES B $R17AR1D
BBR/AE))is beneficiary of a trust named CCB Trust — Indus tree
collective fund trust plan (asset allocation class 26 investment
unity* (BIEEE — BiREESESE2 (BEREH26REK

B8 7T)) which has long position of these Shares.

These Shares were held by Sino Arena Investments Limited under a
trust arrangement.

These Shares were held by Sino Arena Investments Limited, which
is wholly owned by Zeng Xiangyi.

These Shares were held by a group of Shareholders acting in
concert pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.

Based on the record of disclosure of interests on the Stock
Exchange, Mr. Li Alan beneficially owned 99,005,000 Shares and
had interest in controlled corporation of 510,859,422 Shares
as at 31 December 2023. He was also taken to be interested
in 3,071,800,907 Shares in parties acting in concert pursuant
to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO. To facilitate
effective investor relations, the Company conducted a shareholder
identification exercise according to Section 329 of the SFO in
March 2024. The results showed that Mr. Li Alan had interest in
controlled corporation of 493,033,422 Shares and was taken to
be interested in 2,906,641,907 Shares in parties acting in concert
pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO as at 31
December 2023.

Further to the Shareholders as set out above, as at 31 December
2023, each of Sino Arena Investments Limited, Magicgrand Group
Limited and Pairing Venture Limited, was holding 57,351,748
Shares, 492,515,935 Shares and 517,487 Shares respectively,
each being a party acting in concert with CMNEG, Snow Hill and
NEX pursuant to an agreement under Section 317 of the SFO.

10.

11.

12.

IS

14.

153

16.

17.
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Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors are not aware of any other person (not
being a Director or chief executive) who, as at 31 December
2023, had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO or who (other than a member of the Group)
was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of continuing connected transactions that are
subject to the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2023 is as below:

A. Provision of Solar Electricity by the Group to Sinotrans
Logistics and its Affiliates

On 16 December 2014, China Merchants Zhangzhou
Development Zone Silk Road Ark Carbon Asset
Management Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, and
Sinotrans Logistics Ltd. (“Sinotrans Logistics”) entered
into a rooftop solar power plants framework agreement
(the “Rooftop Solar Power Plants Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which, among others, Sinotrans Logistics
agreed to lease to the Group certain rooftops of five
of warehouses, distribution centres and other logistics
network buildings being built or to be built by Sinotrans
Logistics.
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On 30 November 2016, pursuant to the Rooftop Solar
Power Plants Framework Agreement, the Group entered
into the following power purchase agreements with the
designated subsidiaries of Sinotrans Logistics for the sale
of electricity generated by the rooftop solar power plants
installed by the Group on the rooftop leased for a term of
20 years:

(a) power purchase agreement entered into between
Kunming Bangye New Energy Power Company Limited
and China Merchants Logistics Group Yunnan Co., Ltd.
for the sale of electricity generated from a 2.4MW
rooftop solar power plant located in Kunming, the PRC;
and

(b) power purchase agreement entered into between
Ningbo Bonded Area Zhaolian Lvbang New Energy
Company Limited and China Merchants Logistics
Group Ningbo Co., Ltd. for the sale of electricity
generated from a 3MW rooftop solar power plant
located in Ningbo, the PRC.

((a) — (b) together, the “Power Purchase Agreements”)

Term — 20 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness
between Sinotrans Logistics and the Group, electricity
will be supplied at a unit price which shall be calculated
based on the government prescribed price (exclusive of
tax) with a discount rate of 14% per kWh having considered
the nature of the long term electricity supply agreement,
the projected consumption of electricity generated by the
rooftop solar power plants installed at the leased rooftops
from subsidiaries of Sinotrans Logistics with favourable
lease terms to the Group and comparable prices offered to
independent consumers by other electricity suppliers with
a discount at the range of 15% to 10%. The government
prescribed price on the supply of electricity is determined
by the price bureau of the relevant provincial governments,
which is subject to adjustment from time to time.
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Sinotrans Logistics is a subsidiary of CMG, and a
fellow subsidiary of CMNEG, which is (together with its
parties acting in concert) a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Therefore, Sinotrans Logistics and
its subsidiaries are associates of CMNEG, hence,
connected persons of the Company. Accordingly, the above
transactions constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Rooftop Photovoltaic Power Generation Project
Agreement and its Supplemental Agreement

On 10 May 2022, BEIED (a subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the rooftop photovoltaic power generation
project agreement (the “Rooftop Photovoltaic Power
Generation Project Agreement”) with China Merchants
Bonded Logistics Co., Ltd. (“CMBL"), pursuant to which (i)
CMBL shall lease to BEIED the rooftops of two warehouses
located in Shenzhen for the investment, construction,
maintenance, operation and management of rooftop solar
photovoltaic power systems by the Group to meet the
business plan of the Group for rooftop solar photovoltaic
power systems; and (ii) CMBL shall give preference to using
the electricity generated by the aforesaid rooftop solar
photovoltaic power systems installed at the rooftops leased
under the Rooftop Photovoltaic Power Generation Project
Agreement and operated by the Group. The rooftop leases
shall be recognised as right-of-use assets of the Group
and constituted a one-off connected transaction of the
Company.

On the same day, BEIED, Shenzhen Qianhai Jingping New
Energy Technology Service Co., Ltd. (“Qianhai Jingping”)
(a subsidiary of the Company) and CMBL entered into the
supplemental agreement, pursuant to which, among others,
it was agreed by the parties that Qianhai Jingping, as the
project company, shall (i) assume the obligation to pay the
rental for the rooftop leases under the Rooftop Photovoltaic
Power Generation Project Agreement on behalf of BEIED;
and (ii) have the rights to receive the relevant electricity
fee from CMBL for using the electricity generated from the
rooftop solar photovoltaic power systems.
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Term — 20 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps and other terms of the supplemental
agreement of Rooftop photovoltaic power generation project
were determined with reference to the designed capacity of
the rooftop solar photovoltaic power systems, the current
unit price of electricity prescribed by the relevant power
supply bureau, estimates of volume of electricity to be
generated by the rooftop solar photovoltaic power systems,
and the current development plan of the Group for the
rooftop solar photovoltaic power systems at the leased
rooftops from CMBL.

As CMBL is an associate of CMG, the substantial
shareholder of the Company, CMBL is therefore a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the power
purchases contemplated under the Rooftop Photovoltaic
Power Generation Project Agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2022-2025 Finance Lease Business Framework
Agreement and its Supplemental Agreement

On 17 November 2022, the Company and Beijing Jingneng
Leasing entered into the 2022-2025 finance lease
business framework agreement (the “2022-2025 Finance
Lease Business Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
Beijing Jingneng Leasing and/or its associate companies
shall provide financial leasing services, including but not
limited to, direct leasing and sales and leaseback services
to the Group for three years from 1 December 2022 to
30 November 2025, subject to the terms and conditions
provided therein.

On 3 November 2023, the Company and Beijing Jingneng
Leasing entered into the supplemental agreement, pursuant
to which the annual cap under the 2022-2025 Finance
Lease Business Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 has been revised to RMB6,000 million.
Save for the aforesaid amendment, all other terms and
conditions of the 2022-2025 Finance Lease Business
Framework Agreement remain unchanged.
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Term — 3 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps and other terms of the 2022-2025
Finance Lease Business Framework Agreement (as
supplemented by the supplemental agreement) were
determined with reference to the scale of the upcoming
power generation projects in construction, historical
financial requirements of power generation projects, sales
and leaseback services to be provided by Beijing Jingneng
Leasing based on existing lease, expected interest incurred
or to be incurred under the 2022-2025 Finance Lease
Business Framework Agreement and its supplemental
agreement and market price of the same type of finance
lease assets.

As Beijing Jingneng Leasing is a subsidiary of BEH,
Beijing Jingneng Leasing is a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, 2022-2025 Finance Lease Business
Framework Agreement with its supplemental agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2023-2025 Financial Services Framework Agreement

On 17 November 2022, the Company and BEH Finance
entered into the 2023-2025 financial services framework
agreement (the “2023-2025 Financial Services Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which BEH Finance shall provide
deposit services, loan services and other financial services
to the Group for three years ending 31 December 2025,
subject to the terms and conditions provided therein.
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Term — 3 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps for the maximum daily deposit balance
(including any interest accrued thereon) and other terms of
deposit services were determined with reference to, among
others, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at
30 June 2022 and the expected interest income from BEH
Finance. The annual caps and other terms of other financial
services were determined with reference to, among
others, the newly engagement of business by BEH Finance
in multiple areas, including but not limited to financial
consulting, credit verification and related consulting and
agency services, provision of guarantees, entrusted loan
and entrusted investment, internal transfer settlement, the
relevant historical transaction amount between the Group
and independent third parties which provided the same
service to the Group and the Group’s expected demand
for other financial services covered by the 2023-2025
Financial Services Framework Agreement.

As BEH Finance is a subsidiary of BEH, BEH Finance
is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
2023-2025 Financial Services Framework Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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F(i).

Commercial Factoring Business Framework Agreement

On 17 August 2021, the Company and Shenzhen Jingneng
Leasing entered into the commercial factoring business
framework agreement (the “Commercial Factoring Business
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhen
Jingneng Leasing agreed to provide factoring business
services to the Group for the three years ended 31
December 2023, subject to the terms and conditions
provided therein.

Term — 3 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps and other terms of the Commercial
Factoring Business Framework Agreement were determined
with reference to the historical recovery amount of
government subsidies from the Group’s renewable power
generation projects, the expected sales of electricity
volume of its renewable power generation projects and the
corresponding amount of new energy subsidy receivables
receivable by the Group, based on the current installed
capacity of the Group’s solar power plants in operation,
the prevailing market conditions of the fees charged for
commercial factoring services and the availability of capital
funding for the factoring business services of Shenzhen
Jingneng Leasing.

As Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing is a subsidiary of BEH,
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing is a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the Commercial Factoring Business
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Catering Service Agreement 1

On 11 January 2023, BEJN International Holding Co.,
Ltd. (“BEJN”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Beijing Energy Service Management Co., Ltd. (Beijing
Branch Company) (“BESM Beijing”) entered into a staff
canteen service agreement (the “Catering Service
Agreement 1”), pursuant to which BESM Beijing agreed to
provide, among others, corporate catering services for the
staff at the Beijing Headquarters for the period from 11
January 2023 to 25 January 2024.
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F(ii). Catering Service Agreement 2

On 19 January 2023, BEJN International Comprehensive
Smart Energy Co., Ltd. (“BEJN Comprehensive”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and BESM Beijing
entered into a catering service agreement (the “Catering
Service Agreement 2"), pursuant to which BESM Beijing
agreed to provide, among others, corporate catering
services for BEJN Comprehensive's staff for the period from
no later than 31 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

F(iii). Catering Service Agreement 3

On 19 January 2023, BEJN International Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (North China Branch Company) (“BEJN North China”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and BESM
Beijing entered into a catering service agreement (the
“Catering Service Agreement 3”), pursuant to which BESM
Beijing agreed to provide, among others, corporate catering
services for BEJN North China's staff for the period from
20 January 2023 to 19 January 2024.

F(iv). Catering Service Agreement 4

On 31 March 2023, Beijing Energy Sembcorp (Hainan)
International Renewables Company Limited (“BES Hainan”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and BESM
Beijing entered into a catering service agreement (the
“Catering Service Agreement 47), pursuant to which BESM
Beijing agreed to provide, among others, corporate catering
services for BES Hainan's staff for the period from 31
March 2023 to 30 March 2024.
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Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps and other terms of the catering service
agreements mentioned above were determined with
reference to the payment terms of the service fees payable
under the respective catering service agreements, including
but not limited to the fixed service fees, the catering fees
and other fees, and the number of employees and guests
of the Group and the expected fluctuations in such number
as well as the expected costs to be incurred in relation to
the catering service personnel, labour costs, raw material,
utensils and other consumables.

As BESM Beijing is a subsidiary of BEH, BESM Beijing
is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the
Catering Service Agreement 1, Catering Service Agreement
2, Catering Service Agreement 3 and Catering Service
Agreement 4 and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2024-2025 Comprehensive Services Framework
Agreements

On 29 December 2023, the Company and BEH entered
into the 2024-2025 comprehensive services framework
agreement (the “2024-2025 Comprehensive Services
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which BEH Group
agreed to provide comprehensive services, including (i)
property management services, including but not limited
to cleaning, security, front desk and catering services;
(ii) administrative services, including but not limited to
ticketing, car rental, consulting and training services; (iii)
power plant operation and management services, including
operation management and maintenance services of
power plants and projects; and (iv) information technology
services to the Group for two years from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2025.
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Term — 2 years.

Pricing — Having negotiated on an arm’s length basis
according to the principles of fairness and reasonableness,
the annual caps and other terms of the 2024-2025
Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement were
determined with reference to the historical transaction
amounts of the comprehensive services provided by BEH
Group, the expected increase in demand for procurement
of the comprehensive services from BEH Group which is
in line with the development of the Group’s business as
a result of the stable relationship between the Group and
BEH since the completion of the subscription of the Shares
by BEH in February 2020, the prevailing market rates and
the estimated increase in market rates to be charged for
these services to be received attributable to the increase in
operating costs.

As BEH is a substantial shareholder of the Company, BEH is
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the 2024—
2025 Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following table sets out the actual transaction
amount and the proposed annual caps for the year ended
31 December 2023 in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions:

Continuing Connected Transactions
RERERS

HAPR — 2%F

EE — REBATREERIAFE
m _E_NEE_E_LERARE
ERBZEZEELREEMBERTDES
EZBEHEEBERMHNGERB 2 BAERS
£ %8  MBEHE B BLE S RFENEKTE
G (HRBREERR S TEFZ
BSER R ERMEAREBEREEER
FBET BWEFTaAERERERE) 7
THERBEREERES LA BEZZE
R LA EBNESIEREMETE -

HRAEERAARARTINEERE K
REEEAERRBZHAB AL AL 1R
B EHREFE4AZ ) _E_WEE_F
ThERERBERBERAEE T RE
TR ZERAABINFERERS

TR AR LAKEREXSHET
T ZF+_A=+—HLEFEZER
RpEBRAERFELR

Transaction Annual cap for
amount for the the year ended
year ended 31 31 December

December 2023 2023
BE_Z=F #®EIZTZ=

+=ZA=+—-B +ZR=+-—-H

Major type of products/services LtEEZ LFEZ
TEERRFER

REEHE FELR

A.  Sale of electricity by the Group to the Solar electricity
designated subsidiaries of Sinotrans KIZEEEN
Logistics under the Power Purchase
Agreements
AEEREZZEEHARRINEYR
MIEEMRBATIHEEN
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Transaction
amount for the
year ended 31

Annual cap for
the year ended
31 December

December 2023 2023

BEZZZ-= HE—ZT-=
+-B=+—H +ZHA=+-H
Continuing Connected Transactions Major type of products/services ItEEZ LHFEEZ
RERERS FTEERREER RAEHE FELR
B.  Sale of electricity by the Group to CMBL Solar electricity RMB2.41 million RMB5million
under the Rooftop Photovoltaic Power ABEEEN AR¥E241F 8T ARESEE T

Generation Project Agreement and its
supplemental agreement
FEERBEBENAREEEEHE R
MRBEARERRRENTHES N

C.  Provision of direct leasing and sales and
leaseback services by Beijing Jingneng
Leasing to the Group under the 2022-
2025 Finance Lease Business Framework
Agreement and its supplemental agreement
IEFERERE S FE T REF
MEHEEBERGZREB AR AE
BiRHEEEAEREEDHERY

D.  Provision of financial services by BEH Finance
to the Group under the 2023-2025 Financial
Services Framework Agreement
REMBRE_S_ZFFE_T_IESH
RBERBEAANERRH SRR

E.  Provision of factoring services by Shenzhen
Jingneng Leasing to the Group under the
Commercial Factoring Business Framework
Agreement
RN R AEEEREH R REEFERBED
FEBRMRERS

F(i). Provision of corporate catering services
by BESM Beijing to the staff at the Beijing
Headquarters under Catering Service
Agreement 1 @
RERBIERRBER N HELAILREE
B TIRMEXEMRT @

F(ii). Provision of corporate catering services
by BESM Beijing to the staff of BEJN
Comprehensive under Catering Service
Agreement 2 @
RAERBIRBREARRB HE2R I RREE
REMNBIRECEEHRRH @

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLnifERBIREPERA TR

Direct leasing and sales and

leaseback services

BEEMEEREROERS

Deposit services

TR

Other financial services

Hi % R AR

Total factoring amount
BRIEEEE

Factoring service fees

RIERHBE

Corporate catering services

EEREMRS

Corporate catering services

EERERRS

RMB4,560 million RMB6,000 million

AR#45605E T

AE 16,000

BETT

RMB4,630 million

RMB5,000 million

ARM4630HB T AR 5,000
BET
Nil RMB25 million

T  ARE2BEETT

Nil  RMBZ,000 million
ZT AR#1,0008& 7T

Nil RMB150 million

T ARMEIS0EET

RMB6.68 million RMB9.4 million
AEH6.68E8T ARKI4EETR
RMBO.39 million RMBZ.7 million
AR0.398T ARKLTEET
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Continuing Connected Transactions
REMERS

Maijor type of products/services

TEERRBER

Transaction
amount for the
year ended 31

Annual cap for
the year ended
31 December

F(iii). Provision of corporate catering services by
BESM Beijing to the staff of BEJN North
China under Catering Service Agreement 3
RAERBIERBRERRBHEIR L RREE
ENETRECERRRHE @

F(iv). Provision of corporate catering services by
BESM Beijing to the staff of BES Hainan
under Catering Service Agreement 4 4
RERBIERRBEENRB BRI RERBR
BENETRECESNRSE @

Notes:

Corporate catering services

TERERRS

Corporate catering services
TEERR

December 2023 2023
HE_T_”-= HEE—_E-=
+ZB=+—H +ZB=+—H
tFEEZ LtEEZ
RAEE FELR
RMBO0.65 million RMB1.8 million
ARM#0.6588 T ARKISHET
RMBO0.15 million RMBO.4 million

ARE¥0.1588 T ARK04EET

Mt -

W The period of transaction amount and annual cap of Catering @
Service Agreement 1 commenced from 11 January 2023.

@ The period of transaction amount and annual cap of Catering @
Service Agreement 2 commenced from 31 January 2023.

©®  The period of transaction amount and annual cap of Catering @
Service Agreement 3 commenced from 20 January 2023.

@ The period of transaction amount and annual cap of Catering @
Service Agreement 4 commenced from 31 March 2023.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; (iii)
in accordance with the pricing policy of the Group; and (iv) in
accordance with the relevant written agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and are in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Board confirms that the Company’s auditor has issued the
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group in this annual report in accordance with rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.
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In respect of the disclosed continuing connected transactions,
the Company’s auditor has confirmed to the Board that:

(a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group;

(c) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out in the table of
continuing connected transactions above, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the
amount of the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Save for the transactions disclosed above, all applicable
percentage ratios of the annual caps of the other continuing
connected transactions which took place during the year ended
31 December 2023 are lower than 5% and the annual caps are
all less than HK$3 million, and are therefore fully exempted
from independent shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements.

Details of the significant related party transactions of the
Group are set out in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in the section head “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of this annual report, those significant
related party transactions of the Group constituted continuing
connected transactions but were exempted from the reporting,
announcement, annual review and/or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MATFTHREZFEBEAEZIZME » AR %
HEEmEFERER

(a) HFUWEIRIEMNEFESHMBEER
BNREBEREXZREESTHE

(b) BEAEBMIRHE RARB S BB
SoRETEIEINEMNEESEHRAE
*%Tﬂijﬁﬁ TERBAEINTE
BERET;

(c) ﬁfimieJEﬁ$EAAﬁ#”
ERERSTHEERBEREZERZH
BEAWET L ; &

(d) ?ft%iﬁ%%%ﬁ%_ A RIS IBSER
RBZBEEMs  RELEIRE
ETU%IEA/HWE.E%)}Z%Zﬁ%EEEL
SHBEBAARNBTIULNEE LR

=

BULFRBERZN AEBBRE_T =
fE-i— B=+—BHLEEEXENHEMITER

RENEELROAMEERABDLEXRHE
E\ 5% BFfEFE LIREENRBEIBEE T
HitEEEHBARBTEURRMLE - FEE
RMPTAERERTE -

ERAEREERRBEA LR ZFBEHNER
B BIMRMEEI6(b) o FRANF IR [HERAE ST
51 —HREEN AEBZZFEARE
AR GBRFEERERS HERRET
EHRAUBUAAER TR -RE - FEER
R/ SRB I PR ERHE AR E ©

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %  —4E4EH



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION UNDER
RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 11 April 2023, the Company (as borrower) entered into a
facility letter (the “Facility Agreement”) with China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“China Construction Bank”)
(as lender) and BEH (as guarantor) in relation to a loan facility
for the purpose of financing the general working capital of the
Group and refinancing the debts of the Group. Pursuant to and
subject to the satisfaction of the conditions precedent and
conditions subsequent set out in the Facility Agreement, China
Construction Bank agreed to make available to the Company, a
committed term loan facility of up to US$125 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB861 million) (the “Loan Facility”). The final
repayment date of the Loan Facility will be the date falling 1 year
after the first utilisation date of the Loan Facility, and utilisation
date is the date on which the relevant loan is to be drawn.

The Facility Agreement provided that if at any time: (i) BEH
ceases to be, directly or indirectly, the single largest shareholder
of the Company; or (ii) the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of People’'s Government of Beijing
Municipality (“Beijing SASAC”) ceases to be, directly or indirectly,
the single largest shareholder of BEH; or (iii) the Beijing SASAC
ceases to be able to direct the affairs of BEH and/or to control
the composition of the board of directors or equivalent body
of BEH, then the Loan Facility may, upon notification by China
Construction Bank, be cancelled and all outstanding amounts
will become immediately due and payable.

For further details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 11 April 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to date of this
annual report, no Director is considered to have interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, other than those business of which the Directors
were appointed as Directors to represent the interest of the
Company and/or the Group.

POSITIONS HELD BY DIRECTORS IN
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, to the
best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors is a director
or employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
“Report of Corporate Governance” of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including the Directors,
based on their performance, experience, qualifications,
competence and prevailing market comparables. Remuneration
packages generally comprises salary, incentive scheme,
contribution to pension schemes and bonuses relating to
the individual’s performance and contribution to the Group’s
business. The remuneration policy of the Directors is reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors, senior management of the Company and
eligible employees of the Group. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report.

The remuneration policy of the Directors is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee. The determination of emolument of
the Directors had taken into consideration their expertise, job
specifications and prevailing market comparables.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The senior management’s total remuneration paid/payable for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (including all executive
Directors) by band is as follows:

Remuneration bands

MR
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EFREREERE RN

BE_ T -_F+-_A=+—HLFE B
N/ ENSHREEE (BE2BRATES) W
FENEEREEMT

Number of senior
management

BREERAY

Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2023.

FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES THROUGH ISSUE OF
EQUITY/CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES
The Company did not conduct any fundraising activities through

issue of equity/convertible securities during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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7B 13,500,001t — A& #4,000,0007T
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established its Audit Committee since 14 March
2000. Currently, it consists of three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Li Hongwei and
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Liu
Guoxi. The Audit Committee is chaired by Ms. Li Hongwei who
is an independent non-executive Director having the relevant
professional qualification and expertise in financial reporting
matters.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton was appointed as the auditor of the
Company by Shareholders following the retirement of
PricewaterhouseCoopers at the adjourned AGM held on 3
November 2020.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by Grant Thornton, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for re-appointment of Grant
Thornton as auditor of the Company will be proposed at such
meeting.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Details of the events of the Group occurring after the date of
statement of financial position are set out in the Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors’ report was approved by the Board on 28 March
2024 and signed by the chairman of the same board meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Q GrantThornton
&

To the shareholders of Beijing Energy International Holding
Co., Ltd.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Energy International Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 139 to 314, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FIsEEtFIR
HMEBSSFADRERMANEEAEG  BR
“ﬁKHH%/?éEﬂﬁiﬁi‘%E’Jéaﬁi%%gﬁ’]%
cREFEDNEMEBEABRREMBTR
%&ﬁEEEE%LﬁEEEE BT EH=ZE
FREHEBNER

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matters
RSBt EIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment on electricity sales

EHE EEBABINA T

Refer to Note 4.1(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

m2RAEMBRRNEL L)

We identified the recognition of the Group’s revenue
on tariff adjustment on electricity sales as a key audit
matter due to the significant management judgement
involved in determining whether each of the Group’s
operating power plants had qualified for, and had met,
all the requirements and conditions as required under
the prevailing government policies and regulations for
entitlement of the tariff adjustment and accordingly,
the timing and eligibility of accruing revenue on tariff
adjustment.

M ESEEEHE BEMLI ARSI
FEEtEE HHRNEET EEEXKEBUBES
BERLENSENEEMMZRITERFBRKRRAIE
THRERFAERRES  EMEESESEMAEUA
O BS5 [ Fe 38 R M B A2 R O% e BB K RO B 3 T I B o

The Group recognised revenue on tariff adjustment on
electricity sales of approximately RMB2,488 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 in which the
applications for tariff adjustment of certain on-grid solar
power plants of the Group are still pending as there is
an ongoing process where the period for application is
opened on a batch by batch basis.

BE =F+ZRA=+—HI-FE> BEEERER
Eﬁ%ﬁ-ﬂﬁ;ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’]uﬁzkh%)\ﬁmz 488E &L’
B BEEETHAESGEZEBULNDAFRHYE
e s AN ERAZHHENERER  WEHEE
SCANTEEITH o

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
the Group’s revenue on tariff adjustment on electricity
sales included:
st SEEBHHEESEHMAVKRAESETH
BEtIEF S -

obtaining an understanding of key controls
in connection with the recognition of tariff
adjustment;

THRERSEEHEAMNEIEEGEE

obtaining an understanding of the policies and
regulations set by the government authorities on
tariff adjustment on sales of electricity in this
industry;
THREFEEMITERENHESEMUGEN
BRKER

obtaining relevant supporting documents, for
example, power purchase agreements and tariff
approvals issued by the PRC government; and

B 45 48 A sz 155 14 S > 40 B8 2 165 5% e R B UG 22
HRBEBEHMX ; &

assessing whether the previous applications
of the group entities operating the solar power
plants for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy
were successfully completed against the historical
record of the Group.

28R BEEBFCE TEEERIGEZ B
NEBRBRILAFFENEEMLESEIRH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
oA TRy

Key Audit Matters
Bt EIA

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

EIEEEL R E G

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

Refer to Note 4.2(a) and Note 18 of the consolidated
financial statements.
IHIRIAR B M TSR MU 5E4.2(a) K MY 5E18 ©

The Group has development rights to develop and
operate hydro power projects (“Development Rights”)
in the People’s Republic of China. As at 31 December
2023, the Development Rights amounted to RMB869
million and classified as intangible assets.
EEEZEERPEARENBEIMAE RESEKEEEN
e (TRE#) RIE=4+="B=+—H"'#
EESHRAANRKSOERE T N IEAREEE-

Management tests for impairment of the Development
Rights annually or when there are impairment
indicators. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group did not recognise impairment loss of
intangible assets as detailed in Note 18. Independent
professional valuations are obtained to support
management’s estimates on the recoverable amounts
of the intangible assets. The estimated recoverable
amounts of Development Rights are determined based
on value in use using the discounted cash flows
approach and various key assumptions and estimates
including;:

BIRE S F o 50 3R R (8 5 5 R R 3 e TR (E R
Ho k18 HE S -_=F+ -8B =+—H
FtFEE, EEETEEIETEENERE BIEE
BENETEEGHE UZFEHBELE E B £
fhst o B MMt T MBS REL IR FERAITIRREE
MEEAENERBERLEMERRMNGSEE > &
EE

the probability to utilise these Development Rights
to develop the relevant hydro power plant projects;

MAZEMEEMERRAKELEEERNAEMT ;

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the Group’s intangible assets included:
Bfis EEEBREEENRENGETHNSESER
BiE

inquired of management on the market
intelligence of the development and changes of
renewable energy industry policies in the PRC and
made reference to industry and analyst research
reports in considering if there are impairment
indicators;
MEEEAMTEIBELEEREEXRHRENER
BN IFIER > 2 E17FEM 2 B0 3T R
FEBEARERENR ;

considered the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
valuer by considering its qualification, relevant
experience and relationship with the Group;
BEEZTERBUEXEMLBEMNERE HREALSRK
B SEENEG & RIS EZE G (E DR
BE N EAREEN ;

we involved our internal valuation specialist
in our discussion with the external valuer and
management to understand the rationale and
assess the appropriateness and consistency of
the methodology used and the assumptions and
estimates applied;

A A B B E K 200 TP B 5 BB 1 {8 Bl K
EEENG > LT BARA R A RPTEREBR
MLt H - WeThER S MM —20

obtained the Group’s development plan and
inquired of management about the status of the
construction of the hydro power plant projects and
their plans to be executed within the expected
timetable;

RE EEENEZEESE tRBEEEHBKE
WIEE M ERIEE R ENRTRRRBERARKE T
HEtEl ;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
A

Key Audit Matters
RSBt EIR

Impairment assessment of intangible assets (Continued)

EICEEN BTG (&

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

utilisation hours, electricity price growth rate,
operating expenses for maintaining the power
plants and construction costs of the projects; and
MEANE BEEERX \-HESHNESERAE
BERMA ; &

discount rates used for individual projects for
Development Rights.
P EERIEE FERNTIRZER

We focused on this area because the carrying values of
the intangible assets are significant to the consolidated
financial statements and the impairment assessment
requires the use of significant judgements and
estimates to determine the recoverable amounts. These
estimations are also subject to uncertainties.
EMENEFEAE RRABREEENKREERGS
MBERERMEBEEA MBETHEREEZEAELRS
BT et 2R E R B £ 8B ZE b T EEREE
Mo

assessed the appropriateness of the utilisation
hours, electricity price growth rate, operating
expenses for maintaining the power plants and
construction costs by reference to the historical
and current industry data for the renewable energy
industry in the PRC, which are obtained through
market research and interview with relevant
authority, and the historical operating data of the
Group; and
2EBETISMEREGRAER 7RG HE
ABEERRITENBTIREATEREER &85
EMELKE8® T AN BEEERR
HEBIMNSERIRESNENBEEN ; &

evaluated whether the discount rates used for
individual projects for Development Rights are
within reasonable ranges by considering each
individual project’s risk profile, the probability of
the completion of the hydro power plant projects
of Development Rights through industry data
obtained and historical achievement of the Group’s
prior acquisition plans.

BamE R e EERIEB R EAR R A ARET
(YER SEEERBTWESENBERIE D
5T AR B 25 e RV K BBk I8 B B9 1] SE M > s (8 Bl 1B
BB EEMMANITRERSREN SEHER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
oA TRy

Key Audit Matters
Bt EIA

Business combination

EEEH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

Refer to Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
IR AR & M TS ER R Y534 o

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
completed several acquisitions. Management assessed
the nature of the acquisitions by assessing if there
are economic resources and business processes
associated with them. Management determined
whether the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
under respective acquisitions constituted a business
and therefore the transactions were accounted for as
business combinations.

RBEEZZE_=F+"A=+—HILEFE> B&£EZ
RETWESE BEERBTHREFEEAMMEE
EEAMZKEERNEFD AIEMaLEUESEE
B-EEEEENEAWBEETMWE B EREAE
ZEEREEN—IBETS I 5L TE A8 R TS R AR R
RABREBEHIIR

Accounting for business combinations requires the
Group to allocate the purchase price to the assets
acquired, liabilities assumed, and identified intangible
assets based on their estimated fair values at the date
of acquisition.

(XBEaHARERERSE SS£BEZENUEE B2 186
B ANENEEEERENEEE - AEEEREH
RlIETEE -

Independent external valuations have been obtained
by the Group to support the fair values of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. In aggregate, bargain
purchase gain recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to RMB79 million.
EEEENSBEIIBEEUANZBENRBEERKES

Bz R ZBEEBWREN _E_=F+"A=+—
EI&Eﬁz%ﬂﬁ&ﬁgzﬁé\,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%WE@w%:.,\)\
REE7T98 8T

Our audit procedures in relation to the business
combination included:

HPMEBEHETHEFEFEE

discussed and inquired of management on their
basis in determining the nature of the transactions
to assess the economic resources or business
processes associated with the acquisitions
and thus management’'s assessment of the
acquisitions being accounted for as business
combinations;

Nl EREEFLEARRBEERNEERZ M
BRZEE NGRS EERREANEEER
R BEERIERAE KMITEEEREF
R B BREBE RN ;

considered the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent external valuer by
considering its qualification, relevant experience
and relationship with the Group;
BBATREBUINSGEMNER HESE R
B BEEENREG TRELIIBHEMNZESH
B HEDREEN ;

we involved our internal valuation specialist
in our discussion with the external valuer and
management to understand the rationale and
assess the appropriateness and consistency of
the methodology used and the assumptions and
estimates applied;

T MR A B 1 B S X 2 00 TP B2 91 BB 1k (& B K
BIEEWN > U T RIEH TP ERE 5 E M
KFTFE RS REsTHNEE R —% ;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
A

Key Audit Matters
RSBt EIR

Business combination (Continued)

EHESH (B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANESMAREEZEE

The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were determined by using the discounted cash
flow (“DCF”) approach and various key assumptions and
estimates including:
WREERAEEBZANBEEAEERANRREERE
(MTIRRERE)) ZFRZEMBEHEIZRMGFEE &
£

- insolation/utilisation hours, electricity price growth
rate, operating expenses for maintaining the power
plants and construction cost of the projects; and
HER AN EEEEX #HESHLNESE
FARIEEREHEMA ; &

- discount rate.

HIRE o

We focused on this area because the carrying values
of the identifiable intangible assets and the bargain
purchase amount are significant to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuation methodology
and key assumptions require the use of significant
judgements and estimates. These estimations are also
subject to uncertainties.
EMENEFEFE RRAT#HNEEZEENKREE
REEBEBEESHEHGRSUBRRMS BE X MG
MkFEBZBEFEAEARHE R  ZEMEFTE
EARFREEN -

assessed the appropriateness of the insolation/
utilisation hours, electricity price growth rate,
operating expenses for maintaining the power
plants and construction costs by reference to the
industry data obtained for the renewable energy
industry in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
and the historical operating data of the Group as
well as those of the acquirees;
R2EHPEAREME (THREL) BT H £ EIRTT
EESEHNENMER EEEERRWERELE
BHBTGHEAR MARY SEEEX \HES
HHNEERSE MERAAZEENE ;

evaluated the appropriateness of the discount rate
by considering each individual project’s risk profile;
and

ZmEREENEERRBR LT EITRENEE
%5 &

evaluated the management sensitivity analysis on
the key assumptions and estimates applied within
the DCF.

FHARRITRRSREHE AN EBRRERE
EETE IR E BRI DT o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2023 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
oA TRy
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
oA TRy
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

28 March 2024
Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Fra tHIR 7%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_-F+_"_HA=+—HLEE

Note 2023 2022
B 5 —T=-= ==
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT ARBBEET
Sales of electricity BHE 3,080 1,800
Tariff adjustment BB AL 2,488 2,315
Revenue WA 5 5,568 4,115
Other income Hag A 6 440 51
Employee benefits expenses EBEGFRYZ FE1E
(excluding share-based payment  LURS{H & E L FHY
expenses) FsZ) 7(a) (537) (351)
Maintenance costs BAHERAE (188) (123)
Professional fees EXEH (95) (35)
Tax and surcharges MERMME (56) (35)
Other expenses HAhx 8 (573) (157)
EBITDA?# EBITDA? 4,559 3,465
Acquisition costs arising from =B EHEEZ BN A
business combinations (8) (23)
Depreciation of property, ME-BERREITE
plant and equipment 16 (1,795) (1,244)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets S EHTE 17 (108) (72)
Bargain purchase gains arising EXBaHEEDN
from business combinations ZEEE WS 34 79 7
Fair value losses on financial BARBESTABRZ
assets at fair value through SHREEZAAERBE
profit or loss 9 - (1)
Fair value losses on financial BARESTAEBRZ
liabilities at fair value through THBEEZANERE
profit or loss 10 (1) (22)
Finance income B E WA 11 69 38
Finance costs RRE AL S 12 (1,997) (1,514)
Impairment charge on property, MEBERRERESH
plant and equipment 16 (163) -
Impairment charge on THEERESH
financial assets 3.1(b) (1) (25)
Share-based payment expenses  MURMPAERS (X 7(a) (10) (5)
Share of profits of investments FELEREmAARZ
accounted for using equity i a—pinill
method 20 30 19
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
A»W (=] *Eﬁ?%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z=FF+"_HA=+—HIFE

Note 2023 2022
B 5E —E-= —=E-
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEERT ARBEET
Profit before income tax BRET 1SR AR 654 623
Income tax expenses FTiERF 13 (182) (151)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEEGF 472 472
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5 ARG EF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Shareholders of the Company /NS 42 269
Non-controlling interests JEER = 430 203
472 472
EARNINGS PER SHARE ERTREELESRET
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 14
Basic (RMB cents) EAX (NEED) 0.19 1.20
Diluted (RMB cents) e (AR¥ED) 0.19 1.20
DIVIDENDS EE 15 199 =

EBITDA represents earnings before acquisition costs arising from
business combinations, depreciation, bargain purchase gains
arising from business combinations, fair value adjustments,
finance income, finance costs, impairment charge on property,
plant and equipment, impairment charge on financial assets,
share-based payment expenses, share of profits of investments
accounted for using equity method and income tax expenses.
EBITDA is not a measure of performance under Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, but is widely used by management
for monitoring business performance of a company from
operational perspective. It may not be comparable to similar
measures presented by the other companies.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ﬂ‘ BEm AT

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_-F+_"_HA=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E°= =S
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEET ARBBETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEEEF 472 472
Other comprehensive loss Hih2meEs18
Items that may be reclassified to  BIGEE#T 748 E Em 2 1B H
profit or loss
Currencies translation EMInE =58
differences (90) (389)
Cash flow hedge HERESEH A 16 =
Other comprehensive loss for the  AFEEH P EEE
year, net of tax MR IE (74) (389)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZNFE2EURE4%E
FOR THE YEAR 398 83
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ T3IATELAEERER
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (§518) Wz 4R %A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Shareholders of the Company KATGER (40) (120)
Non-controlling interests FEERRE R 438 203
398 83
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Fr o BRI R
As at 31 December 2023
R TE_—_F+"HA=+—H

Note 2023 2022
B 5 —E-= —EF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBEBEET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment D2 R R R 16 64,150 32,374
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 2,466 1,680
Intangible assets BT EE 18 1,166 1,166
Investments accounted for EAEREARNKE
using equity method 20 1,020 736
Other receivables, deposits HMMEWIRIE 2K
and prepayments FE{TFIE 23 3,296 4,548
Pledged deposits BEIRIRER 24 150 947
Deferred tax assets EIEFRIE & B 30 70 12
Total non-current assets RS EELTE 72,318 41,463
Current assets MENE E
Financial assets at fair value BAREESABRZ
through profit or loss THEE 21 57 34
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment FEURERIE  ZiE R EE
receivables RGP YK BR 18 22 8,218 8,296
Other receivables, deposits and ~ HMMEWIRIE 2% K&
prepayments AT IE 23 2,787 3,459
Pledged deposits BEIRIRGER 24 469 1,829
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 24 6,187 5,247
Total current assets REEELEEE 17,718 18,865
Total assets BEMRTE 90,036 60,328
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkaE
Equity attributable to AT RERELED
shareholders of the Company
Share capital RN 25(a) 1,921 1,924
Reserves G 3,834 4,067
5,755 5,991
Perpetual medium-term notes KBTI 26 3,494
Non-controlling interests JEPERS T 7,814 4,192
Total equity R AREE 17,063 10,183
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MBI

As at 31 December 2023

RZE=F+"H=+—H

Note 2023 2022
B =E == ==
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETT AREBEET
LIABILITIES afR&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 1,287 1,068
Convertible bonds ARG (&S 27 - 355
Contingent consideration A RE
payables 28 3 19
Bank and other borrowings SR1T R E &=k 29 41,961 29,585
Deferred income 4R SEUT A 25 26
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIE AR 30 1,135 482
Other payables and accruals HMEHIBEREER 31 165 =
Total non-current liabilities JEmEN B E4REE 44,576 31,535
Current liabilities mENBaE
Other payables and accruals HMEAHRIBERESTER 31 7,156 4,332
Lease liabilities HE&E 17 151 71
Contingent consideration A E
payables 28 2 2
Bank and other borrowings SR1T R ELMhf& =R 29 20,745 14,205
Convertible bonds A} ES 27 343 =
Total current liabilities BB EERE 28,397 18,610
Total liabilities =R R 72,973 50,145
Total equity and liabilities EmKkaEREE 90,036 60,328

N E139E3M4EMNZE LB HREK
EREEEN _E-_NE=H=-+/\H
HOETIZE W TIIEERAREE o

These consolidated financial statements on pages 139 to 314
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

Mr. Zhang Ping Ms. Li Hongwei
REFRE =S AR T R ogun
Chairman Director

& X
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for o RE A SR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE_ S =—F+"HB=+—HIEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KARRRREL
Share-  Shares held Retained
based under equity earnings/ Perpetual Non-
Share Treasury Share payment incentive Translation Other Statutory ~ (accumulated medium-term controlling Total
capital shares premium reserve  scheme (‘EIS") Tesenve Teserve feserve losses) Total notes Interests equity
il
NEhE  (RiEsE
Bz HH)ET RERH/

Rk EERH RiEE  AREE  SENRG BEHE  RMEE  ERER  (RHER) B AERERE  FRREE  EAE
Note RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'milion  RMB'million
Kt ARBEET ARWEET ARREER ARMEER ARWEEn ARWEEm ARWEEn ARKEER ARWAET ARMEER ARWEER ARWEER ARWEAER

At 1 January 2022 KZ$ZZ£-A-A 1924 - 9128 193 (13) (93) 141 613 (5,780) 6,093 - 3191 9,284
Comprehensive income 2fhE
Proft for the year FERET - - - - - - - - 269 269 - 203 a7
Other comprehensive loss Ht2EEE - - - - - (389) - - - (389) - - (389)
Total comprehensive income ELH] - - - - - (389) - - 29 (120) - 203 8
Transactions with equity holders HERREANRE
Repurchase of ordinary shares BEEER 25[o) = (6) = = = = = = = 6) = = 6)
Share-based payments HERAERBHR 25(0) - - - 5 - - - - - 5 - = 5
Lapse of share options BREER - - - (59) - - - B 59 = B - -
Capital contribution by BREAREGEE

non<ontrolling interests 25(d) - - - - - - 18 - - 18 - 982 1,000
Safety production reserve RELERE 25(e) - - - - - - 1 - - 1 - - 1
Dividends declared to AFEREEERRE

noncontrolling interests - - - - - - - - - - - (184) (184)
Transfr to statutory reserves BEEiRER - - - 5 = = = u8 (248) o = S o

E 6 - 54) B - 19 248 (189) 18 B 79 816

At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+ZR=1-A 1924 6) 9128 139 (73) (442) 160 861 (5,700) 5991 - 4192 10,183
At 1 January 2023 KZ$Z=£-A-A 1924 (6) 9,128 139 (13) (442) 160 861 (6,700 5991 - 4192 10,183
Comprehensive income 2hE
Proft for the year FERET - - - - - - - - 2 a2 - 430 4n
Other comprehensive loss Rt2EER - - - - - (90) 8 - - (82) - 8 (1)
Total comprehensive income 2ENHEE - - - - - (30) 8 - [ (40) - 8 398
Transactions with equity holders HERREANRE
Declaration of 2022 final dividends SRCIZZERERS 15 - - - - - - (199) - - (199) - - (199)
Repurchase of ordinary shares BEEBR 25(b) - (14) - - - - - - - (14) - - (14)
Cancelation of treasury shares HHREFRA 25(0) ) 6 3) - - - - - - - - - -
Sharebased payments LR BRI 25(c) - - - 10 - - - - - 10 - - 10
Capital contribution by BREAREREE 25(d)

non<ontrolling interests - - - - - - 4 - - 4 - 2,116 2120
Safety production reserve RRLERE 25(e) - - - - - - 3 - - 3 - - 3
Isste of perpetual medium-term notes FIXERHZR % - - - - - - - - - - 3494 - 349
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAT - - - - - - - - - - - 1,510 1510
Deemed disposals of subsidiaries without R fEdE TR & A 2E5|1EA

Joss of control HEAR - - - - - - - - - - - (15) (15)
Dividends declared to EFEREEERRE

non<ontrolling interests - - - - - - - - - - - (427) (421)
Transfer to statutory reserves BETIREE - - - - - - - 199 (199) - - - -
Reducton ofshare premium HARAEE 380l - - (9,425) - - - 2038 - 7,087 - - - -

® ®) (9,128) 10 - - 1846 199 6,888 (196) 3494 3,184 6,482
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=£+2R=1-A 1921 (14) - 149 (13 (532) 2,014 1,060 1230 5,755 3494 1814 17,063
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
S BlE R R

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_TZ_=F+_HB=+—HIEFE

Note 2023 2022

B 5+ == BT
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT AEBBET

Cash flows from operating REEHRERE
activities

Cash generated from operations &&= Fr1RIR S 33(a) 4,535 3,069
Income tax paid [EENIZIEE: (208) (168)

Net cash inflow from operating K& FHIWELRAFE

activities 4,327 2,901
Cash flows from investing KREEHRERE

activities
Payments for acquisitions of = /NETRNEN

associates (408) (59)
Payments for acquisitions of RGN EVNEIRNE/E

subsidiaries, net of cash acquired B U EEIR % 34 (1,470) (1,148)
Settlement of financial assets at #&&EE A AETAETL

fair value through profit or loss ETHEE - 4
Decrease/(increase) in deposits B &EZ LR/ (20)

for investments 1,803 (933)

Decrease in amounts due from & Wit {8 FR e 2 0k AR BY
investments accounted for using Txéﬁéﬁﬁ"‘

equity method 4 5
Changes in consideration payables W& i /& A 5 FE B

for acquisitions of subsidiaries EE) (704) (178)
Interests received B UF] S 65 33
Capital expenditures BAZE (16,808) (6,419)

Net cash outflow from investing & ;FSMNIREHRHFEE
activities (17,518) (8,695)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A Bl

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z=FF+"_HA=+—HIFE

146

Note 2023 2022
e —EZ= =St
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT AREBEET
Cash flows from financing MEEHRERE
activities
Capital contribution by non- BRI ERIEE
controlling interests 2,116 1,000
Net proceeds from issue of BT REPEZEN
perpetual medium-term notes FTiSFIE 258 26 3,500 =
Transaction costs for issue of BT REPIZEN
perpetual medium-term notes R 5 B2 (6) =
Principal elements of lease HENRNEAEI D
payments 17 (151) (55)
Interest paid on lease liabilites  BffHAS&EFS 17 (42) (31)
Interests paid on bank and other B {JiR1T & E &= FI S
borrowings (1,884) (1,420)
Interests paid on convertible bonds E{J AR EHF B (13) (13)
Dividend made to shareholders of [AZ~A &) R EHAIIE S
the Company (197) -
Dividend made to non-controlling  MIFFHZERRERIEHMRE
interests (394) (179)
Decrease/(increase) in B EE L GEa0)
pledged deposits 2,180 (1,706)
Proceeds from bank borrowings  $RITERMIFFIERIE 38,300 18,942
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER (23,265) (9,190)
Proceeds from loans from RETRIEEZ EREAR
financial institutions e QL] 5,508 4,596
Repayment of loans from BERETHEBEZER
financial institutions (8,693) (5,478)
Repayment of other loans BiEREMER (558) (364)
Repayment of amounts due to BERNEAARBENE
sellers for advanced payments (2,209) -
Payment for repurchase of A CIR =S =R A N
ordinary shares (14) (6)
Net cash inflow from financing MEEHRERAFEE
activities 14,178 6,096
Net increase in cash and cash RERIREEEYILINERE
equivalents 987 302
Cash and cash equivalents FHRERIVEEEY
at beginning of year 5,247 4,814
Effect of foreign exchange EEXREHHN T E
rate changes (47) 131
Cash and cash equivalents FRRERBREEFEY
at end of year 24 6,187 5,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Unit 1012, 10/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. The ordinary shares
of the Company are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Beijing Energy Investment, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and wholly owned by BEH,
is a direct controlling shareholder holding approximately
32.14% of the issued share capital of the Company. BEH is
a state-owned company in the PRC indirectly wholly-owned
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of People’s Government of Beijing Municipality.

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
investment, operation and management of power plants
and other clean energy projects.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB and rounded to the nearest million (“million”), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

AR e S AR B

— &R
AKpalms—BREREFMBRIZE
fR A~ B o 5F fift #% =5 B # Ak & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda° & B I 2 & = i
IASEBTHEBEFL168-2005F FEH L
FAEE10ME1012% o KA F] 2 & B 5 B
RPFEMR LT

RAERE —BREBEMAILXBERE
EEEEHRBENBRARE) AEAREIHER
TR FAEHN32.14% 8 BITR A o
REERA—HBHRIEIRTARBFEE
EEEEEELEEHE B AN
EEA -

AEETERFEE B RHEMBZER
RENHAE - RE - EEREE-

SRR ERPEIN ZFESHMBRED
NARBEY  RFIBEBEANEER
grnasT (B8 -

EARGFBRBE

2IZEREMBRRFAEANEKR
GETEREIIM T RFZARBEEIN > Z
SHREEREBRARAMAZINEE-
REMBERERIYMEAER (BEXAATER
HIBAR) fRHo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and include the applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and the financial
liabilities at FVTPL which were carried at fair values.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁ?%l‘fl‘

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

2 BEXRGHHRME (@

21 RNEE (B
(a) FFHEAEE

(a) Going Concern

During the Year, the Group reported profit
of approximately RMB472 million. As at 31
December 2023, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB10,679 million. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had total bank and other borrowings
of approximately RMB62,773 million, of which
approximately RMB20,759 million are due for
repayments within the coming twelve months
from 31 December 2023. As at the same date,
its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB6,187 million.

Moreover, the Group has certain contractual
and other arrangements to settle its financial
obligations and various capital expenditures. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital
commitment of approximately RMB8,985 million,
mainly in relation to the construction of solar
power plants and wind power plants with an
aggregate expected capacity of about 5GW.

The above matters indicated that the Group will
need to secure a substantial amount of funds in
the foreseeable future to finance these financial
obligations and capital expenditures under
various contractual and other arrangements. All
the above conditions indicated the existence of

RAFEE > REBBRESEMNA
AREEAT2EE T - R _=
E+_BA=+—H 'x&EEBEHN
TMEBAEEBHRHEENAR
10,679 A BT - R_E =
F+ZB=1+—H ' A&EEH
RITREMEBERBLEANASAR
62, 773E BT HFNAR
20,759 BB THENR T ==
E+"A=+t—HEsRK
+ERREHBEZE-FE &
HERAECEEBYNBARKE
6,187TEH & T

o REBBEEETEAK
HUMZHUEEEMBSER
EREARLZ RIZEZ=F
+ZBE=+—H > XEENE
KEENBARES, 98588
o EFEREBRRBTEFEENS
= B BY AR5 BE 8 B uh K & 1 &
Buh AR -

FHRERETAEREREERER
PREEMEREES  UX
TRENREMZHFNTHE
ERERFXAT > LHAAA
BRETREEEATEEMN
REHAERERFEEE

a material uncertainty which may cast significant MBS BE BN E KRR
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a o

going concern.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections, which cover a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 December 2023 and
are of the opinion that, taking into account the
following plans and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the
next twelve months from 31 December 2023.

EEEBERAEERESRETE
A HEBZZEZ=F+"A
_‘f’ EED‘I'Z:"\ A+ @A
HARE > 58 4% 0 AR B T a5t &
RiEH  AEBRESREN
SEBESMUMEEBZZE =
F+ZA=+—HESEXE
+ZEENE AN B EE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(a) Going Concern (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

In March 2024, the Group has successfully
completed the issue the fourth tranche of
the MTN of RMB80O0 million at a distribution
rate of 3% per annum.

From January to March 2024, the Group
successfully obtained short-term bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB150
million and long-term bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMBS8,478
million.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group
have loans from BEH of approximately
RMB10,865 million and loans from
a subsidiary of BEH of approximately
RMB7,470 million of which the total current
portion amounted to RMB7,071 million.
According to the experience and actions
in the past three years, the Directors are
confident that all existing loan from BEH and
its subsidiary would be able to be further
extended or draw down new loans when
needed. In addition, the Directors are in the
process of negotiating with a state-owned
entity to defer the repayment of an amount
due to it.

The Directors are also in the process of
negotiating with various banks and other
financial institutions to raise short-term
or long-term financing of approximately
unutilised RMB1,850 million with the credit
enhancement guarantee provided by BEH.
It is in the opinion of the Directors that
the remaining unutilised guarantee limit is
sufficient for the Group’s funding need.

2 BEXRGHTHRME (@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(a) Going Concern (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

The Group has obtained a letter of financial
support from BEH, who agreed to take
measures and to provide financial support to
the Group for a period of twelve months from
28 March 2024 so as to enable the Group
to have sufficient working capital to meet
its liabilities and obligations as and when
they fall due and to continue to carry on its
business.

The Directors are confident that, with
the future credit enhancement guarantee
provided by BEH, the Group will be able to
further obtain and draw down short-term
or long-term financing from banks or other
financial institutions as and when needed.

The solar power plants, wind power plants
and hydro power plants currently held by
the Group have already achieved on-grid
connection. They are expected to generate
operating cash inflows to the Group.

The Directors have confident that, in light of the
above financial resources, plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to
fulfil its financial obligations and commitments
as and when they fall due in the coming twelve
months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(a) Going Concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, there is significant
uncertainty as to whether management of the
Group can achieve the plans and measures
described (iii) to (vi) above. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern would
depend upon the Group’s ability (i) to secure
the short-term and long-term borrowings from
banks and other financial institutions as and
when needed; (ii) to obtain the financial support
from BEH as and when needed, (iii) to further
extend or draw down new loans from BEH and its
subsidiaries as and when needed, (iv) to defer the
repayment of an amount due to a stated-owned
entity as and when needed and (v) to generate
adequate operating cash inflow in the expected
timeframe from its existing renewable energy
projects as well as those to be constructed.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying values of the
Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B e B RE
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 BEAGHBEREBE (8
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.1 RFUEE (B
(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures (b) EFHHERIEZEREE
(i)  New and amended HKFRSs that are effective (i) R-E—_=#F—HFH—HF
for annual periods beginning on 1 January 15 B9 B R £ 3L BT #TET
2023 RAENEE] & B IR &7
=/k
In the current year, the Group has applied REEFEE AEBEERX
for the first time the following new and FERUTHEBZMA
amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, EfEARERESE
which are relevant to the Group’s operations M EAEEE _—_ S _=
and effective for the Group’s consolidated F—H—HBHHRBZFEH
financial statements for the annual period BHNEEBERERERZ
beginning on 1 January 2023: Ml R IEBTE BT ERK
AR
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts EENBRE FREAOK
and Related LZHIEATHR  BEMEE]
Amendments
Amendments to Disclosure of ARG EN FHEREE
HKAS 1 and Accounting Policies FIRRER
HKFRS Practice RS
Statements 2 ZEREH
G B2
(CHEN)
Amendments to Definition of HEHEN THAEFNER
HKAS 8 Accounting £85%
Estimates (CHEN)
Amendments to Deferred Tax Related ERAGHEN RE-RFEL
HKAS 12 to Assets and F12%% NEERER
Liabilities Arising (1B5T%) T RARVIEIE
from A Single A
Transaction
Amendments to International Tax EHEGEER BERKE-
HKAS 12 Reform — Pillar Two 125 SHIRER
Model Rules (1B5T%) Al
The adoption of the new and amended AL F 35T BT S
HKFRSs had no material impact on how the B BREENS BRI K&
results and financial position for the current DU HA R Y 2 4& K B 75 Ak
and prior periods have been prepared and AR R K 25 75 3l i
presented. BEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these
consolidated financial statements, certain
amended HKFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective, and have not been

adopted early by the Group.

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 21

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %  “A4E4EH

Lease liabilities
in a Sale and
Leaseback?*
Classification of
Liabilities as
Current or Non-
current and Related
Amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5*
Non-current
Liabilities with
Covenants (“2022
Amendments”)*
Supplier Finance
Arrangements?®

Lack of
Exchangeability?

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

(Continued)

(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2025

g Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the
Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on
the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Other amended HKFRSs are not
expected to have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

(Continued)
(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS
1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
(“2022 Amendments”)

The amendments provide further guidance
to clarify how to classify debt and other
liabilities as current or non-current which are
summarised as follows:

It clarifies that a liability is non-current
if an entity has a right (instead of
unconditional right as stated before the
amendments) to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. This
right has to be existed at the end of the
reporting period, regardless of whether
the lender tests for compliance at the
date or at a later date;

Any expectations about events after
the reporting period do not impact the
assessment made at the end of the
reporting period as to the classification
of the liability; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

(Continued)

(if)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

and related amendments to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS

1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”

(“2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

“Settlements” are newly defined as
a transfer to the counterparty that
results in the extinguishment of the
liability. The transfer could be of cash,
other economic resources (e.g. goods
or services), or entity’s own equity
instruments. Thus, if the counterparty
conversion option is classified as
liability under HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”, the transfer
of equity instruments by exercising the
conversion option constitute settlement
of liability for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of liabilities.
One exception to the definition is that
if the counterparty conversion option
is classified as equity in accordance

with HKAS 32, the transfer

equity instruments by exercising the
conversion option does not constitute
settlement of liability and would be
disregarded when determining whether

the liability is current or non-current.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % . —4E4E]

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS
1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
(“2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

2022 Amendments issued in 2022 clarified
that only covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, which an entity must
comply with on or before the reporting date
(even if the covenant is only assessed after
the reporting date) affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current.
Those covenants to be complied with
after the reporting date do not affect the
classification of loan arrangements as
current or non-current at the reporting date

Besides, the 2022 Amendments required an
entity to provide additional disclosure when
a liability arising from a loan agreement is
classified as non-current and the entity’s
right to defer settlement is contingent on
compliance with future covenants within
twelve months. The information provided
should enable users of financial statements
to understand the risk that the liability could
become repayable within twelve months of
the reporting period, including:

the carrying amount of the related
liabilities;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

(Continued)

(if)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

and related amendments to Hong Kong

wR e M B R B
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(b)

Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS

1 “Non-current Liabilities w

ith Covenants”

(“2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

information about the covenants
(including the nature of the covenants
and when the entity is required to
comply with them); and

facts and circumstances, if any, that
indicate that an entity may have
difficulty complying with covenants.
Such facts and circumstances could
also include the fact that the entity
would not have complied with the
covenants based on its circumstances

at the end of the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments al

so deferred the

effective date of the 2020 Amendments
to the annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024, in which both
amendments are to be applied as a package

and apply retrospectively. E
is permitted. The Board
amendments have no mater

arlier application
expect that the
ial impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

2 BEXRGHHRME (@

2.2 SHEHKRESTHEIE
(a) MiBAE

MEBARERAEEERES
BHN—UERE (BEEBEE
2  BEXREEMEZEZ
BY ZE 75wl B) & B K AL R
HERRSERER LHE
NEBHHBRETINETER
FEARRHE A AEEE
B BR AL EAEERE
EELEAROR - EZREE
HEERNEREN HEEER
HihAFFAE) -WBARMKE
EHRESBREAEEZAES
AR A AR A AR LE

HEABUE GRS AR e

FEERAKRBESERES

BH AR (5£2.3)

EERANATERSE X5
MR RERE NG REIREE
RiEREEMBREFHE-
RERBETEHE  EZX
SERBEETEEREELE
BB RIFRSN o Y B A B B F 5t
HREEEFTERFFLHHAE
Db {7 B 7 S [ P £R 40 B 2R —

Hie

B /BB 2 B AR e 1
REDDANES

CEACL SRR =

RRGEMHERRARPERZ

Bl

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % . —4E4E]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(Continued)

(b) Associates and Joint Ventures

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (see (c)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions relating about
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

Equity Method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(Continued)

(c) Equity Method (Continued)

(d)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note 2.9.

Changes in Ownership Interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control
as transactions with equity holders of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of Consolidation and Equity Accounting
(Continued)
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(d) Changes in Ownership Interests (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in the other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in the other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss or transferred to another category of
the consolidated statement of changes in equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

fief 2 & [ (K] SR SR A 4 S A
ERRNEATZE MR L]
REGFGAKRIZER AR
HRNZERNEARBEDZ
HAREEMSE MKEE
BEB}AN G ETRARER -
MERBARIIEHMERT &
ErENTHEENRERED
Mme > EARERTIREE
teoh > R R Z BRI H
fth 2 [ WA o B 50 B9 <& BB R 28 40
FEECERHERREEN
BRAKR-ERRERKELA
FHMEE KD NEDBHNEER
ENDEEGROEmRNEE
EEREBMBREERS
B ESN S — SRR E

HEEhEEAMERATNES
1 18 BB 1R B8 H B IE
BRNERELED AESRD L
A H Ath 2 H W o FE SR B9 & 2R
EMOBRERT (HER) -

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatRETRBIRER A IR 28 R

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =% — Z4E4E )

163



164

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Acquisitions of Subsidiaries

(a) Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred,

liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business,

equity interests issued by the Group,

fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

2 BEXRGHHRME (@

2.3 KBEHEBAR

(a)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % . —4E4E]

EBGH

EReCWBED TASHEMN
BEE WESSHAHOBRHFAR
EXBOHETESRE M
WEH B AR EENAERE:

EEELZENANE"

PTUR F8 £ 55 IR B A P K
rEaE>

AEEBTHRARS

HEREBLHEENER
EENREHNANE K&

ft B8 2 B Rl F R IR 1
REERHARE-

REFSHTWENA R A
ERFENEERIB AR (R
DEHIIMERIN) » RADIRUTE
HEBENRAAREFE mEEU
BRRBEE BAREBEAR
FFERERFEREEERR
5 Bl B 7 U3 18 B9 EC 1 B 50 BS )
W BB RE RV E IR EE AR A et ©

W BB AR R A A E AL BRFSZ 8 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Acquisitions of Subsidiaries (Continued)

2 BEXRGHHERME (@

2.3 WEMEBAE (8@
(a) EFESH (8)

(a) Business Combinations (Continued)

The excess of the:
consideration transferred,

amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference, after reassessment, is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Where the consideration the Group transferred
in a business combination includes assets
or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of
the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill
or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during
the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one
year from the acquisition date. The subsequent
accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on
how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration classified as a financial
liability is subsequently remeasured at each
reporting dates at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Acquisitions of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Acquisitions of Assets

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are assessed to determine if they are
business or asset acquisitions. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the Group chooses to apply
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is an asset rather
than business acquisition, when substantially
all the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or a
group of similar identifiable assets.

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the overall
acquisition cost is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their
relative fair values at the date of acquisition. An
exception is when the sum of the individual fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
differs from the overall acquisition cost. In such
case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that
are initially measured at an amount other than
cost in accordance with the Group’s policies
are measured accordingly, and the residual
acquisition cost is allocated to the remaining
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their
relative fair values at the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are
accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. Cost also
includes capital contribution relating to Equity
Incentive Scheme for investments in subsidiaries. The
results of subsidiaries and associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Chief Operating Decision-Maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign Currency Translation
(a) Functional and Presentation Currencies

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the functional and
presentation currencies of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation
at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, within “finance costs”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the
exchange rates at the transaction date).

Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

(c) Group Companies (Continued)

(d)

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Disposal of Foreign Operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 FEAGHBREE (B
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment 2.7 ME - -BEKREE

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress as described below) is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment charges, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 - 45 years
Leasehold Over the unexpired
improvements periods of the leases or

their expected useful lives
of 3 years, whichever
is shorter
Power generating 20 - 30 years
modules and
equipment
Plant and machinery 5 — 30 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 — 10 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 4 - 5 years

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % . —4E4E]

ME-BERRE (T XA ER
TN MEL AR R SHTE R
KEBEXH (WH) JIER - EL K
FEERBEZERE EEEBENA
%o

HEMATDStARBEERNREERN
WEDBABULEE RBERE EE
REZEEABIRKEEN ]

BER AR E B KRB B BB A SE
AIRMEFENERT) cEBRRED
BUBREE S AR FRMESE - FT A H i
W&ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁéi%%%%%%
rEBRmRATER

ME-BERKRENTENDERE
ORI E Y IR EMAS I ERFH
RIBERGREER  DEREN
PRI T :

5 20F 454
HEYE RESERERPB™E
Bz HIBHA ] (£ EHA3
F UURBEREES
%)

BREEAEK, 20FE304F
Bd

S R 28 5ZE304F
R EE 3EL10F
B A ZE
B
A E ATEBE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction and pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment charges, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings and the costs of plant
and machinery. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and are available for
the intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to other
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible Assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over (ii) the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date. When (ii) is
greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase. Goodwill is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment charges. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment.

Development Rights

Development rights which represent the rights
to develop certain solar power and hydro
power plants. Goodwill and development rights
acquired in a business combination are initially
recognised at fair value. Development rights will
be redesignated to property, plant and equipment
when the relevant power plants are developed,
acquired or operated by the Group. Development
rights are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated impairment charges, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not

subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment charge is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. Impairment charge is charged
pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating
unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or group assets (cash-generating units). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment charge at each reporting period.

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

amortised cost;
FVTPL; and
fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVOCI”).

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

(b)

(c)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and Derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

(i)

Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial
asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or
loss presented together with foreign
exchange differences. Loss allowances
are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The Group’s trade, bills and
tariff adjustment receivables, other
receivables, deposits, pledged deposits,
restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents fall into this category of
financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

(i)  Debt Instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)
(i)  Debt Instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVTPL is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
in which it arises.

(i) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
of the expected credit losses (“ECL") associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables
and contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 22 for further details.

Loss allowance on financial assets other than
trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables and
contract assets are measured as either 12-month
ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, then loss allowance is
measured as lifetime ECL.

In applying the forward-looking approach of ECL
assessment, a distinction is made between:

financial instruments that have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quality
since initial recognition or that have low
credit risk (“Stage 1”); and

financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 27).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)
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(d) Impairment (Continued) (d) H1E (#)

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date.

12-month ECL are recognised for the Stage 1
category while lifetime ECL are recognised for the
Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument.

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial assets at the reporting
date with the risk of default occurring on the
financial assets at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following assessment criteria is
taken into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and Other Financial Assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment (Continued)

existing or forecast adverse changes in
regulatory, business, financial, economic
conditions or technological environment that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations; and

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower
has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its
contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

(a)

(b)

Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include
other payables, lease liabilities and bank and
other borrowings.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
at amortised cost are recognised initially at
fair value net of transaction costs incurred
and subsequently stated at amortised cost,
using effective interest method. Any difference
between proceeds net of transaction costs
and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the period of the financial liabilities using the
effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Accounting policies for lease liabilities are set out
in Note 2.24.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost (Continued)

(b) Derecognition (Continued)

The terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 percent
different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability.

2.12 Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL included
convertible bonds.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

213

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial
liabilities that contain embedded derivatives, such as
convertible bonds, the changes in fair value of the
embedded derivatives are excluded in determining
the amount to be presented in other comprehensive
income. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in
other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to accumulated losses upon derecognition
of the financial liability.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether
the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of
a particular risk associated with the cash flows of
recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable
forecast transactions (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents
the economic relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, including whether
changes in the cash flows of the hedging instruments
are expected to offset changes in the cash flows
of hedged items. The Group documents its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking its
hedge transactions.

Cash flow hedge that qualifies for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in cash flow hedge
reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within other
income or other expense.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The gain
or loss relating to the effective portion of the cash flow
hedge is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss within finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Derivatives and Hedging Activities(Continued)

215

2,16

Cash flow hedge that qualifies for hedge accounting
(Continued)

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. When the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
was reported in equity is immediately reclassified to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment Receivables

Trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables are
amounts due from customers for electricity sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at
fair value. The Group holds the trade, bills and tariff
adjustment receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Cash at banks that are subject to third-party
contractual restrictions is included as part of cash
unless the restrictions result in a bank balance no
longer meeting the definition of cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

218

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Repurchase of the Company’s own ordinary shares is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own ordinary shares. The issued share
capital of the Company is reduced by the nominal
value of the cancelled ordinary shares. The premium
on the cancelled ordinary shares is charged against
share premium and/or contributed surplus.

Perpetual medium-term notes with no contracted
obligation to repay its principal or to pay any
distribution are classified as part of equity.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation
is satisfied by transferring control of the promised
products or services to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration expected to be collected in
exchange for those products or services. The revenue
recognition of the Group is determined through the
following five steps:

(i) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a
customer;

(ii) Identification of the performance obligations in
the contract;

(iii) Determination of the transaction price;

(iv) Allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract;

(v) Recognition of revenue when, or as, a performance
obligation is satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue Recognition (Continued)
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At contract inception, an assessment is required to
identify a performance obligation for each promise
to transfer to the customer a product or a service
(or bundle of products or services) that is distinct.
To identify the performance obligations, the Group
considers all the products and services promised in
the contract with the customer based on the Group’s
customary business practices, published policies, or
specific statements.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below:

(a) Sales of Electricity and Tariff Adjustment

Revenue from sales of electricity and tariff
adjustment is recognised at a point in time when
electricity is generated, transmitted and delivered
to the offtakers. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the
power purchase agreements. The electricity
generation will be confirmed regularly with the
offtakers. Therefore, it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

Revenue from sales of electricity is based on
the respective on-grid electricity rates. Tariff
adjustment represents subsidy received and
receivable pursuant to prevailing government
policy in respect of the Group’s renewable
energy projects. Tariff adjustment is recognised
at a point in time at fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the additional tariff
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions, if any.

Revenue from tariff adjustment is based on the
difference between the FITs regime implemented
by the PRC government for the provision of
subsidy to the solar and wind power plant
operators in the PRC and the revenue from sales
of electricity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

wR e M B R B

POLICIES (Continued)

218

219

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
(b) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset.

(c) Dividend Income

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at FVTPL. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid
out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
an investment.

(d) Operation and Maintenance Service Income

Income arising from operation and maintenance
service is recognised in the accounting period in
which the service is rendered.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time (generally
over 6 months for renewable power projects) to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and Deferred Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

(a)

(b)

Current Income Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. The management of
the Company (the “Management”) periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

2 BEXRGHHRME (@

2.20 BNEARIRIEFRISHR ()
(b) BEEFFZH (B)

(b) Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee Benefits

(a)

(b)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]

Short-Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the reporting period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Post-Employment Obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong are
required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme as defined in mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group under independently administered funds.
Contributions to the schemes by the employers
and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the company (the employer)
and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of
the employer and the employees are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. The Group has no further obligations
for the actual payment of post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %  “A4E4EH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee Benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-Employment Obligations (Continued)

(c)

Employees of the Group in the PRC are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes administered and operated by municipal
governments. The Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC contribute funds to the retirement scheme
to fund the retirement benefits of the employees
which are calculated on certain percentage of
the average employee salary as agreed by the
municipal government. Such retirement schemes
are responsible for the entire postretirement
benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no further obligations
for the actual payment of post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Share-Based Payments

(a) Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment

Transactions

The Group operates an employee share option
plan. The fair value of options granted under the
employee share option plan is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions
(for example, the entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining as an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or hold shares for a
specified period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-Based Payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment
Transactions (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

After vesting date, when the share options are
forfeited or lapsed prior to the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the “Share-
based payment reserve” will be transferred to
the “Accumulated losses” within the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

Share-Based Payment Transactions among Group
Entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiaries, with
a corresponding credit to the Company’s equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leases

Definition of a Lease and the Group as a Lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange
for consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope of
the contract; and

the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leases(Continued)

Definition of a Lease and the Group as a Lessee
(Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

(i) where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

(i) uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Company, which does not have
recent third-party financing; and

(iii) makes adjustments specific to the lease, for
example, term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability and any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date. Right-of-use assets are
generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. Payments associated
with short-term leases are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Restoration Provision

The Group records the present value of the estimated
cost of legal and constructive obligations to
rehabilitate lease areas as a restoration provision,
initially in the period in which the obligation is
incurred. The nature of restoration activities includes
dismantling and removing structures, dismantling
operating facilities, closure of plant, and restoration,
reclamation and revegetation of affected areas. When
the liability is initially recorded, the present value of
the estimated cost is capitalised by increasing the
carrying amount of the related leased assets. Over
time, the discounted liability is increased for the
change in the present value based on a discount rate,
where appropriate. Additional disturbances or changes
in restoration costs will be recognised as additions or
changes to the corresponding asset and restoration
liability when incurred. The unwinding of the effect of
discounting the provision is recorded as a finance cost
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
carrying amount capitalised as part of leased assets
is depreciated or amortised over the life of the related
asset.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Related Parties

N

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) ﬁj‘ % %ﬁ?%l‘fl‘

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 BEAGHBEREBE (8
POLICIES (Continued)
2.27 Related Parties (Continued) 2.27 FAEA L ()
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following by MEZAEA—HERERTSEM
conditions applies: (Continued) THMEG - (B)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZERAXNEENEANE
for the benefit of employees of either the EERENERIMESR
Group or an entity related to the Group. MR LB BER A 5T E o
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (vi) ZERBZ X (a)EFTH R
a person identified in (a) above. AN H 5 E 42 o
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) —%a(a)(i)EPT# B A %
influence over the entity or is a member of ZERBEATLENLS
the key management personnel of the entity ZER (AZEBNEA
(or of a parent of the entity). ) NEBEEEERE -
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (viii) ZE e H B £ BT
which it is a part, provides key management AR EAE R AEBEKA
personnel services to the Group or to the EESABREETEEE
parent of the Group. ANE PR -
Close members of the family of a person are —%)\:tE’JL%%?E 1E S EST
those family members who may be expected to RS FFEt e pE = & §JE§</\:|:
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their IEZATEENKERE
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial Risk Factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the
Company under policies approved by the Board of
Directors.

(a) Market Risk
(i)  Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Hong
Kong reporting entities is HK$ and the
transactions are mostly denominated in
HK$ and United States dollar (“US$”).
For transactions or balances denominated
in US$ which are reasonably stable with
the Hong Kong dollars under the Linked
Exchange Rate System, the directors are
of the opinion that the Company does not
have significant foreign exchange risk,
the exposure to fluctuation in exchange
rates will only arise from the translations
to the presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

The functional currency of the PRC reporting
entities is RMB and the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(a) Market Risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily through financing, capital
expenditure and expenses transactions that
are denominated in a currency other than
RMB, which is the functional currency of
the major subsidiaries of the Group. The
Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts and
payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to
an acceptable level from time to time. The
Group is presently not using any forward
exchange contract to hedge against foreign
exchange risk as Management considers its
exposure is not significant.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of changes
in rates on interest-bearing borrowings
which mainly bear floating interest rates. In
addition, the Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk through the fixed rates
applied to lease liabilities.

The Group monitors closely its interest rate
exposure by maintaining an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate borrowings and
considers hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise. The position
is regularly monitored and evaluated by
reference of anticipated changes in market
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A-T (&) ﬁj‘ % %ﬁ?%lﬁj‘

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEEKEIRE (B)
3.1 MHBRAKERER (&)
(a) FIEREE ()

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(a) Market Risk (Continued)

204

(ii) Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
bank and other borrowings had been 50
basis points (2022: 50 basis points) higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax would have been
approximately RMB200O million lower/
higher (2022: profit before income tax of
approximately RMB158 million lower/higher)
mainly because of higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises if a customer or other
counterparty fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The credit risk of the Group mainly
arises from trade, bills and tariff adjustment
receivables and contract assets, other
receivables and deposits and cash deposits.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 33% (2022: 49%)
of its trade and tariff adjustment receivables were
due from two (2022: three) largest customers,
which were mainly state-owned enterprises. To
measure the ECL, trade and tariff adjustment
receivables and have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and days past
due. Considering the track record of regular
settlement of trade receivables and based on the
Group’s experience with respect to the collection
of trade and tariff adjustment receivables, which
are well supported by the government policy, the
Board of Directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by these customers is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S AR bR E
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMERKER (8)

3.1 BERAREZE (@)
(b) 15EEE ()

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

The Group has policies that limit the amount
of credit exposure to any financial institutions.
Substantially all the deposits in banks are held
in reputable financial institutions located in Hong
Kong and the PRC, which Management believes
are of high credit quality and Management
does not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group has three types of assets that are
subject to the ECL model:

Trade and tariff adjustment receivables and
contract assets

Other receivables and deposits
Bills receivables and cash deposits

(including cash at banks, restricted cash and
pledged deposits)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

3 FINANCIAL

3.1 Financial

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(i)

Trade and tariff adjustment receivables

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]

The trade and tariff adjustment receivables
of the Group were arising from sales of
electricity and were mainly due from state-
owned enterprises. As described in Note
22, except for 12 solar power plants and
4 wind power plants with aggregate grid-
connected installed capacity of 1,766MW
(2022: 16 solar power plants and 7 wind
power plants with aggregate grid-connected
installed capacity of 1,896MW), the rest of
the Group’s power plants that are entitled
to tariff adjustment receivables were
successfully enlisted in the List (as defined
in Note 22). The Management is of the
opinion that the tariff adjustment receivables
will be settled in accordance with prevailing
government policies and prevalent payment
trends of Ministry of Finance. There is no
due date for settlement. Given the track
record of settlements of receivables from
sales of electricity and the collection of tariff
adjustment receivables are well supported by
the government policy, the Management is of
the opinion that the risk of default by these
customers is not significant. Therefore, an
accumulated impairment on trade receivable
of approximately RMB1 million was recorded
by the Group as at 31 December 2023
(2022: approximately RMB25 million on
trade and tariff adjustment receivables).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(if)

Other receivables and deposits

Impairment charge on other receivables and
deposits are measured as either 12-month
ECL or lifetime ECL on individual basis,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, then impairment
charge is measured as lifetime ECL.
Certain long-aged deposits for investments
and other receivables with an aggregated
gross carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,182 million as at 31 December
2023 (2022: approximately RMB1,171
million) are assessed individually; and
the Group has recognised impairment
charge of approximately RMB1,182
million in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December
2023 (2022: approximately RMB1,171
million) for these deposits for investments
and other receivables (see Note 23(a)).
The Management considered there is no
significant increase in credit risk on these
balances.

3

R 55 L

wR e M B R B

ZEIE ()

3.1 MERAMEZER (@&
(b) 15EEE ()
BHEERE ()

(if)

HittEWRIERIZE

KB E e R R IE K&
FRESH > BRF T
BRAENEERRBETE
0 5 ¥ 1E B & A L
1218 B TEHEE BB
2B EREIRTE
GEBRDENEERKRE
S B EEEELEN:
BEXHUZHHEREE
Bzt - RN _2_=
+-B=+—H #FK®\
EEHENARKL1,1825
BT (ZTEZZ_4F:49A
Eﬁ%l,l?iﬁ%ﬁ) & F

RRRENRERERE
T’@%H&TAIEE 2 & 5T ;
MAEEEMZERER
EREMERREBER -
_=F+_B=+—HHW
e M BERRREDRE
THHAREL, 18288
T(ZE_—_F  HAR
117188 7w) (RWF
23(a)) *BIEERAZE
EERBNE B R e R E
0 o

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatRETRBIRER A IR 28 R
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =% — = 4E4EH

207



208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok B B R R Bk
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

(if)

MBEEERE (8)

3.1 MBAREZR (&)

(b) EEmEE (&)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued) THEERE (&
Other receivables and deposits (Continued) (iiy HMEWRIBERIZE (&)
The movements of impairment charge KERSREMEKRIE
on deposits for investments and other FURESZ HESHWMT
receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F =B F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETT ARBEBETT
State 1: B—MEER
At 1 January ®w—HB—H 22 23
Increase in impairment ThE fth FE U TR IE FE S
charge recognised on other BY R {E 7 H 38 0
receivables 3 -
Write-off against other i # ELAth g U =R IE
receivables - (1)
At 31 December ®+=-—B=+—H 25 22
Stage 2: 55 T PEER ¢
At 1 January ®w—HB—H 1,149 1,099
Exchange difference bE A %8 8 50
At 31 December R+ZRA=+—H 1,157 1,149
Total “a st 1,182 1,171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(if)

Other receivables and deposits (Continued)

On 28 September 2020, considering
the limitations encountered during the
investigation as disclosed in the Company’s
2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 annual
reports, the significant sums involved
and the findings in the investigation,
after consulting with the legal advisers,
the Company reported the incidents of
prepayment of the deposits of approximately
RMB1,094 million to the Commercial Crime
Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force.
Considering the case is currently under
investigation by the Hong Kong Police Force,
no reversal of the impairment charge is
suggested by the Board for the Year. During
the Year, no impairment charge (2022: Nil) is
suggested by the Board after having reviewed
the settlement status subsequently.

The remaining other receivables and
deposits, which are not related to the above
investigation, are separately assessed.
Management considers there is sufficient
provision for impairment on the balances due
from NEX Group. Accordingly, no ECL was
recognised for the Year (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

3 FINANCIAL

3.1 Financial

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Risk Factors (Continued)

(b) Credit Risk (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

(iii)

Bills receivables and cash deposits

(including cash at banks, restricted cash
and pledged deposits)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
deposits are placed in reputable banks and
financial institutions in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Most of the bills receivables are
issued from state-owned banks in the PRC.
The credit quality of bills receivables, cash at
banks, restricted cash and pledged deposits
has been assessed by reference to external
credit ratings or to historical information
about the counterparty default rates. The
existing counterparties do not have defaults
in the past. Therefore, ECL rate of bills
receivable, cash at banks, restricted cash
and pledged deposits is assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

(c) Liquidity Risk

Cas

Management.

h flow forecasts are prepared by
Management monitors rolling

forecasts on the Group’s liquidity requirements
to ensure the Group maintains sufficient liquidity
reserve to support sustainability and growth
of the Group’s business. Currently, the Group
finances its working capital requirements through

funds generated from operations,

new

issue of
shares, senior notes, medium-term notes,

corporate bonds, and bank and other borrowings.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBRAREIR (B)
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Continued) 3.1 HEAKREZE (@&
(¢c) Liquidity Risk (Continued) (c) TEEZEE (1B)
The Management monitors rolling forecasts of the EEEKREEARERE &
Group’s liquidity reserve based on expected cash EREERBESRHEENERE
flows. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor FTEHl e REBMEEK A EHEE
current and expected liquidity requirements and TER MTERRSEEE KK
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure HEFTERZHIF R 1 mE
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash RAEEERFRERESHEEBU
and adequate committed lines of funding from MEFTELREERERHEN
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity BEHES UENEEHERE
requirements in the short and long term. M REIE &= K
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TxRZBMEIHEAER (BDER
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings EHREREANEH BT ERER
based on the remaining period at the end of EH) S AREENEREaEETY
the reporting period to the contractual maturity MeEXRABBENETBEAEESN
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the HERITIFWIRERE
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Carrying
Within 1 year 2nd year 3-5years Over 5 years Total Amount
—&R FIE =ERfF AEHRE st IREE
RMB’million RMB'million RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET AREEER ARKBER ARBEER ARKBER AREKEER
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=%
+-A=+—H
Other payables HiEI 78 7,039 - - - 7,039 7,039
Bank and other borrowings and $R{7 R EME K
corresponding interests TR 8 23,843 13,433 19,673 14,240 71,189 62,706
Convertible bonds AR ES 404 - - - 404 343
Contingent consideration EAZERE
payables 2 2 1 - 5 5
Lease liabilities HE&E 202 126 346 1,367 2,041 1,438
31,490 13,561 20,020 15,607 80,678 71,531
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_%F
+ZA=+-H
Other payables HthfE(F B 4,261 - - - 4,261 4,261
Bank and other borrowings and $R{7 R EMEZ K
corresponding interests il 16,031 11,862 12,843 8,882 49,618 43,790
Convertible bonds AR ES 13 398 - - 411 355
Contingent consideration EAZAERE
payables 2 8 11 - 21 21
Lease liabilities HESE 116 104 268 1,148 1,636 1,139
20,423 12,372 13,122 10,030 55,947 49,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
condition. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may obtain bank and other
borrowings, issue of convertible bonds, issue of senior
notes, medium-term notes and corporate bonds or
placing of new shares. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debts divided by total capital. Net debts are
calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash deposits (including cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted
cash as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position). Total capital is calculated as “total
equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position plus net debts.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBRAREIR (B)
3.2 Capital Risk Management (Continued) 3.2 BEARAMERE (B
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2023 and 2022 N ECCERCE__&F+_"HRH
were as follows: =t+—HHNEXRSBLLIRUT :
2023 2022
—_E-=F =B
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBETRT AEBBEET
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMAERR 62,706 43,790
Convertible bonds ARG ES 343 355
Total borrowings and convertible B R ARG E SRR
bonds 63,049 44,145
Less: cash deposits B BREFENR (6,806) (8,023)
Net debts RS 56,243 36,122
Total equity T m AR5 17,063 10,183
Total capital B ARAEEE 73,306 46,305
Gearing ratio BARBMELEE 76.7% 78.0%
3.3 Fair Value Estimation 3.3 ARENfHE
The table below analyses financial instruments carried TRUBEBEEDTELAETIRN
at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels THMTHE-BHENERLT :
have been defined as follows:
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for - FERBEFEENRIEETIS
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). MRE CREHEE) (F—4R) °
Inputs other than quoted prices included within - MEBEESGEEYEE (B%E
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or %) 2t 3% (BPIEBARFTS) HisR
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or FT 18 S M0 oK {5 FA B2 K A 3 22 )
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) and not ASIER A B (M A S —
using significant observable inputs (Level 2). ;AR BERIN) (BB 4R o
Significant inputs for the asset or liability that are - BEYLABTIFRKRETERT
not based on observable market data (that is, SEIERE K A& (BR8]
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). B AR (F=4) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MHBRAMEIRE (8
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued) 3.3 ARENMGET (.‘E)
The following tables present the fair value hierarchy of TREIN _ S _=ZFK_F_—
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that were FE+ZB=+—HAEBURNE
measured at fair value at 31 December 2023 and SFENEHMEERBENANERE
2022. 2R o
Level 3
BE=R
2023 2022
—E_= —_=EFE_
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AERBEET
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARETTAERN
(Note 21) THMEE ([H5E21)
Power purchase agreements BE = 24 =
Unlisted investments FELMEE 33 34
Liabilities afE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREST AT
SRHEE
Convertible bonds (Note 27) Al ES (fsE27) 343 355
Contingent consideration BB E
payables (Note 28) (F$5E28) 5 21

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no
financial instrument included in Level 1 and Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

Guaranteed electricity output was estimated
based on the shortfall of electricity pursuant to
sale and purchase agreements mutually agreed
between the Company and vendors in respect of
acquisitions of subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

Power purchase agreements are accounted for
as derivative contracts at fair value through profit
or loss based on the net present value of the
difference between the forward market curve of
the electricity price and the fixed price stated in
the power purchase agreements.

Unlisted investments were determined mainly
based on the sum-of-the-parts approach (2022:
sum-of-the-parts approach). The Group has
engaged an external independent valuer to
assess the fair value of unlisted investments. The
significant unobservable inputs include the fair
value of the assets and liabilities of the investee
company.

Convertible bonds were determined based on
binomial model. The Group engaged an external
independent valuer to assess its fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The significant
unobservable inputs include the discount rate,
volatility rate and expected dividend yield. Details
of the key assumptions are set out in Note 27 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent consideration payables for
acquisitions measurements require, among other
things, significant estimation of post-acquisition
performance of the acquired businesses and
significant judgement on time value of money.
These calculations use cash flow projections for
post-acquisition performance. The discount rate
used is based on the then prevailing incremental
cost of borrowings of the Group at time of
acquisitions.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
or liabilities between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value hierarchy classifications during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MHBRAMEIRE (8
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued) 3.3 ARENEST @
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 TREVNE=ZHIENRETEENE
instruments for the Year. Ejo
Financial assets Financial liabilities
at FVTPL at FVTPL
BRAREHABENEREE BRAREHABENEREE
Guaranteed Power Contingent
electricity purchase Unlisted Convertible  consideration
output agreement investments bonds payables

EREHEL EEH=z ELHkE mHRES EERELE
RMB'million RMB’million RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million
AE¥BET AREESET ARBEERT ARBKEERT AREEER

At 1 January 2023 RZB-=#—-HA—-H - - 34 (355) (21)
Initial recognition iamER - 23 - - -
Interest payment FRFE - - - 13 -
Fair value loss recognised in the 4R &8 R REAY

consolidated statement of AREBRE

profit or loss - - 1) (1) -
Reassessment EE - - - - 18
Exchange difference ERESH - 1 - - ()
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=

+ZB=+-H - 2 33 (343) (5)

Total losses for the year RERFBEREERK

included in the consolidated BEFAGRERRN

statement of profit or loss for ~ EEFEEE

assets and liabilities held at

the end of the year - - (1) (1) -

Change in unrealised losses RERRBEERER
for the year included in the SAGABRRN
consolidated statement of FEAREREREY
profit or loss for assets and
liabilities held at the end of
the year - - (1) (1) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the

changes in Level 3

instruments for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Financial assets

wR e M B R B

MEREEERE (B)

3.3 ARMERILE (&)
TE2HE=RIANRBE-S
——&+t-A=t+-BiEENS
& o

Financial liabilities

at FVTPL at FVTPL

BRAREFABGZNEREE EAnEGABENEHER

Guaranteed Contingent

electricity Unlisted Convertible  consideration

output investments bonds payables

ERENGEH  FLTMEE  TBRRES BOIERE

RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million

AREBERT AREBEERT AREBEER ARKBER

At 1 January 2022 KRZE--“%—HA—H 4 35 (346) -

Interest payment FAFHE - - 13 =
Fair value loss recognised in [RGB m &R

the consolidated statement ‘A # (A2

of profit or loss - 1) (22) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—FIKIBAE (f534)

(Note 34) - - - (22)
Settlement eyl (4) = - -
At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z

+=ZB=+—-H - 34 (355) (21)
Total losses the year included FLERFFEEERK

in the consolidated BEAGEERRD

statement of profit or loss ~ FEEEBLAELE

for assets and liabilities

held at the end of the year - (1) (22) -
Change in unrealised losses FHEXRFIFEEERK

for the year included in the ~ BEFFAGEEARN

consolidated statement of ~ FEEREIREELE)

profit or loss for assets and

liabilities held at the end of

the year - (1) (22) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

Sensitivity Analysis of Observable and Unobservable
Inputs

As described, the fair values of financial assets and
liabilities that are classified in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are determined using valuation techniques
that make use of significant inputs that are not based
on observable market data. These fair values could
be sensitive to changes in the assumptions used
to derive the inputs. The table below illustrates the
sensitivity of the significant inputs when they are

MR ERE (&)
3.3 ARMEIIER ()

A BI5E Re T AT R B B AE UL /E
2
WEXFM > PERBE=RANE
BHRONTHEEREBRAREBLME
BIFRBEIBERERTZHENEKR
MABBHNEERMEE -ZFAQ
AEAEHBEEEHABENR
REFEABR - TRABERE
ABERESEMGERNTEAR
BERBIERE

changed to reasonably possible alternative inputs:

Significant Range of  Favourable/(unfavourable)
Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation techniques inputs inputs changes in profit or loss
kiR Rt+ZB=+—HWARE BRI EXBARE HANEHEE HHEEN/ (FH) 27
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—ZZ= “E-"F ZCZEZ=f "FTI-H —E-= “ECF
RMB’million RMB'million RMB’million RMB'million
AEBEER ARKEET AEBEER ARKEET
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAREFABENEMEE
Unlisted investments 33 34 Sum-of- Sum-of-  Discount rate +0.5% (0.2) (0.2)
EEHERE the-Parts the-Parts of 6.8% -0.5% 0.2 0.1
Approach Approach (2022:
FE S 6.83%)
TEMAE  FEBRE  HRE6.8%
(CB-=%F:
6.83%)
Revenue +5% 0.4 -
with growth -5% (0.4) -
rate of 0%
(2022: 0%)
WA
ERZE0%
(ZBZZF:
0%)
Power purchase agreement 24 - Hedge - Discount rate +2.5% - -
quantitative of 2.28% -2.5% - -
approach
EEhE HEEE R =2.28%
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
BRAAEFABRENEMAR
Convertible bonds 343 855 Binomial Binomial Volatility +5% - (6)
AR ES Model Model il -5% - 10
ZEARE  ZEARL
Share price +HK$0.1 (3) (81)
RE -HK$0.1 - 60
+5180.47T
-#1%0.17T
Discount +0.5% 1 1
rate of 2.24% -0.5% (1) (1)
(2022:
25.37%)
R=
2.24%
(ZBZZfF:
25.37%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) ﬁj‘ i’% %ﬁ?%l‘fl‘

MEREBERE (8)
3.3 AnENLET (&)
B R T o SR B A B IR
2T (48)

Significant Range of
Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation techniques inputs inputs changes in profit or loss
KR R+ZB=+—-HANARE fh B BEABASE WAREEE BBz (FH) 28
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECI=E ZZZ= ZECI=E
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AEBEERT AREEER AEBEERT AREEER
Contingent consideration 5 21 Discounted Discounted  2,200-2,630 +1% - (1)
payables Cash Flows Cash Flows effective -1% - 1

BAHERE REmrRE REMMRE  working hours

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

Sensitivity Analysis of Observable and Unobservable
Inputs (Continued)

Favourable/(unfavourable)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(2022: 2,200-
2,630)
2,200-2,630
BUEBRY
CE__&:

2,2002,630)

Discount +3% - (1)

rate of 8.8% -3% - 1
(2022:
11.9%)
#IRE8.8%
(- Sobo: =1
11.9%)

BAgHE T REER

fi 5t Re ¥ B B AR S A AT A 0 IR IR A4S
BRHEMEE (BERARIER THRES
BEBHRREFNTER) MEH

FEBEMBRFEFLHGESMRR
REDEs G WELRERERE
REF-AHEERBRESIREAR TNEM
BREEHEERBBNREEEEARH
BHEst RBRRTHUMT -

4.1 Critical Accounting Judgements 4.1 FASEEEHHIER
Apart from those involving estimations (see below), b R fst®& (RT3 0 LT A
the following are the critical judgements which EEETRBAEENEFHEB

Management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

A2 R AT R B AR & B #5 SRAR FE SR Y
TRRAEATERI R H & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
4.1 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued)

(a) Revenue Recognition on Tariff Adjustment on

Sales of Electricity

During the Year, the Group recognised tariff
adjustment of RMB2,488 million (2022:
approximately RMB2,315 million) in the sales
of electricity. As disclosed in Note 22, certain
power plants of the Group were still pending to
be enlisted in the List (as defined in Note 22)
as of 31 December 2023, which was an on-going
process as the List was opened for registration
on a batch-by-batch basis under the prevailing
nationwide government policies. Accordingly,
the tariff adjustment of certain power plants
to be enlisted in the List were only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that
such recognition would not result in significant
revenue reversal in the future on the basis that
these power plants had been qualified for and
had met all the requirements and conditions
for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy under
the prevailing nationwide government policies
on renewable energy for power plants. Hence,
the Group’s operating power plants are able to
be enlisted in the List subsequent to the Year
and the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy are
fully recoverable. During the Year, the Group
recognised tariff adjustment as revenue of
approximately RMB123 million and RMB97
million (2022: approximately RMB164 million and
RMB115 million relating to solar power plants and
wind power plants, respectively) relating to solar
power plants and wind power plants, respectively
not yet enlisted in the List.

4 EXRGsHEERER (@)

41 FAES

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EARGHE KRR (@
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
4.1 Critical Accounting Judgements (Continued) 4.1 FARZEHHIE (B
(b) Business Combinations (b) EFESH
Accounting for acquisitions require the Group to WEEZREERAERER

allocate the cost of acquisition to specific assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
The Group has undertaken processes to identify
all assets and liabilities acquired, including
acquired intangible assets. Judgements made
in identifying all acquired assets, determining
the estimated fair value assigned to each class
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as
well as asset’s useful lives, could materially
impact the calculation of goodwill, bargain
purchase gain and depreciation and amortisation
charges in subsequent periods. Estimated fair
values are based on information available near
the acquisition date and on expectations and
assumptions that have been deemed reasonable
by Management. Determining the estimated
useful lives of tangible and intangible assets
acquired also requires judgement.

Different conclusions around these judgements
may materially impact how these investments
presented and measured in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group.

FTEBHS EEERFIAESR
BERWBERNGES ARER
REZBDERUWBA A - K&
B2 E17 2822 F U AP UL
BOWFEEERER HPE
EATRBHETL S E - E# 5
FRERBNEE BEFWE
BERAEEESEERDN
HESt AR EUREENAER
FHREENFE DJEEY
SAEEE REBEER@UK
TRABNITERBHEZHE
MEAFE -BFARENE
P U B AR 12 B B RV E #HX
REEERAAENERRR
RET -ETEFMRBHATL K

B EENGSAIERFEHRT
AR H o

Egaﬂx—_rj:lJ'zﬁE,]Tl_JuDD Bb
= ﬂﬁ%lﬁé\ﬁﬁ“ﬂk/ﬂif
5”&5"5571»(—1—?&?&%55%7(

=
R=

4.2 fhEtFHEEM

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the UTAEBARNETERERBRSE
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty ARG AEEREZNEMEIEIK
at the end of the reporting period that may have a 77_ ZERKXRFAEERZRFRA

SEME B AR BT — @M
BN AR A ERE E SRS
AiBE o

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

and Intangible Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are
tested annually for impairment; or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on the higher of value in use calculations
or fair value less costs of disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates. The Management judgement
is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use (i.e. net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business);
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by the Management
in assessing impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment
assessment and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets were approximately RMB64,150 million
(net of impairment of approximately RMB1,131
million) and RMB1,166 million (net of impairment
of approximately RMB831 million), respectively
(2022: approximately RMB32,374 million (net
of impairment of approximately RMB968 million)
and RMB1,166 million (net of impairment of
approximately RMB831 million), respectively).

4 EXRGsHEERER (@)

4.2 fhEtREEEM (@)

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:-T (&) Ej‘ i’% %ﬁ?%l‘fl‘

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

4 EXRGsHERER (@)

4.2 fHEtREEM (B

(b) Impairment of Trade, Bills and Tariff Adjustment (b) EUSHRIE  Z1E R E1E/HRLIE

Receivables, Other Receivables and Deposits

The Group makes provision for impairment of

WARTE « Rt B H B R IE 2
HLE
AEERBERENRAR KA

trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables, HAE BB X RER 7 E IR
other receivables and deposits based on BN ERLEEHEEWRKRE
assumptions about risk of default and ECL rate. Hh FE W IE K 3% & 51 R (B
The Group uses judgement in making these BE AERRERZRGH
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the RAAEBENBEFLEE REM
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s 35wk 50 LA R B BE M {5 51 0 5B B
past records, existing market conditions as well HIETEH ZEBRR M EERE

as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Note 3.1(b) provides the basis
of the calculation of the loss allowance. As at 31
December 2023, the aggregate carrying amounts
of trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables,
other receivables and deposits amounted to
approximately RMB8,218 million and RMB2,787
million (net of ECL allowance of approximately
RMB1 million and RMB1,182 million,
respectively), respectively (2022: approximately
RMBS8,296 million and RMB3,459 million (net of
ECL allowance of approximately RMB25 million
and RMB1,171 million, respectively).

SHERE AR iéﬂa%ﬂ%ﬁ
Bk IEE PN E3.1(b) o 1D
B =ZF+"HA=+— EI’
FEWERTE - ZiE & EEMALE
WERTE s HthE W B Rz
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁmaﬁ%lwﬁj)\%ﬂ%
8,218E BTt ARK2,787TH
Bt NREREEFEBEEED
AMNAEAREIEETEAR
41,1828 (T2
DR ANRKES, 2968 & T
R ARM3 4597 &t (MR TE
HEEBEEEEIINNAAR
BosEBEBTRARKLL1TIE
EIT)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

4.2 Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities were determined by using various
valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount rates,
which are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumptions used could materially
affect the fair value of these balances and as
a result affect the Group’s financial condition
and results of operation. As at 31 December
2023, the fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL were approximately
RMB57 million (2022: approximately
RMB34 million) and RMB348 million (2022:
approximately RMB376 million), respectively.
Details of the fair value measurement are
disclosed in Note 3.3.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. As at
31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB64,150 million (net of impairment charge
of approximately RMB1,131 million) (2022:
approximately RMB32,374 million (net of
impairment charge of approximately RMB968
million)).

4 EXRGsHEERER (@)

4.2 fhEtREEEM (@)

(c)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Chief Operating Decision-Maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as the Board. The Management has determined
the operating segments based on the internal reports
reviewed by CODM in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The Group’s operating segments are
structured and managed separately according to the nature
of products sold or services provided by different strategic
business units and subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other operating segments. The
Board assess the performance of the operating segments
based on reporting operating results.

During the Year, CODM has changed its internal
performance review to align more closely with the Group’s
strategic decision and development. The Group’s operating
segments have been redefined and aggregated in terms
of similar economic characteristics and similar nature
of products sold or services provided into the following
reporting segments.

(a) Solar power business — management and operation of
solar power generation projects located in the PRC and
overseas;

(b) Wind power business — management and operation of
wind power generation projects located in the PRC and
overseas; and

(c) Hydro power business — management and operation of
hydro power generation projects located in the PRC.

Others include corporate income and expenses, other direct
investments, energy storage business and others.

wR e M B R B

SERE R
TEEERRE (T EEERRE ) E
BAREFE -EEEERBRTEE
BRAREBRIANBREEELED
BB U ERBERDEE R  AEBERKL
ENEHRBIRARBEEBEMUFLE
7 an PR 3R £ AR 75 9 14 B T 98 12 4B Al &
B B P AHE B9 R B R (0] 3R 22 H A
ENMAIFA - EFETREBEMBEHEE
REHEEE D BRIKRE -

REFE > TBEERRECENHEA
BERBWS  UERMAANE B BIEBSR
RERER -AEENKEEDHCEATH
EEMAFRERFHELEERER
BLULEEMRERGHAUTRSED

#p e

(a) RIGREEBEHF-BEERECEMURN
PR BIIIKRIGEEEER ;

(b) RABBEH -—EBREEMUNRF
BRI RDEBEE ; &

() KANBEBXEH - EEREEMURF
BBk EIEE

HtMBEEXWARRBX HMEER
B fEEEH R HEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRS A R T
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEHEE (@)
(a) Business Segments (a) EBERE
(i) Segment Revenue and Results, and Segment (i) DERAREE LUK ESE
Assets and Liabilities EREE
Solar Wind Hydro
power power power
business business business Others Total
KA =Wl kA
S EE% EE% Hith 43t

RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEER ARKEET AREEERT AREEERT ARKEER

Year ended 31 December 2023 H#E_E_=fF

+ZBA=+—HLEE
Revenue A 3,980 1,081 507 - 5,568
Segment results DEEE 1,970 592 267 (308) 2,521

AN ERE M 2B

Unallocated other gains and

losses
Bargain purchase gains ERAHELENZE

arising from business EE @

combinations 79
Acquisition costs arising from  EFEAHELR

business combinations W BE A A (8)

Finance income RRE WA 69

Finance costs MEME (1,997)

Share-based payment URBAERS AN

expenses 53 (10)
Profit before income tax PRETEHIANRF 654
Income tax expenses FriStifE (182)
Profit after income tax BRETS IR BRI 472
As at 31 December 2023 R-E_=%

+ZR=+—-H
Segment assets DHEE 42,723 27,213 9,458 2,514 81,908
Unallocated assets RANEEE 8,128
Total assets BEEE 90,036
Total assets including: BEMBERE .

Investments in associates REERENEE 132 425 289 174 1,020
Segment liabilities NHaR 21,817 12,989 4,284 27,760 66,850
Unallocated liabilities AnEk&’E 6,123
Total liabilities BEME 72,973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEHEER @)
(a) Business Segments (Continued) (a) EFDEP (4E)
(i) Segment Revenue and Results, and Segment (i) DEBARES  URFEE
Assets and Liabilities (Continued) EREE ()
Solar Wind Hydro
power power power
business business business Others Total
NS B KA
HEEK BEEK BEEK Hith st

RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB’million
AREBERT AREBEERx ARBEET AREAET AREBER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_E__

+ZB=+—HLEE
Revenue WA 3,623 492 = - 4,115
Segment results DEEE 2,237 286 - (403) 2,120

Unallocated other gains and KD FHE 1l K &1

losses
Bargain purchase gains ERAHELEN
arising from business ZEEE kG
combinations 7
Acquisition costs arising from  EF A HEERRERE
business combinations (23)
Finance income EEON 38
Finance costs MEME (1,514)
Share-based payment MERHAERS AH
expenses % (5)
Profit before income tax BRETE AR 623
Income tax expenses FriStifE (151)
Profit after income tax BRETIS IR B 472

As at 31 December 2022 RZE__fF

+ZB=1+-H
Segment assets DHEE 36,795 10,660 - 4,546 52,001
Unallocated assets APEEE 8,327
Total assets BEME 60,328
Total assets including: BEMBERE .

Investments in associates REEARNRE 131 431 = 174 736
Segment liabilities NHaR 22,189 6,647 - 17,953 46,789
Unallocated liabilities )= 3,356
Total liabilities BfREE 50,145
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) Business Segments (Continued)

(ii) Other Segment Information

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

5 S9EEF (B
(a) EBEDE (B
(i) B3 EEH

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_S_=E+"A=1+—HILEE

Solar Wind Hydro
power power power
business business business Others Total
KIRhE B 9]
XEER XEER XEER Hitr st
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEER AR¥EEER AR¥EET AREDER AREEER
Additions to non-current assets AEIFRENEE (B1F
(including property, plant and ~ #J% BB K&
equipment and right-of-use UEREREEE)
assets) 5,842 11,428 317 888 18,475
Depreciation of property, plant  #J% B KR EITE
and equipment (1,191) (424) (174) (6) (1,795)
Depreciation of right-of-use FCRESENE
assets (69) (8) (2) (29) (108)
Impairment charge on financial &F4E ERES H
assets (1) - - - (1)
Impairment charge on property, #13 BRE KR & R{ES
plant and equipment (163) - - - (163)
Fair value losses on financial /A A EF ABZEE
assets at FVTPL SREENAABEERE (1) 1 - - -
Fair value losses on financial A A EH ABRM
liabilities at FVTPL EHBBENAREER - - - (1) (1)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HENE BRERREN
property, plant and equipment W&/ (§548) 1 - (1) - -
Share of profits of investments E{LE AR % ABRAY
accounted for using equity REHA
method 11 7 - 12 30
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e B R R
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEHEER @)
(a) Business Segments (Continued) (a) EFDEP (4E)
(ii) Other Segment Information(Continued) (i) B3 EEH (48)

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_S__E+_RA=1+—HIEE

Solar Wind Hydro

power power power
business business business Others Total

NGy 77 k7
XEET XEET XEET HAth szt

RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million
AEBEET AR¥EET AREEEEBT AREKBET AREKEBEER

Additions to non-current assets AEIFRENEE (B1F
(including property, plant and ~ #J% BB K& &
equipment and right-of-use MR EREEE)

assets) 2,635 630 - 106 3,371
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% B R &R &I E

and equipment (1,048) (192) - (4) (1,244)
Depreciation of right-of-use FCRESENE

assets (49) () = (21) (72)
Impairment charge on other ~ EfEWFIERES H

receivables (25) - - - (25)
Provision for compensation e RE (35) = = = (35)
Fair value losses on financial A A E ABHM

assets at FVTPL EHEENANEEE - - = 1) (1)
Fair value losses on financial 122 A fEzt ABRHH

liabilities at FVTPL EHEENAAEEE - - = (22) (22)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of HENE BERREN

property, plant and equipment 1%/ (§548) - = = - -
Share of profits of investments {5 AR Z AKRE

accounted for using equity BRE&F

method 17 2 - - 19
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRS A R T
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 9EER (@)
(b) Geographical Segments (b) 3thiz 5330
The major operating entities of the Group are AREBTELKESERAE PR A
domiciled in the PRC. The revenue of the Group from SEEEMESMNEBINSEEN
external customers by geographical area as follows: AT :
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBETT ARBBAET
The PRC FE 5,375 4,115
Australia B 125 -
Vietnam e 68 =
5,568 4,115
The Group’s non-current assets other than financial AEFRMIFHTHIERTEE B
instruments and deferred tax assets by geographical M T ERREIERIBEEEIN OOF -
area are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBETT ARBAET
The PRC R 63,542 34,910
Australia B 5,803 475
Vietnam e 533 570
Hong Kong 58 6 1
69,884 35,956
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Information About Major Customers

During the Year, there were three (2022: three)
customers which individually contributed over 10% of
the Group’s total revenue. The revenue contributed

wR e M B R B

FEER (8)
(c) BMEEEFNER

REFE AEBF=% (CTT -
F: =) R ZEHFEEBK
ANERBBE10% REZEFERE

from each of these customers was as follows: BN ASEINT :
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETT AREBETT
Customer A ZEA 723 655
Customer B =ZFB 694 493
Customer C ZHC 571 465
OTHER INCOME H A
2023 2022
—E-=F B &
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETT ARBEBETT
Interest income on deposits for KRERENH B WA
investments (Note (i)) (B 5%(i)) 292 =
Reversal of other payables (Note (ii)) BEEI EAME R IE (5E(ii)) 111 =
Operation and maintenance service BITRAEERBWA
income 26 7
Government grant BT f B 3 2
Compensation income REWA - 12
Others HAth 8 30
440 51
Notes: FIEE
(i) During the development stage of power plants or merger (i) REBIHNHBETEINRERER K&

(if)

and acquisition plans, the Group had made deposits for
investments to the potential partners. Interest on deposits
for investments would be recognised together with the
return of the deposits for investments upon the completion
or the termination of the relevant projects.

The amount represents reversal of over provision of a
compensation to a government authority.

(i)

MEEREBHINRERE  RE
& B AERITE B 1 T a4 1By 54
ERE—HRERESR -

ZE 7 B O — R BT A i E R
BRBIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRS A R T
7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 7 BEEFBEX
(a) Employee Benefits Expenses (including Directors’ (a) EERFIREZ (BFEEEFME)

Emoluments)

2023 2022
= —EF-
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT AREBETT
Salaries, bonuses and other e TEAL R H 3R
benefits 490 293
Retirement benefit scheme BB 5B HR (5
contributions (Note) 47 58
537 351
Share-based payment expenses VR AERST IS
(Note 25(c)) (HF5E25(c)) 10 5
547 356
Note: During the Year, the Group had no forfeited sk : RAFEE > AEBMRKERE
contributions under its retirement contribution plans )18 T W E B W2 R el F
which may be used for reducing the existing level of FHAURERAENERUKE (Z
contributions (2022: Nil). T ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wR e M B R B

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 7 EEEIRX (@)
(b) Five Highest Paid Employees (b) AREHES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, one (2022: None) of the directors of
the Company, whose emoluments is included in the
disclosure set out in Note 7(c) below. The emoluments
of the four (2022: five) highest paid individuals except
directors are as follows:

REEBIUKSHALTH  — 1
(ZEZF B RERTES>
Hl &R TXME7(c)IREER
BlefRESIN MU (CEZ"F 5
i) ZEF A TR T :

2023 2022
—E-= -
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT ARBEET
Salaries and bonuses e MIEAL 11.96 11.55
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREF B H R
contributions 0.41 0.37
Share-based payment expenses DR AERSZ TR 2.31 1.05
14.68 12.97
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENFUTEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Emolument bands: B <& &6 [F] -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 B2 500,00175—
75 1£3,000,0007C - 3
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 B 1£3,000,0017T—
& 13,500,0007T 2 2
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 7B %3,500,00175—
7B 154,000,0007T 2 =

During the Year, no emolument was paid or payable by
the Group to any of the directors or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for the loss of
office (2022: Nil).

REFE ZEEREREAES
HEUEREHFALTZNRNELER
ME FREEEMBAERRR
MEBEREERRTHRBMAEC

= | ) o

= o s
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The emoluments paid or payable to each director were

as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 7

(c) Directors’ Emoluments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

EERAMEZ (8)
(c) EEME

ENSENSUESAMEMT :

BE—_E_—F+_HF=+—HIF

FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director’s other services Emoluments
in connection with the management of the affairs of paid or
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking receivable
HRESHERFNAREMBADEBNEHEMN in respect of
HitfREB AR RN a person’s
services as
a director,
whether of
Retirement the Company
benefit  Share-based or its
Discretionary scheme payment subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions expenses undertaking Total
fEREZ
(FER
FAFHHE
WEAR
N5 £55) =7t
BINER  ERXfN  REWEMH
g ik KiBTEA HEEE B%  ERMHE Azt
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AE®BET ARKEER AREEER ARKEER ARKEERT ARBESER AREKEER
Executive directors: BiTES!
Mr. Zhang Ping RERE - 0.57 1,62 - 0.56 - 2.75
Mr. Lu Zhenwei (Note (i) ERESEE () - - - - - - -
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Li Hao TEEE 0.18 - - - - - 018
Mr. Liu Guoxi (Note (iii)) BIE0= 704 (P =) - 0.21 0.65 0.09 047 - 112
Mr. Su Yongjian (Note (iv)) Bk BAE (i3 (v) - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhao Bing (Note (v)) HERE (HEH) - - - - - - -
Mr. Lu Xiaoyu (Note (vi)) BEFRE (i) - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUkHTES:
directors:
Ms. Jin Xinbin il 0.18 - - - - - 0.18
Ms. Li Hongwei Xk e 0.18 - - - - - 0.18
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao by 0.18 - - - - - 0.18
Total by 0.72 0.78 2.27 0.09 0.73 - 4.59
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7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 7

(c) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

EERFF%Z (&)
(c) EEM=E (&)

BE - —HF+_H=+—HIF

FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director’s other services Emoluments
in connection with the management of the affairs of paid or
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking receivable
HEZHEBANARENBAAEENEREREN in respect of
HitREE AR NS a person’s
services as
a director,
whether of
Retirement the Company
benefit Share-based or its
Discretionary scheme payment subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions expenses undertaking Total
fEAES
(FER
AARHA
=Y
W12 % £7) Rt
RGN ERSAN  REMENH
ik e RIETEAL BEl Bx  EUmiE st
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AE%BEr AREEER AREBER ARWEErR AREEEx ARBEER ARBESRD
Executive directors: WITES !
Mr. Zhang Ping REGE - 0.46 1.30 - 0.30 - 2.06
Mr. Lu Zhenwei (Note (7)) BB (f3() - - - - - - -
Mr. Wang Heng (Note (ii)) T %E (ki) - - - - - - -
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Li Hao FEEE 047 - - - - - 047
Mr. Su Yongjian (Note (iv)) Bk ot (izE(v) - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhao Bing (Note (v)) HERE (V) - - - - - - -
Mr. Lu Xiaoyu (Note (vi)) BEFLE () - - - - - - -
Mr. Sui Xiaofeng (Note (vil)) PRREIR ST 4 (MfaE(vii) - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUEATES:
directors:
Ms. Jin Xinbin LiEiiA 017 - - - - - 017
Ms. Li Hongwei X e 0.17 - - - - - 0.17
Mr. Zhu Jianbiao by 0.7 - - - - - 0.7
Total mzt 0.68 0.46 1.30 - 0.30 - 2.74
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(c) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % . —4E4E]

Mr. Lu Zhenwei agreed to waive his entitlement to
director’s fee for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

Mr. Wang Heng was appointed as an executive Director
on 27 January 2022 and resigned on 28 June 2022. He
agreed to waive his entitlement to director’'s fee for the
period from 27 January 2022 to 28 June 2022.

Mr. Liu Guoxi was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 5 June 2023. He agreed to waive his entitlement
to director’s fee for the period from 5 June 2023 to 31
December 2023.

Mr. Su Yongjian was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 25 February 2022. He agreed to waive his
entitlement to director’s fee for the Year and the period
from 25 February 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Mr. Zhao Bing was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 29 January 2021 and resigned on 5 June
2023. He agreed to waive his entitlement to director’s
fee for the period from 1 January 2023 to 5 June 2023
and the year ended 31 December 2022.

Mr. Lu Xiaoyu was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 2 November 2022. He agreed to waive his
entitlement to director’s fee for the Year and the period
from 2 November 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Mr. Sui Xiaofeng resigned as a non-executive Director on
25 February 2022. He agreed to waive his entitlement
to director’s fee for the period from 1 January 2022 to
25 February 2022.

7

EEEFRZ (@
(c) EEME (@)
MIEE -

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

ERBEERNEREZEEBE_Z
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HIEFENESERE

FHEER _E-__F—B8 -+t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

U]

(g)

(h)

Directors’ Retirement Benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking during the
Year (2022: Nil).

Directors’ Termination Benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation
for the early termination of the appointment during the
Year (2022: Nil).

Consideration Provided to Third Parties for Making
Available Directors’ Services

No payment was made to the former employer of
directors for making available the services of them as
a director of the Company during the Year (2022: Nil).

Information about Loans, Quasi-Loans and Other
Dealings in Favour of Directors, Controlled Bodies
Corporate by and Connected Entities with Such
Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the Year
(2022: Nil).

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company or an entity connected to a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year (2022: Nil).

wR e M B R B

7 EBERFMRAX (&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

EFBRARERN
RAEFE BiBETAESHAEEE
BARBREWNBRABDEFTNES
BRARHE MR B X S EURAY
BREN (T2

.
4iE) o
AV ARRY

EEREEN

RAFE  WERRNEFFHERRE
AIA% IE RERI B ERI IR
Eiﬁﬁ

(Z===

MEMESRBRFZ=FRHNK
(]

RAEFEE UERNEFFAERT
EERMRTEMAZEENAEE
SNREBE(CEZZF |-
BRNESZ -2FEENREEAR
HEBRARTANER EERK
HthZXZHEH

REFE BEUNEF ZFESF
mxﬁﬁl&%L;%%H“Am
EREERREMRZ (TT -

B4

F )
EENRG ZHAGHONEA#ER

RRBBREIELABDEZTHRAE
AREEEHENERERNEE
BEEARGD  BERNAFEELARE
WA FEEAEBIAFENE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRS A R T
8 OTHER EXPENSES 8 Hfthzii
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETT AREBHET
Auditor’s remuneration — audit services 1% £ Bl — B A% IRFS 7 6
Poverty alleviation and charitable HKEREESEE
donation 8 11
Exchange difference PERERR 33 5
Water and electricity KEE 47 26
Insurance G 10 7
Expenses related to short-term leases EAfGHATH EA R 24 13
Business trip expenses EREIRE 33 14
Hydro power operation costs 7K 77 BB Ui i 48 Y A 42 -
Amortisation of long-term deferred R HARF 5 & AR 5
expenses 9 -
Others (Note) Hh (F5E) 360 40
573 122
Note: Included in Others, there were a returned subsidy of MizE . HMEEREBRBENAREISIEE T
approximately RMB181 million (2022: approximately (CE_—F:HARKEIEET &
RMB35 million) and a write-off of tariff adjustment 38 B EF AL BRI AR B1108
receivable of approximately RMB110 million, respectively. Bt E— T RHMNMIEF220
Further details are set out in Note 22.
9 FAIR VALUE GAIN/(LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL 9 AREFABRmBERMEEN
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR [nEWE (8518
LOSS
2023 2022
—EC=HE Sl
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT AEBEET
Unlisted investments ELHEE (1) (1)
Power purchase agreements BB 1 =
- (1)
238 BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

10 FAIR VALUE LOSSES ON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 10 EAAEstAIEENESHEEN

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS NRERE
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBBET
Convertible bonds (Note 27) AR ES (IsE27) 1 22
11 FINANCE INCOME 11 BEKA
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT ARBEET
Interest income on bank balances IR1THEER Rz A B
and deposits 65 33
Amortisation of imputed interest EIRRERGER S
income on pledged deposits N 5! 4 5
69 38
12 FINANCE COSTS 12 MER A
2023 2022
—E-= —E=——
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBBET
Interest expenses on bank and IRTREMERZHERZ
other borrowings 1,879 1,426
Loan facilities fees on bank and RITREMBERZ
other borrowings ERREER 72 57
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaGEZMERE 44 31
Interest expenses on restoration BEREZHERS
provision 2 _
1,997 1,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13 FRiSiREX

During the Year, the Group’s operations in the PRC are
subject to the PRC Corporate Income Tax. The statutory
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate is 25%. Certain subsidiaries
of renewable energy projects are entitled to preferential tax
concession. Income tax on profits assessable outside the
PRC has been provided at rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.

The income tax charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss is as follows:

RAFE A% B A E Y X B RS
PR EMRSR - PEEEMAFSREE
EMED26% - B BEFERBENETH
BRABDCEEBERERL FEIEINE
RMEFBPFSRIDIRBFAEERERN
BITRMERETREE -

ARG RIMASRASZNT

2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBETT ARBBET

Current income tax BPHBRR 1SR
Current year KEE (234) (161)
Under-provision in prior years BEFEHBEERE (9) (5)
Deferred income tax (Note 30) IEIEFT1SHR (M95E30) 61 15
(182) (151)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B e B RE
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 13 FRSMEAX (@
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs R & [ bR T 1S 152 Al A 59 77 18 24 50 BR B
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the PRC FREEEMERBREAESHNIERE
corporate income tax rate as follows: BRI ZRBAN T -
2023 2022
—E-=H T F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBETT ARBBET
Profit before income tax BRPRSH5 Al a4 654 623
Less: Share of profits of investments & : FE(LE R EARN
accounted for using equity method S Pl (30) (19)
624 604
Tax charge, calculated at the rate of MR ZE25% T HHNRIBRS
25% (2022: 25%) (ZEBEZ—F :25%) (156) (151)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBAEE KSR
subsidiaries operating in other M8~ B AR ER
jurisdictions FE (55) (22)
Tax effect of PRC tax concession FRERIER NIRRT & & 208 202
Tax effect of expenses not deductible B[N HRFE
for tax purposes (163) (61)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax HBERRUW AT £ 57 2
Tax effect of temporary difference not %Eﬁ%ﬂ%’?ﬁ#@ﬁ =4
recognised (Note) Za 2 (fYED) (24) (15)
Tax effect of tax loss for which no I?#EEE{J&ELFE %ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ’\]
deferred income tax amount was MIBEENRIE T E
recognised (140) (131)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  ENFiB1E I R FEDIRIEES 1B
tax losses 39 15
Origination and reversal of previously B A R Ao R FE SR BY
recognised temporary differences BB = RE 61 15
Under-provision in prior years BEFEEERE (9) (5)
Income tax expenses FriEiRM> (182) (151)
Note: As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets have not izt : RZEBEZ=F+"HA=+—H uf&

been recognised in respect of temporary differences which
were mainly attributable to the impairment of property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB163 million
(2022: the impairment charge on trade receivables
of approximately RMB25 million and provision for
compensation of approximately RMB35 million).

MR EEEDELERBEE T2
BARYE -BERKXKBHRENAR
¥163E BT (TR F | EUARE
AESZHAANRE5E & T R FE
SHEB B ARIBISEETT) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

14 SKRER

2023 2022
—F—= .
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEETT AREBETT
Profit attributable to Shareholders NG i el
of the Company 42 269

Million shares

Million shares

B &K, BEKEHS
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—HA—HZBETZER 22,428 22,428
Effect of repurchased ordinary shares BB 2 & (14)

Effect of cancelled ordinary shares SEIHE AR 2 & (27) =
Weighted average number of ordinary MH+_H=+—HZZ&EE
shares (basic and diluted) at INETFEH (B4R i#E)

31 December 22,387 22,428

RMB cents RMB cents

N AR

Basic earnings per share BREARERF 0.19 1.20

Diluted earnings per share SREERF] 0.19 1.20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share was calculated by dividing
profit attributable to Shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue, after adjusting the effect of repurchased
ordinary shares, the effect of cancelled ordinary
shares and the effect of issued new ordinary shares,
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share was calculated based on
profit attributable to the Shareholders of the Company
and by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion/
exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For
the Year, the Group had two (2022: two) categories
of potential ordinary shares including share options
and convertible bonds (2022: share options and
convertible bonds).

A calculation for the share options had been
performed to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined
as the average annual market share price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. For the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, the computation of diluted earnings per
share did not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options because the exercise price of the share
options was higher than the average market price of
shares.

Convertible bonds were not assumed to be converted
because the conversion price and the reset conversion
price of the convertible bonds were higher than the
average market price of shares for the periods from
the date of issue to 31 December 2023 and 2022.

wR e M B R B

14 SREF (&)

(a)

(b)

Bk
SEREXRBHEANGREEGR
ABUBE S =G/ _FT_—
E+_B=+—HIEEEB®TZ
BROMNEF O (KRAEERZE
BRHEE FHEETRERZEZERE
THEERZEE) 8-

e
EQT%&?‘E?%E%'J]E#EK@ﬂHQ%F’%TE
g WIRBRREHRTER

%&;ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’]/ﬁfaLﬂyﬁ‘ﬁaﬁ%§§
EHNEEROMETHHEAE -
rEE AEEEAME (CET -
FmE) BEEER QERERE
REgRES (CT2F  BRE
RIS RESS)

RRBRBRITEBRERH
BENGEEETEERE  LUE
EARURMNE BERARE RGN
N2 FMmIFRE) BN RGN &
B HBE_E_=—"FKk_ZF__

+-_A=+—HIEEE FESK
BERN L ERRARBNER
EETE RARZEERENT
FEEESNRMNTEEHE-

AR MRESHEBREREEH
RESRENTHEZZSZ=6K_
E__HF+"_A=+—HHENEK
PEHHE WRFZTBRBES T
EITEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

15 DIVIDENDS 15 g8

(a) Dividends Paid to Shareholders of the Company

(a) MEABRRZAHKRE

2023 2022
—E_= .= ——
RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEERT ARBEHETT

2022 final dividends of :%::EEEHHH&
HK1.00 cent per ordinary share G @A 1.00781

199 —

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 of HK1.00 cent (equivalent to
approximately RMBO0.90 cent) per ordinary share
amounting to a total of approximately HK$224 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB199 million) was
declared by the Board on 30 March 2023, which was
approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 27 June 2023 and has been paid
on 21 July 2023. Such dividend was accounted for
in equity as a distribution out of contributed surplus
during the Year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Dividends Declared to Shareholders of the Company

The Board recommends to declare a final dividend of
HK1.00 cent (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.91
cent) per ordinary share (2022: HK1.00 cent
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.90 cent) per
ordinary share) for the Year subject to the approval of
the Shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed
after the end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2023.

Distribution to Holders of Perpetual Medium-Term
Notes

The Company did not make any distribution to the
holders of perpetual medium-term notes (2022: Nil)
for the Year.

wR e M B R B

15 8 (88)

(b)

(c)

REATRREIRNRS
EEEEEMEAEEERFBKE
FREBERL.00E FHERHNAR
#0.919) (CTE-__F . SREZE
f&1.008L FEERI AR 0.90
7)) o MEBRFARE REERR
REFEAZ EHERSAEE &
EHREBEBKNABRENRZZE
T =HE+"_B=+—HHEXERAE
=L

MK ERARERA AL 2K
TEE > AABRLERXEFHRRE

BRAANEHEA DK
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— =
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

16 Y% -MEKRRHE

Power Furniture,
generating fixtures
Leasehold  modules and Plant and and office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements equipment machinery equipment vehicles in-progress Total
HENE EEEER il RER
BF it ®E HBEREE HAERE AE TEIR g
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million
AREEET AREEER ARKEER AREEER ARKEER AREEER AREEER AR¥EESR
At 1 January 2022 RZE-Z&-F-H
Cost A& 122 14 25,729 503 56 19 5112 31,555
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (25) (10) (4,195) (129) (42) (14) - (4,415)
Accumulated impairment REbAfE - - (800) - - - (168) (968)
Net ook amount REFE 97 4 20,734 374 14 5 4,944 26,172
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_C
+ZRA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FRERE 97 4 20,734 374 14 5 4,944 26,172
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34)  EEIBAF (iz£34) 31 - 4,878 - - 1 228 5,138
Additions HE - - 785 306 9 7 1,196 2,303
Disposals HE - 3) = - - - = 3)
Depreciation & (10) - (1,124) (103) (5) ) - (1,244)
Transfer g5 60 - 2,064 1,201 8 = (3,333) =
Exchange difference ERER - - - - - - 8 8
Closing net book amount FREERE 178 1 27,337 4718 26 1 3,043 32,374
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+ZB=+-8
Cost A& 207 1 33,899 2,113 73 27 3211 39,561
Accumulated depreciation Rithe (49) (10) (5,762) (335) (47) (16) - (6,219)
Accumulated impairment REtAE - - (800) - - - (168) (968)
Net book amount RE#fE 178 1 27,337 1,778 2% 1 3,043 32374
Year ended 31 December 2023 HECZ-Z
+ZRA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FRERE 178 1 27,337 1,778 26 11 3,043 32,374
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34)  EEIBAF (fiz£34) 3,244 - 12,785 7 1 1 - 16,038
Additions HE 2 25 177 10 12 10 17,400 17,636
Disposals HE (1) - (10) - (1) - 2 (14)
Depreciation & (84) - (1,695) (5) Ul (4) - (4,795)
Impairment HE - - (163) - - - - (163)
Transfer a5 259 - 3,743 (4,743) 1) - (2,258) -
Exchange difference ERES 1 1 36 - - - 36 74
Closing net hook amount ERREFE 3,599 27 42,210 47 30 18 18,219 64,150
At 31 December 2023 RZ%Z=
+=A=+-H
Cost mA 4,508 28 53,114 101 82 47 18,387 76,267
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (909) (1) (9,941) (54) (52) (29) - (10,986)
Accumulated impairment REtRE - - (963) - - - (168) (1,131)
Net book amount REFE 3,599 27 42,210 47 30 18 18,219 64,150
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Note: As at 31 December 2023, power generating modules
and equipment with carrying values of approximately
RMB6,924 million (2022: approximately RMB6,811
million) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings of approximately RMB5,489 million (2022:
approximately RMB3,406 million) and RMB8,207 million
(2022: approximately RMB8,414 million) were pledged as
security for the Group’s loans from financial institutions
of approximately RMB6,882 million (2022: approximately
RMB5,472 million) (Note 29(a)).

As at 31 December 2022, power generating modules and
equipment with carrying values of approximately RMB11
million were pledged as security for the Group’s other loans
of approximately RMB12 million (Note 29(a)).

As at 31 December 2022, plant and machinery with
carrying values of approximately RMB560 million and
approximately RMB358 million were pledged as security
for the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
RMB458 million and loans from financial institutions of
approximately RMB304 million, respectively (Note 29(a)).

As at 31 December 2023, construction-in-progress
with carrying value of approximately RMB1,030 million
(2022: approximately RMB367 million) was pledged as
security for the Group’s loans from financial institutions
of approximately RMB656 million (2022: approximately
RMB117 million) (Note 29(a)).

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

During the Year, the Management performed impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment with an
impairment indicator as at 31 December 2023 and had
reflected the latest market conditions and other relevant
parameters in the assessment. The relevant power plant
is identified as a cash generating unit. The estimated
recoverable amount of the power plant is determined
based on the value-in-use calculations using discount cash
flow approach. The calculation uses cash flow projections
covering the useful lives of those property, plant and
equipment in relation to the power plant. The Group
engaged an external independent valuer to assess the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment. As a
result of the impairment assessment, the Group recognised
an impairment charge on property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB163 million (2022: Nil) for the Year.

wR e M B R B

16 % -BER&E (&)

Mizx: RZZE_=FE+"B=+—H %K@
BEYANRES,924aF8 T (ZE ==
F AR KG,811EET) NEEE
BELEREREAAERRTER
HWANRMS5,489F Bt (CE "% !
M ANRI3,406 BB TT) EU%EHE?&)\E
8, 20TEEBT (CE_F | HAR
68,4148 B t) WHEHIRIEAREE K
EtmiEEZ SN ARKE6,8828F
BT (CEZF HARKS5,4728
=7T) BIKIR (i5E29(a)) ©

KRB _H#+"B=+—H A
BENARBIIES THEBRE KRR
BREAREAEERAEMERVAR
t12\ B oHIER (95E29(a)) o

RIE-_—Z£+"BA=+—8'KEE
HWARMS560EH BT RAOARKEISSH
BB E MRS W ERESK
EERITERNAREASSH BT HEK
BE-REEZEROARE304EE T
IR (f5E29(a)) ©

RIEBE_=F+"B=+—H"KAEE
HMARKELO00HBT(CE 54
ARHE367TE B T) WERE TREWIKH
T’E?‘%ZJ:%@XE%EM&%ZE%%A
RHeseEBT (CE__F AR
1175 & 7o) WIKE (FsE29(a)) ©

ME-BERRKEUREAEEERS
B R E e BN ARE E R £ H Ur[E
By (ERLE R &L o

RAFE EEEHHER T =

TZRA=tT—HHTEREFRHYE

B Bs R s 1T 7R E T 4 0 WA ET A
iR TY RAMTHR TR EMBREZ
Ho-BRAEBUEAN DS —BAREEE
Bl-ZzBBIMMEst I REIZRLE
RERMREEARABEINERABESE
BE -ZBEERAREXEBILEARN
ZENE - BMERREHNREREHH
RERERA - AEEZRII B
ﬁ%%ﬁ%% B £5 Rz 5% 1 BY BT U [B] =
BR e A RUERE ) AEE R A FERER
ME--BERRFEREIHYAREL63
BET(CEZ"F 1 H) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 ME -HEKRHRE (88)

(Continued)

The key assumptions used for the cash flow projections are

ReRERACANBERRRNOT !

as follows:
As at 31 December 2023
RIEZ=F+ZHA=+—H
Capacity RE 50MW
507K KL
Utilisation/insolation hours FIRRE HEREH 1,795MWh/MWp
1,795k FLBS /JKIE R,
Degradation factor BIER 0.5% per annum
FF0.5%
FITs FHEEE RMBO0.23/kWh
AR#0.237T,/ TR
Discount rate rIR= 6.04%
6.04%
Operating expenses per watt BREERY RMB76,738
ANE#76,7387T

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 140 (2022: 105)
solar power plants, 28 (2022: 20) wind power plants, 26
(2022: Nil) hydro power plants and 1 (2022: Nil) energy
storage power station with aggregated grid-connected
installed capacity of approximately 8,577MW (2022:
approximately 5,603MW). During the Year, there was no
substantial change in the operating conditions for most of
the Group’s power plants and there was no indication for
further impairment as compared to 2022. Therefore, no
further impairment test was required for the Year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group
is a lessee.

The Group’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities mainly
arise from lease of various land use rights for power plant
projects and office premises with typically lease terms of
2 to 50 years as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 2 to 27
years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants.

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the

wR e M B R B

17 HHE

rERTERSAKBANEERHES
o

A _E_=F+__A=+—H &AEEH
HNERAREERIEEEBETEREEE
BB R AEYERE M ERENAE
E HEAEHR—KA2ES0F (2=
F2F27HF) c AE R IZE R E ERE
75 o 0 & 19 2 A BE NN (E R 2255 o

REMBRAREIUTEREENE

following amounts relating to leases: %8
2023 2022
= —E=_—
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETT ARBBEETT
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Land use rights o e A A 2,341 1,596
Buildings BF 125 84
2,466 1,680
Lease liabilities HEaE
Non-current JER N 1,287 1,068
Current TRED 151 71
1,438 1,139

Information in respect of the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities are set out in
Note 3.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

ERAEEEERREF TENHRNE
HER iR 5 M B |RARMWEES.1(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

17 LEASES (Continued) 17 AE (@)
The movements of right-of-use assets are analysed as FTRESEENESDMUWT :
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F BT F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEET ARBBETT
At 1 January ®—HB—H 1,680 1,083
Additions R"E 537 435
Depreciation = (108) (72)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 34) WEEHI B AR (FI5E34) 357 235
Termination of leases ®IEEE (1) (1)
Exchange difference fERERR 1 =
At 31 December ®+ZA=+—H 2,466 1,680
At 31 December BW+=ZB=+—H
Cost B 2,856 1,920
Accumulated depreciation Rt e (372) (222)
Accumulated impairment RKEHRE (18) (18)
Net book amount EREEE 2,466 1,680
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wR e M B R B

17 LEASES (Continued) 17 HE (&)

The movements of lease liabilities are analysed as follows:

HERENEH MU T

2023 2022

—E°= =S
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT AEBBET
At 1 January n®—HA—H 1,139 601
Additions NE 254 432
Interest expenses FMEME 44 31
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 34) WHEHI B AR (FI5E34) 194 162
Termination of leases ®IEEE (1) (1)
Lease payments HERR (193) (86)
Exchange difference bE T A= %B 1 =
At 31 December ®+=ZA=+—H 1,438 1,139

During the Year, the total cash outflow in relation to lease
liabilities was approximately RMB217 million (2022:
approximately RMB99 million), which included expenses
for lease payments of approximately RMB193 million
(2022: approximately RMB86 million) and short-term
lease payments of approximately RMB24 million (2022:
approximately RMB13 million).

RAEE B EEENIRSRHE
AN ARE21I7TEE T (T2
WARMIOEET) » BIEHENREX

HARBI93EBE T (CTE__F 1 HA
RiE86H & T) K EHHEE MR AR K
BT (CE__F HARKIZER
7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er O B AR
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 |MLEE
Development
Goodwill rights Total
EE PR st
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREBHEET ARBEET AREBEER
At 1 January 2022 W-_E--#—H—H
Cost [N 103 1,700 1,803
Accumulated impairment REPRE - (831) (831)
Net book amount IREFE 103 869 972

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZE-_

+ZA=+—HLHE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 103 869 972
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEsH B AR (f:E34)

(Note 34) 194 _ 194
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 297 869 1,166
At 31 December 2022 RZEB-_F

+ZRA=t+—H
Cost (DN 297 1,700 1,997
Accumulated impairment REHRE - (831) (831)
Net book amount IRERE 297 869 1,166

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_FE-=
+ZB=+—HILEE
Opening and closing net book FYRERREEE

amount 297 869 1,166

At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F
+=ZB=+—H
Cost 7R 297 1,700 1,997
Accumulated impairment KA - (831) (831)
Net book amount IREFE 297 869 1,166
2592 BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, goodwill was resulted from the acquisitions
of subsidiaries in the PRC. The carrying amount of
goodwill was allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units of power plants. The recoverable amount for
the cash-generating unit was determined based on
value-in-use calculations covering a detailed five-year
budget plan followed by an extrapolation of expected
cash flows at the utilisation hours. The utilisation
hours reflect the long-term average utilisation hours
for the product lines of the cash-generating unit. The
key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
include utilisation hours ranging from 1,190 to
2,886MWh/MWp (2022: 2,171 to 2,473MWh/
MWp) and discount rates ranging from 7.00% to
7.75% (2022: 6.70% to 11.4%). The Management
is not currently aware of any other probable changes
that would necessitate changes in its key estimates
and could cause the cash-generating units’ amount
exceed their recoverable amounts. During the Year, the
Management determined that no impairment on the
respective cash-generating units.

Development Rights

The Group recognised development rights in relation
to hydro power projects with an expected capacity of
approximately 5.2GW in Xizang and Sichuan Province,
the PRC through acquisitions of subsidiaries in 2017.
In December 2020, the People’s Government of the
Xizang Autonomous Region (“Xizang Government”)
published the “Notice of the People’'s Government
of the Xizang Autonomous Region on Appropriately
Lowering Partial Electricity Prices” (i B4& A RE
TN BEREI D IHEBSEMNEA ) (“Zangzhengfa
[2020] No. 127). As affected by policy, the on-
grid electricity price of the Group’s hydro power
projects remained at RMB0.341/kWh. This policy is
implemented with effect from 1 January 2021.

wR e M B R B

18 B EE (4B8)

(a)

(b)

maa

BE_ T __&F#KR_EFE_—F+_
)= —+—E|¢¢F“ F’ﬁﬁﬂzau&ﬁ%ﬁé
HENHEEBAR - mENREESD

i$$§§$J£IE§§$§14°IEi
EEBM IO £ IRE RS
HMASETEEENEREENE
T WIEF) B S EiIR &
B F AR RMIBSELEENE
AR ESTHEF AR  BREtE
FHREENFEZERSEEN ¥1wo
%£2,886 KR JKIER (=
F 21715 2,473 K E B JKig
&) B AR EUR N F7.006E7.75%
(CEBZZF :6.70%F11.4%) B3
RE -BEEBHATANBETMAE
A T ENH N EREETE

=_

st XA EERIREELS LLE’J%
BBHEWOEE - REAFE
EERES fﬁ%?‘iﬁuiﬁtﬁfﬁo
R
BENR_Z—tFRBHNBAR &

%l%ﬂﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬁ&@ & B8
HARE45.25 Rk DEEEEERE
aDFa'-ﬁé’éffE RIBE_ZEFE+_H A
HEAE ARBUST (TAEBEF) %
Hm(ABBEAE ARBRFBERBEER
BEDHEESBAEAN) (TEBE
[2020]125%B A1) o Z LR R £ »
EBEKNER LEEEHEFAR
#0.34170,/ TR -ZBKE_Z
——H£—F—HEHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(b) Development Rights (Continued)

Management performed impairment assessment to
determine the recoverable amount of the development
rights based on the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In this connection,
Management prepared cash flow forecasts for the
hydro power projects, taking into account of factors,
including but not limited to, the above revision
of government policies, probability as well as the
estimated extent of the revision of FITs after year
2020, probability to utilise these development rights
to develop the relevant hydro power plant projects,
construction costs and development plans. The Group
engaged an external independent valuer to assess the
recoverable amount of development rights. As a result
of the impairment assessment, no impairment charge
on development rights was recognised for the Year
(2022: Nil).

18 B EE (B)

(b)
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(b) Development Rights (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The key assumptions used for the cash flow
projections of hydro power projects are as follows:

wR e M B R B

18 \|ILEE (&)
(b) BASTE (40

KANBBHEBREMERAFER
WEZRKRWOTF :

At 31 December

®W+=-—HB=+—H
2023 2022
Capacity 3,794MW 3,794MW
RE 3,794k E 3,794k K
Utilisation hours 4,223 to 4,700 MWh/MWp 4,223 to 4,700MWh/MWp
AR & 4,223%F4, 700k BB JKIE R 4,223ZF4,700JK BB, JKIE R,

Electricity price — Xizang

BEE-AR

Discount rate

=K

Construction costs
per watt

BREZRMAE

Operating expenses
per watt

BREEMX

RMBO0.35/kWh in 2024;
RMBO0.36 to RMB0.50/kWh in
2025 to 2040 with growth rate
of 2.22% per year thereafter till
the end of the useful life (Note)

RIZT-ZMEAR¥0.355T, T
EF, R-E_REE_ETNZE
FAR¥0.36;TEAR¥0.507T
/S TEREREREEEERFERE
RS FIERE2.22% (izh)

9.81%

RMB13.5

AR ¥13.57T

RMBO0.18 with annual growth rate
of 1%

AR#0.18TREE RE1%

Note: On 30 June 2019, Xizang Government published the
Xizang Notice 2 to reduce the electricity price of the
FITs of hydro power projects in Xizang of the Group
from RMBO0.35/kWh to RMB0.341/kWh. According to
the Xizang Notice 2, such policy is on temporary trial
since 1 July 2019 until further notice.

RMBO0.35/kWh in 2023; RMBO0.36
to RMBO0.57/kWh in 2024 to
2040 with growth rate of 2.8%
per year thereafter till the end of
the useful life (Note)

R-Z-=F AR¥0.357T,/F
R, R_E_NEE_ZNZ
FANR0.3670E AR#0.577T
S TREREEEEAFERE
GRS FIERZE2.8% (iz)

10.7%

RMB13.5

ARE#§13.57¢

RMBO.18 with annual growth rate
of 2%

AER0.187T KR FIB R EX2%

fist: R-ZE—AEANB=1+H AR
BT rAE2EE ~EEH
RABNKODESEE EHE
BEAR0.357c,/ T RE FE
ZEARY0.3417T / FEE R
BAREEEN ZBHEES
—NEtHA—HEERAT B
EFTEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(b) Development Rights (Continued)

In December 2020, Xizang Government published
Zangzhengfa [2020] No. 12 that the electricity price
of the FITs of hydro power projects in Xizang of the
Group remained at RMB0.341/kWh. This policy is
implemented with effect from 1 January 2021.

The table below illustrates the sensitivity of
the significant inputs when they are changed to
reasonable possible alternative inputs:

18 | EE (18)

(b) BAZEHE (4B)
AZEZZTE+ TR ARBUTEM
JELBUE2[2020]1 25k 3B A0 > REE AP
BHKNEEEE FEEEEIFA

R #0.34175,/ TR o

ZBRE =

T —5—A—BERT

TRRBERGABBERE S EM
BEATEABBRRISRE :

Range of inputs Unfavourable change in profit or loss
A SRR Higm A F &g
2023 2022
2= ==
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT AREBETT
Utilisation/insolation  #|FABFEH B
hours -5% (1,577) (1,360)
FITs LFHEEE -5% (1,577) (1,360)
Discount rate IR = +0.5% (1,818) (1,528)
Construction costs BREREA
per watt +5% (1,348) (1,160)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 SUBSIDIARIES 19

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are
held directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business.

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries

wR e M B R B

(g /NG
AEER-_ZE_=F+-RB=+—H0K
TEWMBARHINMT FrEARAN
REFEENRAEQLELERERERTA
WEEk FAFMAEEDLEAEERE
EERANRER -FMAIINELHIE
RN BHETEEREMES-

(a) EEMBABBIFE

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ML B/
B4 R BRIRE/HMERHE FERMGRAREZ IERH
2023 2022
k- ik S
Anhui Zhaolian Clean Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Operation and management of a
RMB200,000,000 solar power plant
AR BRERERAT HE R4 R A R 200,000,0007T EEREEAGREEN
Baoshan Energy Development Joint Stock  The PRC Registered RMB1,195,223,410 65.70% - Investment holding and operation
Company Limited Paid up RMB939,847,280 and management of hydro
power plants
RUERZEERAERAF HE HMARKL,195,223,4107T RERRREERERKNEER
R \E 939,847,280 15
Beijing Energy International Investment Hong Kong Issued and fully paid HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
FREREREERRAR B BETRAE 10,0007 RERR
Beijing Energy Sembcorp (Hainan) The PRC Registered RMB845,840,000 51.00% - Investment holding
International Renewables Company Paid up RMB845,835,628
Limited
RickR (87) ERERERAT HE it A R 1£845,840,0007C REER
BB \R1%845,835,6287C
BEI Energy Development (Beijing) Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered RMB6,586,442,200 57.99% 57.99% Investment holding and operation
Paid up RMB1,395,854,634 and management of a solar
power plant
RuEERERER IR ARAT HE M AR 16,586,442,2007 REERUKEERERARE
BB \R1,395,854,6347% AEIh
BEJN International Holding Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 100.00% 100.00% Investment holding
Paid up RMBO
RREERERERAR HE 1 AR #10,000,0007T REER
HEAREOT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

19 KB AT (&)
(a) EEMBEAFNHE @)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ML EE
BiRaf E 2k BRIRE/ FREREE FEEFGRARRET TEEH
2023 2022
Z§IZE T CE
Changji Yijing Photovoltaics Technology Co., The PRC Registered RMB200,000,000 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Ltd Paid up RMB191,000,000 solar power plant
EERENRABEARAT HE it A #200,000,00070 BEREEAGREEL
B2 \R 191,000,007
China Solar Power Group Limited British Virgin Registered and paid up 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands ("BVI")  US$5,750,000
HEXGEENEEERAT EBEEREE  EfRSIES,750,000% T RERR
(ER&EAR
BB
Datong United Photovoltaics New Energy ~ The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Operation and management of a
Co., Ltd. RMB200,000,000 solar power plant
AEBE SRR RERAT HE R R A K 200,000,0007T EEREEAGRESE
Fengtai County Shengyang New Energy The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Power Generation Co., Ltd. RMB286,053,187 solar power plant
BRERGNEREEERAR HE SH R e A R 7286,053,1877T EERERAGREE
Guangzong County Guorui Energy Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered RMB258,000,000 51.00% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Paid up RMB300,000,000 solar power plant
BraERERERAR HE AR 258,000,0007C BEREEAGELEL
B2 \R300,000,0007
Guigangshi Green Ark New Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 100% 100% Operation and management of a
RMB10,000,000 solar power plant
EETREANNERERAR HE R E A K %10,000,0007 BEREEAGEEEL
Guodian Kezuozhonggi Photovoltaics Co., ~ The PRC Registered and paid up 99.40% 99.40% Operation and management of a
Ltd. RMB169,700,000 solar power plant
EENERELREEERA alE] s Rl e A R #169,700,0007T EEREEAGREEN
Hainanzhou Yahui New Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Operation and management of a
RMB351,000,000 solar power plant
BENEENERENERAR HE SRR AR #351,000,0007 EERERAGEEE
Hanshou Zhonghui Solar Energy Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Operation and management of a
RMB130,000,000 solar power plant
EENEAREREBRAT HE R E A R 130,000,0007T BEREEAGEEEL
Hejin Lu'an Yuhua Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
RMB71,000,000 wind power plant
AETHERERNZEEERAT alE] S RaE AR 71,000,000 EEREERNEBYL
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 KB AT (&)
(a) EEMBAFNHE @

wR e M B R B

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ML EE
BRAHE E ik BRfIkRE/ FREREE FEEFGRARRESZ TEEH
2023 2022
ZEZ=F CZZICf
Hohhot United New Energy Development ~ The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of
Co., Ltd. RMB139,100,000 solar power plants
WAER TR SRR EERAT HE R R A K 139,100,007 HEREEAGEES
Hubei Jingtai Photovoltaics Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered RMB250,000,000 29.57% 70.57% Operation and management of a
Paid up RMB130,000,000 solar power plant
ALERAAENERAT HE A K #250,000,0007 EEREEAGREEN
%’ AR %130,000,0007
Inner Mongolia Jingneng New Energy The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000,000
AR RN RN A RAR HE AMRAEARE RERR
1,000,000,0007c
Jingjiang (Shuangbai) New Energy Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered RMB347,348,000 38.27% - Operation and management of
Paid up RMB247,697,100 solar power plants
L (&) e RERAR HE AR %347,348,0007 EERERAGEEEN
BHRA\R%247,697,1007
Lanxi Chenghui Power Generation Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered RMB20,000,000 57.99% 37.69% Operation and management of a
Paid up RMBO wind power plant
BEREXERRAT HE 1 AR #20,000,0007t BEREERNEEL
HEAREOT
Longyao County Guochang New Energy The PRC Registered RMB288,140,000 51.00% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Technology Co., Ltd. Paid up RMB358,135,000 solar power plant
EERESMERNRARAT HE 1t AR #288,140,0007C HEREEAGEES
B2 \R1358,135,0007
Nangong City Guolong New Energy The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Technology Co., Ltd. RMB146,000,000 solar power plant
BEmEERERNRERAT I R R A K 146,000,0007T EEREEAGRESH
Nangong City Guoshun New Energy The PRC Registered RMB284,920,000 51.00% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Technology Co., Ltd. Paid up RMB284,914,800 solar power plant
M EmEE R RERAR HE 1A K %284,920,0007 EEREEAGREE
MR A\R%284,914,8007
Ningxia Zhongzi Photovoltaics Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Operation and management of a
RMB340,000,000 solar power plant
EEREABERRESERAT HE SRR AR 340,000,007 BEREEAGEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

19 KB AT (&)
(a) EEMBEAFNHE @)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ML EE
BEAHE E 2k BRIRE/ FREREE FEEFGRARRET TEEH
2023 2022
Z§IZE T CE
Shuozhou City Pinglu District Honggou The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Wind Power Co., Ltd. RMB230,000,000 wind power plant
WD TRRAERERRAR HE s R 2 A R #230,000,0007 BEREERNEEH
Tongliao City Minglong New Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000,000 52.19% 52.19% Operation and management of a
Paid up RMB1,656,000,000 wind power plant
BRMEENERERAT HE s AE%1,000,000,0007T EEREERNEBY
% AR %1,656,000,0007
Tongliao City Xintong Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered RMB100,000,000 46.39% 46.39% Operation and management of a
Paid up RMB80,000,000 wind power plant
BEMMAREERAR HE i A K #100,000,0007 SEREERNEBY
#E AK 80,000,000
United Photovoltaics (Changzhou) The PRC Registered RMB8,091,741,200 70.57% 70.57% Investment holding
Investment Group Co., Ltd. Paid up RMB7,701,435,500
ek (BN REEBERAR HE AR 8,091,741,2007T RERR
HRAR7,701,435,5007
United Photovoltaics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered HK$,000,000,000 100.00% 100.00% Design and installation of solar
Paid up HK$499,988,588 power systems, research and
development of solar power
products and solar technology
BEAK (R BRAR HE & f7%4,000,000,0007% R RZERGRERR HEX
2 %51499,988,588T Wi Em R A B e i
Wollar Solar Development Pty Limited Australia Issued and fully paid ordinary 100.00% 100.00% Operation and management of a
shares AUD10 preference shares solar power plant
AUD4,500,000
KIAREERERAT B BETRAREBRIORT EEREEAGREEH
18 755%4,500,0002 7
Xizang Zangneng Corporation The PRC Registered and paid up 75.00% 75.00% Possession of development
RMB400,000,000 rights for hydro power and
solar power projects
BEEERABRAT HE R R A R #400,000,0007T BREKNEERAGREEEE
R
Xizang Zhongzi New Energy Technology Co., The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Investment holding
Ltd. RMB340,000,000
BETREMERRITERAT HE R R AR 340,000,0007T RERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

19 KB AT (&)
(a) EEMBAFNHE @

wR e M B R B

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of entity operations capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ML EE
BRaHE E ik BRfIkRE/ FREREE FEEFGRARRESZ TEEH
2023 2022
Z§IZE T CE
Xinjiang Xinyou New Energy Power Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
RMB93,000,000 wind power plant
MEERMEREEBRAR HE R 2 A\ K 93,000,0007 BEREERNEEL
Yangqu County Weilan New Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
RMB120,000,000 wind power plant
AR E ARG RAS i A8 R A R %120,000,0007T EEREERNESY
Youyu County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and paid up 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
RMB220,000,000 wind power plant
AERMERABERAT HE R4 R A R #220,000,0007T EEREERNEBY
Yulin City Jiangshan Yongchen New Energy  The PRC Registered and paid up 29.57% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Limited RMB620,000,000 solar power plant
BT R ERERAR HE R R A R #620,000,0007T EERERAGREEH
Zhaoqing City Lai Te Si New Energy Co., The PRC Registered RMB292,960,000 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Ltd. Paid up RMB224,426,000 solar power plant
EEMARBIERERAT HE A K %292,960,0007 EERERAGREE
R AR %224,426,0007
Zhenglanqi State Power Photovoltaic Co.,  The PRC Registered RMB125,000,000 57.99% 57.99% Operation and management of a
Ltd. Paid up RMB124,000,000 solar power plant
FEREBAREERRAF HE s AR #125,000,0007T EERERAGEEEN
BR \R%124,000,0007
Zhongli (Jiayuguan) Photovoltaic Power Co., The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Operation and management of a
Ltd. RMB500,000,000 solar power plant
HRIEE (ZIAE) AREEBRAT e SRR AR 500,000,007 BEREEAGREENL
Zhongli Talesun Gonghe New Energy Co.,  The PRC Registered and paid up 70.57% 70.57% Operation and management of
Ltd. RMB342,000,000 solar power plants
A RELNITERERAS I R R A\ R 342,000,0007T BEREEAGEEENL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes:

(b)

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

Unless otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of each company is the same as its place of
incorporation/establishment.

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the
best effort by Management to translate their Chinese
names, as these subsidiaries do not have official
English names.

The cash at bank and other financial institutions of
approximately RMB6,401 million (2022: RMB6,510
million) held by the PRC subsidiaries were subject
to local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provided for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country other than through
normal dividends.

All the above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited
liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Board, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Board,
result in particulars excessive length.

Material Non Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2023, the total non-controlling
interests was approximately RMB7,814 million (2022:
approximately RMB4,192 million). As at 31 December
2023, the Group re-assessed those subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interests that are considered
material to the Group based on their relative size
in terms of grid-connected installed capacity, total
assets, revenue and EBITDA.

19 MiEAE (%)

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Material Non Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries (Continued)

19 MtBARE (&)
(b) EEFZERBLE (B
TXEI R B ARIFERREmBI()
BMEAXAREMNREMBAZ (IR
FEERKREMEB AR (i) fRLETR
Fe B 18 2 B) Kz (iv) 78 7 78K A sz L Bf
BABNMBERBIE

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for (i) UP Changzhou and its subsidiaries,
(i) BEIED and its subsidiaries, (iii) Baoshan Energy
and its subsidiaries and (iv) Xizang Zangneng and
its subsidiaries which have material non-controlling

interests.
UP Changzhou and BEIED and Baoshan Energy and Xizang Zangneng and
its subsidiaries its subsidiaries its subsidiaries its subsidiaries
BaARENRENEAR REZRRENBAR RUERERERBAR BEEERERBAR
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
“B--f “Z-"F BT "T-"F CZBCSE “E-"F ZBCSE “FTE
RMB'million  RMB'million  RMB'million  RMB'million RMB’million  RMB'million RMB'million  RMB'million
ARMERT ARMEET ARMERT \RMEER ABMEAT AREEET ARBEEL ARKEET
Assets and liabilities as at R+ZB=+—-BWEER
31 December &
Current assets TEEE 13,437 13,970 8,961 8,962 295 - 466 447
Non-current assets FREEE 9,383 10,284 36,415 24,348 7,684 = 1,386 1,361
Current liabilities TEEE (3,886) (4182)  (18,726)  (13,390) (4,070) = (766) (718)
Non-current liabilities FrEaR (8,815)  (10,304)  (22,616)  (17,558) (3,790) = (265) (263)
Carrying amount of non- FERERNREE
controlling interests (3,002) (3,002) (2,573) (1,007) (1,080) = (136) (138)
Profit or loss for the year ended HE+-B=t+—-HILLEE
31 December Spih
Revenue WA 1,656 1,732 2,370 1,868 510 - 39 47
Profit/(loss) and total w1/ (BR) R2E
comprehensive incomey/(I0ss) g/ (6548) 453 543 468 567 171 136 - (4) 1
Profit/(loss) allocated to non- NEREFERERN
controlling interests #Hl/ (58) 192 192 134 3 57 = )] 3
Dividend paid to non-controlling BIEERERSIRE
interests 179 179 57 - - - - -
Cash flows for the year ended HE+-A=t—-HILEE
31 December HREHE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from  #EEESBERA/ (it
operating activities BE 1,872 (340) (1,141) 2,358 333 = 29 15
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from  REFHREHA/ (i)
investing activities BE 2,557 (378)  (10,673) (7,606) (624) = (44) )
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from ~ BEEERL (AL) /HA
financing activities BE (177) (1,682) 9,279 7,341 293 = 13 ®)
4,252 (2,400) (2,535) 2,093 2 = )] 2

N EEH AR REMERIRIEER

The information above was the amount before inter-
company eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY 20

METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position are as follows:

EREmEARNKE

RiE MBI REENETRT

2023 2022
—E=HF TECMF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBEET
Investments in associates REBEATNRE 1,020 736
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of RiFEIEmRTPEDNERENT -
profit or loss are as follows:
2023 2022
—EZ= —g-—
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT ARBBEET
Share of profits from associates FE{L B =S A BLE F 30 19
Investments in Associates REEATRE
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEET ARBAET
At 1 January ®w—B—H 736 279
Additions nE 409 439
Acquisitions of associates through FHi W EHTE A B

acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) R = AT (MFsE34) 302 =
Further acquisition as a subsidiary E—FTWERBHRB AR (10) =
Further acquisition as subsidiaries BRWEEEE—TINE

through acquisition of assets AiE AT (izF34)

(Note 34) (420) -
Dividend received B UELE B (28) (1)
Share of profits from associates FE{L B = A BlLEF 30 19
Exchange difference bE 2 EXR 1 =
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—H 1,020 736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY 20

METHOD (Continued)

Investments in Associates (Continued)

Set out below are the associates which, in the opinion of
the Board, are material to the Group as at 31 December

2023 and 2022.

wR e M B R B

EAEREARNKE (8)

REEQBNRE (B)
TXHEINBEZZE_=ZFRFT_—
+=R :+—EI?E3$§?S?%%K$)§
BANBERT

Place of
Name of entity establishment % of ownership interest  Principal activities
BRERE Bl 37 3th 26 EEREREZEOL TEXRH
2023 2022
—E=F T fF

Fengxian Huize Photovoltaic The PRC 50% 50% Operation and management of
Energy Limited* solar power plants
(“Fengxian Huize") (Note (i))

SREELRERERASE ey EREEAGREEEN
(TERREE)) (Fsk))

Shenzhen Chuangxin United Trading The PRC 38.64% 38.64% Finance lease arrangement for
Co., Ltd.* (Formerly known as the operation of solar power
Shenzhen Chuangxin Silk Road plants
Leasing Company Limited*)

(“Shenzhen Chuangxin”)

AYTEIFMEEZBRAS ] AGREEBELEENRENRE
(RIFBZRII B A48 2 B R E T 24k
BERAR) (DRIIAIH)

Xiyang Sineng New Energy Co., Ltd.*  The PRC 49% 49% Operation and management of
(“Xiyang Sineng”) (Note (ii)) a wind power plant

R ET SN ERERAE e SEREEREEIL
(TEREETaED) (Mysk(i)

CPI Baoshan Longjiang Hydro The PRC 32.85% — Operation and management of
Power Development Co., Ltd.* a hydro power plant
(“CPI Baoshan Longjiang”)

(Note (iii))

PELRUEIKEREERAR HE &R BRI E B
(TP BRMRIEET) (B=kii)

Yunnan Baoshan Supahe Hydro The PRC 24.76% — Operation and management of
Power Development Co., Ltd.* hydro power plants
(“Yunnan Baoshan Supahe”)

(Note (iii))
ERRIUEFIAKEHERRAS ey BB MBI BL

(MERfRWLEMA L) (FIEEi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY
METHOD (Continued)

Investments in Associates (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group is eligible to appoint two directors to represent the
Company in the board of directors of Fengxian Huize which
constituted by five directors. Considering the resolutions can
be passed by poll with simple majority, the Board is in the
opinion that the Group only exercises significant influence
over Fengxian Huize and recognises its equity interest in
Fengxian Huize as an investment in an associate.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an indirect
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to purchase 49% equity interest
of Xiyang Sineng, a company established in the PRC, for
a consideration of approximately RMB429 million. Xiyang
Sineng is engaged in the operation, maintenance and
management of a wind power plant with grid-connected
installed capacity of approximately 200MW in the PRC. Upon
the completion of the acquisition in December 2022, Xiyang
Sineng has been recognised as an associate of the Group
using the equity method of accounting in the view that the
Group has significant influence over Xiyang Sineng.

During the Year, CPl Baoshan Longjiang and Yunnan Baoshan
Supahe have been recognised as associates of the Group
using the equity method of accounting through the acquisition
of Baoshan Energy.

The English names of the associates represent the best
effort by Management to translate their Chinese names, as
the associates do not have official English names.

20 ERA#ETZEARNKRE (8)

REEQBNRE (B)
MfEE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ BT
20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY 20 fEAEzEZARNIRE (4)
METHOD (Continued)
Investments in Associates (Continued) REFEQATRRE (8)
Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXHINBEABERNTDBHE_ZT _=HF
the material associates for the years ended 31 December B _Ft+_B=1t—HLEFEHW
2023 and 2022. HEERE -
Shenzhen Chuangxin Fengxian Huize Xiyang Sineng
&5 LEmEE {7
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZE=f CTZTCE ZBIZf TFCTE IEIZE CTI3CCE
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million
AREEET ARBEEnR ARYEER AREEET ARKEER ARBEER
Assets and liabilities as at R+ZB=+—-BNEERK
31 December &ff
Current assets THEE 452 426 188 156 401 387
Non-current assets FRBEE - 294 261 292 1,193 1,296
Current liabilities nEEE (2) 2) (204) (224) (156) (133)
Non-current liabilities EEI=NE - (267) (12) (14) (700) (798)
Profit or loss for the year ended HETZBA=T—HLEEN
31 December B
Revenue LN 4 12 67 68 153 12
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive &R/ (58 k2®E
income/(loss) for the year Wi/ (518) 5 1 1) 23 33 14 4
Dividend received from associates BREATHENKE - - - - - -
Reconciliation to carrying amounts  ERE{E R
Opening net assets BIBERE 451 452 210 177 752 -
Capital injection B - - - - 2 748
Dividend RE - - - = (30) =
Share of (Ioss)/profit FEfE (1) /A () (1) 23 33 14 4
Closing net assets BREETE 450 451 233 210 738 752
Group’s % of ownership KEBNERELA 38.64% 38.64% 50% 50% 49% 49%
Group’s share (RMB million) rEEEG (\REEET) 174 174 116 105 361 368
Goodwill S - - - - 63 63
Group's share REBE( 174 174 116 105 424 431
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY

METHOD (Continued)
Investments in Associates (Continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the remaining associates which were individually immaterial
to the Group.

20 ERA#ETZEARNKRE (8)

REEQBNRE (B)
XS TR AEEBERIFERD
BMEABNYBERBE -

2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEETT ARBBAET
The Group’s share on: NEBRELL :
Profit and other comprehensive FERMREMEETE
income for the year 2 1
Carrying amount of investments S EREE 307 26

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB94 million (2022: approximately
RMB327 million) that were held by PRC entities of
the associates were subject to local exchange control
regulations. These local exchange control regulations
provided for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country other than through normal dividends.

All associates are private companies and there are no
quoted market prices available for their shares. There were
no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s investments
in associates as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

21 BARESAE

wR e M B R B

mANEREE

2023 2022

—E°= =S
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEETT ARBEET
Unlisted investments ELEHEE 33 34
Power purchase agreements BB 24 =
57 34

Unlisted investments represent equity investments in
unlisted companies engaging in renewable energy related
business. The Board intends to divest these investments in
the foreseeable future and accordingly, they were classified
as financial assets at FVTPL. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group’s unlisted investments included investments
in investee companies engaging in the provision of
Engineering, Procurement and Construction (“EPC”)
service and investment in solar power plant projects. The
aggregate fair value of one of the investee companies
as at 31 December 2023 were approximately RMB19
million (2022: approximately RMB20 million) which were
determined with reference to a business valuation report
issued by an external independent valuer. A fair value loss
of approximately RMB1 million was recorded for the Year
(2022: loss of approximately RMB1 million). As at 31
December 2023, the fair value of the 5% equity interest
was approximately RMB14 million (2022: approximately
RMB14 million), which was determined based on the recent
market transactions of similar businesses.

Power purchase agreements are accounted for as derivative
contracts at fair value through profit or loss based on the
net present value of the difference between the forward
market curve of the electricity price and the fixed price
stated in the power purchase agreements.

FETRERNRETBEERERE
BHIE LT AT ZRIERE - BEETHRN
A RBRRHZERE AL HERED
BABRNANADEFABRHNEHEE PN
T _—F+_"_HA=+—H AEENIEL
TRECENRRSBRETRE FERER
(TEPC ) RBEMWRE AT 2 HE KRR
AP BIER ZRE- NS =4
+ZBA=+—H ' HEHP—RHHEKREAT
HAABRBEANAAREIORET (CF
T THE IHARKE220EE T  ZARNE
Th2ESN BB EMEE 2 ¥ 54 E
REMBE - AEEREBAABBEOA
E1I58 T (CE-_F ! BRENAR
¢ME%mwh:7__¢+ B ==

' ZERRENARBH A ANRKE14T

%m CEITF  YARKB1488T)
DIREBAMELUEBNT SR ZEE

BEHAREEEZRHEHRRARBE
WZII R EEER ZBERNREF
BoERTESNRAAEFARTA
fRo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT

22 FEURBRIE

RiEREEMMEW

RECEIVABLES IRIE
2023 2022
—E°= -
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETT ARBBET
Trade receivables fEULERTE 292 325
Tariff adjustment receivables BB EWARIE 7,925 7,969
Trade and tariff adjustment receivables & AR TE K &5 & 4/ AL
FEUWLBRIE 8,217 8,294
Bills receivables U =45 2 27
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment FEURERIE ZE R BB
receivables FEUWLBRIE 8,219 8,321
Less: accumulated impairment B BEHRE (1) (25)
8,218 8,296

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables of
approximately RMB292 million (2022: approximately
RMB325 million) represented receivables from sales of
electricity and are usually settled within one to six months.
Tariff adjustment receivables mainly represented the central
government subsidies on renewable energy projects to be
received from the State Grid and Inner Mongolia Power
based on the respective electricity sale and purchase
agreements for each of the Group’s solar power plants and
prevailing nationwide government policies.

Accumulated impairment on trade receivables of
approximately RMB1 million was recorded by the Group
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately RMB25
million) on the tariff adjustment receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The problem of increasing amount of outstanding renewable
energy subsidies affects the future development of the
renewable energy industry in the PRC. In order to address
this issue, in March 2022, the National Development
and Reform Commission, the Ministry of Finance and
the National Energy Administration issued a joint notice
on a national self-examination of the renewable energy
projects, focusing on the compliance, scale of installed
capacity, volume of electricity generated, FITs, renewable
energy subsidies and environmental protection, so as to
ascertain the latest factual situation of the outstanding
amount of the renewable energy subsidies and to be able
to cancel the renewable energy subsidies for non-compliant
renewable energy projects. During the year ended 31
December 2022, a solar power plant of the Group located
in Inner Mongolia was alleged for certain non-compliance
issues and the local authorities demanded for a return
of subsidy of approximately RMB216 million. Despite the
Management considered that the allegation is invalid and
without reasonable grounds, the Management agreed to
return the required subsidy in order to maintain the Group's
operation in Inner Mongolia. Therefore, a provision of the
return of subsidy of approximately RMB181 million (2022:
approximately RMB35 million) and a write-off of tariff
adjustment receivable of approximately RMB110 million
have been provided during the Year. During the Year, there
was no significant update on the national self-examination
of the renewable energy projects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT 22 BEIWRIBE-ZEH R EEMLEW

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

During the Year, the Group received tariff adjustment
subsidies of approximately RMB1,352 million (2022:
approximately RMB4,771 million). The Group expected that
new development on the national policy on the outstanding
amount of the renewable energy subsidies will be
announced, and this development is expected to improve
the outstanding situation of subsidies to be received by the
Group.

The ageing analysis of trade and tariff adjustment
receivables by invoice date was as follows:

ARIA (%)

REAFE  AEBWNEEBBOAR
¥1,32BEB T (CE_—_F  HNARK
L7718 87T - A 5EEEHEHERRKS
NEBERAOBEERMIEXNSENE
RERRMEE THRAZERGNESA

EEEUWmALIER BN -

BUREREBHERKRERER

M2 Z RE DT

2023 2022

—E°= —E-
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET AEBEET
Unbilled (Note) REHEZE (D) 8,160 8,192
1 - 30 days 1ZE30H 21 70
31 - 60 days 31E60H 10 5
61 — 90 days 61ZF90H 1 4
91 — 180 days 91F180H 2 12
181 - 365 days 181%F365H 15 1
Over 365 days BiB365H 8 10
8,217 8,294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: The amount represents unbilled trade and tariff adjustment
receivables. The ageing analysis of the unbilled trade and
tariff receivables, which is based on revenue recognition

wR e M B R B

22 BIRIRIE - RIBEREEMRMEY

ARIE (1)

Mz ZERERHEREKRIREREER
Fl FE U AR IH o BN IR A FE 32 B HA R R
F 3 RN IR TE K BB AL R U AR TR

date, are as follows: ZARE DT -
2023 2022
—E=HE TECF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREEHET
1 - 30 days 1£30H 497 383
31 - 60 days 31ZF60H 236 253
61 — 90 days 61F90H 236 229
91 - 180 days 91%F180H 876 723
181 - 365 days 181%F365H 1,501 1,377
Over 365 days BiB365H 4,814 5,227
8,160 8,192

As at 31 December 2023, the maturity dates of bills
receivable were within one year (2022: Same). The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was
the carrying value of each of the receivable mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security.
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment receivables are mainly
denominated in RMB (2022: RMB).

Pursuant to Caijian [2012] No. 102 Notice on the Interim
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
Premium of Renewable Energy (B] B4 S5 R E B MNAHEEIE
S EIBEITHE) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance,
the National Development and Reform Commission
(“NDRC"), and the National Energy Administration in
March 2012, tariff adjustment receivables will be settled
upon successful registration in the Renewable Energy
Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (“Catalogue”). Caijian [2013]
N0.390 Notice issued in July 2013 further simplified the
procedures of settlement of the tariff adjustment.

ATE T =F+"H=1+—H EKkEE
HfHA—FER (CE_F ER)  K©
KEAH EERABNES AR AES L
MEEEWRE REE AERTEA
ERERNIEFE R EUWRERE - ZHRNE
BRELEEKRRETEUARE (CZ -
F AR stHE-o

REFHEI BREENNEZES (TH
REBREZ)) MEARERER-Z
——F= A EmINEE[2012]1025F
BRI BEEREER MBI EEE R
EITHOR) > EEMMEWNREREAN B
REREEMB B (THEk) PRINGE
MBEHE - FH (201313905 B AR —F
—=—Ft %M E—FHT BEME
NEERERF-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT 22 BEIWRIBE-ZEH R EEMLEW

274

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Pursuant to Guo Neng Xin Neng [2015] No. 73 Notice on
the Implementation Plan for Photovoltaic Power Generation
Construction (JtREBERE 5 2E) issued by the
National Energy Administration in March 2015, the approval
process for solar power plant projects was delegated to
the local government level from the Central Government.
Such projects require only regional filings with regional
power authorities authorised to administer the application
process. Once the application has been submitted and
approved, the local grid companies will install grid-
connections and such projects will be eligible for tariff
adjustment.

In January 2020, the Ministry of Finance, the NDRC, and
the National Energy Administration jointly issued Caijian
[2020] No. 4 Notice on Several Opinions of Promoting the
Healthy Development of the Power Generation of Non-Water
Renewable Energy (RIFMR#EIEK I BEREREBRELRE
& FTRER). Pursuant to Caijian [2020] No. 4 Notice, the
Central Government will no longer publish the Catalogue.
On the other hand, the procedures for settlement of tariff
adjustment is intended to be further simplified whereby it
is indicated in Caibanjian [2020] No.6 Office of Ministry
of Finance’s Procedures in relation to Commencement of
Approval Procedures of Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
Project List (BB ABERANEEIBAERE B/
BEBEEZARITENEL) that all qualified renewable
energy power plants (F2I8H) (the “Qualified Power
Plants”) which fulfil certain requirements are eligible to
be enlisted in the Tariff Subsidy Project List (the “List”)
(#ALIEE58) . The Qualified Power Plants include all
1st to 7th batch Catalogue power plants, which will be
automatically enlisted in the List.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 TRADE, BILLS AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group submitted application for all qualified power
plants of the Group and the Management are of the opinion
that 12 (2022: 16) solar power plants and 4 (2022: 7)
wind power plants with aggregate grid-connected installed
capacity of 1,766MW (2022: 1,896MW) shall be further
enlisted in the List. According to the published information,
there are 5 power plants newly enlisted in the List during
the Year. (2022: Nil). The Management is of the opinion
that the registration is an administrative procedure and the
tariff adjustment receivables will be settled in accordance
with prevailing government policies and prevalent payment
trends of Ministry of Finance. There is no due date for
settlement. The tariff adjustment receivables are fully
recoverable considering that the background of customers
are mainly state-owned enterprises and such tariff
adjustment is only subject to timing of allocation of funds
by the PRC government.

Given the track record of regular repayment of receivables
from sales of electricity, all trade receivables from sales
of electricity were expected to be recoverable. For tariff
adjustment receivables, they are settled in accordance
with prevailing government policies and prevalent payment
trends of the Ministry of Finance.

The Ministry of Finance does not set out a rigid timetable
for the settlement of tariff adjustment receivables. However,
given the collection of tariff adjustment receivables is well
supported by the government policy, all tariff adjustment
receivables were expected to be recoverable. As the
collection of tariff adjustment receivables is expected
in the normal operating cycle of the business, they are
classified as current assets. Consequently, no additional
loss allowance of trade receivables was recognised as at
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

As at 31 December 2023, all trade receivables were
expected to be recoverable. The carrying amounts of trade
and bills receivables approximate their fair values (2022:
Same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRS A R T
23 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23 HEWRHIE 2E RFEMRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2023 2022
= —E-
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETT ARBEET
Non-current JETRED
Value-added tax recoverable A Y [O]1E E R 2,214 L AEE
Prepayment TRETRRIE 75 =
Prepayment for property, plant and YZE BB KRB TR T
equipment 1,007 3,393
3,296 4,548
Current e
Deposits for investments KERE 1,091 2,894
Value-added tax recoverable A Y B8 EFR 430 273
Amounts due from associates (Note (b)) FEUEE= A TFIE (fi5E(b)) 127 121
Deposits paid to NEX Group (Note (a)) BEfINEXEREZE (fi5t(@a)) 1,042 1,034
Amounts due from NEX Group (Note (a)) FEUINEXE B =IE (fizE(a)) 144 150
Maintenance components HEIE R 14 5
Other receivables, deposits and HMEUWAHIE s RFE R
prepayments RIE 1,121 153
3,969 4,630
7,265 9,178
Less: Accumulated impairment (Note (a)) & : EstEE (MizE@))
Impairment on deposits paid to EINEXEEZEHE
NEX Group (Note (a)) (Mzx(a)) (1,042) (1,034)
Impairment on amounts due from & UTNEXEE B 7R IB R (B
NEX Group (Note (a)) (Hf5%(a)) (115) (115)
Impairment on other receivables H i fE W R IB R E (25) (22)
(1,182) (1,172)
Total 5t 6,083 8,007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Group entered into several conditional sale and purchase
agreements and framework agreement in relation to proposed
acquisitions of project companies which own renewable
energy projects. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
Deposits to NEX Group of HK$598 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB522 million) and the Deposits to SzZzY
of RMB500 million remained outstanding. As at the same
date, the Group also had amounts due from NEX Group
of approximately RMBZ1,488 million (before impairment
provision) and amounts due to NEX Group of approximately
RMB1,132 million.

Considering the findings of the investigation as set out
in Note 3.1(b)(ii), Management considered there was a
significant increase in credit risk in these counterparties
and Management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables was expected to be recovered. Consequently,
impairment charge of approximately RMB1,094 million was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019. The
amounts included the impairment charge of approximately
RMB1,022 million for the Deposits to NEX and SZZY and
approximately RMB72 million for the amounts due from NEX
Group. Information about the impairment charge on other
receivables and deposits and the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is set out in Note 3.1(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Deposits to NEX Group of
HK$598 million (equivalent to approximately RMB542 million)
(2022: HK$598 million (equivalent to approximately RMB534
million) and the Deposits to SZZY of RMB500 million (2022:
RMB500 million) remained outstanding. As at the same
date, the Group also had amounts due from NEX Group of
approximately RMB144 million (before impairment provision
of approximately RMB115 million) (2022: approximately
RMB150 million (before impairment provision of
approximately RMB115 million)). During the Year, NEX Group
transferred cash of RMB6 million to the Group for settlement
purpose. Management considered there is sufficient provision
for impairment on the balances due from NEX Group.
Accordingly, no expected credit loss was recognised for the
Year.

As at 31 December 2023, the amounts due from associates
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
(2022: Same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

24 CASH DEPOSITS

24 IWEEFENR

2023 2022
= —E£-—
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET AEBEET
Non-current JEENHA
Pledged deposits (Note (b)) BIERER (F5E(0)) 150 947
Current ENHA
Restricted cash ZRR&IIRE 13 10
Cash and bank balances B & KMIR1T45ER 6,174 5,237
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 6,187 5,247
Pledged deposits (Note (b)) BEERER (F5E(0)) 469 1,829
6,656 7,076
Total 4 et 6,806 8,023
Notes: B 5E
(@) As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank balances of (@ MNIBE_=F+"B=1+—H'&~£H
approximately RMB6,401 million (2022: approximately ZIRITTHBOANRKG,40158 T (T
RMB6,510 million) were deposited with banks or other T TE IHARKE5108 BT FIRNHE
financial institutions in the PRC. The remittance of these ZIRTTHEMEME R R EEEEN
funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations A B 78 48 ST AR B BT A8 1 2 S0 BE B AR
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC B R 54 0
government.
(b) Pledged deposits represented deposits pledged to banks (b) BIEFEFIEIRE FIRITHAE MRS

or other financial institutions to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 29(a)). Deposits of approximately
RMB150 million (2022: approximately RMB947 million) were
pledged to secure long-term borrowings granted to the Group
which are due after one year, and therefore classified as
non-current assets. The remaining deposits were pledged
to secure short-term borrowings and therefore classified as
current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ER B
25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25 EAM#E
(a) Share Capital (a) B&#
Number of shares (million) Share capital
BB (BER) R
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=f "Z-"F EZ= ECCF

RMB’million RMB’'million
AREBBET AREKBETR

Ordinary shares of EREEAKITZERER

HK$0.1 each
Authorised HE
At 1 January and R—B—BKk+-B=+—H

31 December 30,000 30,000 2,525 2,525
Issued and fully paid BEITRERE
At 1 January R—B—H 22,428 22,428 1,924 1,924
Cancellation of repurchased =E5EEEIRD (FfiEE25(b))

shares (Note 25(b)) (28) - (3) -
At 31 December ®+ZB=+—H 22,400 22,428 1,921 1,924
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, REE-ZE-_—_Fr_ZF-_=F+"H
no share of the Company was issued. =+—BLIEFE ARBEBEEITRG
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Treasury Shares for the Purpose of Cancellation

During the Year, the Company repurchased its own
ordinary shares for a total of approximately 66 million
(2022: approximately 28 million) ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange with a total consideration
of approximately HK$14.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB13.6 million) (2022: approximately
HK$6.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB6
million)). All the shares repurchased during the
Year were subsequently cancelled by the Company
in March 2024 (2022: January 2023). Details of
the repurchased shares during the years ended 31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

25 BAMEHE (&)

(b)

RN HENEER

MRAEE  AAB R FAERE
TENEEREENEER (T
T TEH28EER) ZER BN
BAXNBKI48FE T HHERYA
R¥13.688T) (CE-_F 48
e.2HEIT HERNARKEE
70)) e T AR A EERE LN RN HEE
AT HE= A RBEFE (T
BT THE I ZBI=F—H8) - R#E
E_E_CER_T__HE+"R
= t+—HLEEEERZRMEBN

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: TS <
Number of
shares Highest price  Lowest price
Month B3 repurchased per share per share Aggregate consideration
FEERY
Rir%E SkssE SRREE HHE
Approximately
(million) HK$ HK$ HKS$’million  RMB’million
(BER) BT AEr #BESERT ARKEER
Year ended 31 BE_ZE-_=—H+"RA=1+—
December 2023 HIEEE
September 2023 “E"=FHhA 16 0.218 0.200 3.3 31
October 2023 “E-=%F+A 50 0.242 0.209 11.5 10.5
66 14.8 13.6
Year ended BHE_ZE__F+-A=+-—
31 December 2022 HILEE
December 2022 “T-"F+_R 28 0.234 0.201 6.2 6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Treasury Shares for the Purpose of Cancellation
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, approximately 66 million
(2022: approximately 28 million) repurchased ordinary
shares were held as treasury shares. The movements
of the treasury shares during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are set out as follows:

wR e M B R B

25 BAMHE (&)
(b) FRESNEER (@)

R-IEBE_=F+"_HB=+—HB>&A
AFEANEER CE_F:4
28EER) BENZEREAER
B E_E_=FR_E_C
+B=t—HIEFENEERE
a0 F

Number of shares (million)

RIZHE (BER)

2023 2022

—EC=H -2
At 1 January ®W—B—H 28 =
Repurchase f& (o] 66 28
Cancellation E (28) =
At 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H 66 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Share Options

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted on 15
June 2022, 90,700,000 (2022: 434,300,000) share
options were granted subject to a vesting scale in
three tranches of 34%, 33% and 33% within a period
of 3 years and shall be vested the 2nd, 3rd and 4th
anniversaries of the grant dates respectively. The
exercisable periods begin with the 2nd anniversary of
the grant dates. The movements of the share options
during the Year are as follows:

25 BAMEHE (&)

(c) FERGHE

BER - - _F/,xB+HBER
Z BBRE#ESTE > 90,700,00017 (Z =
— T4 :434,300,00017) EERER
ERY ERAERESNR=ZFHR
¥434% ~ 33% K% 33% 2 LR = #L 57
B npREHBHNEZF=
B 55 VO {E 4B FF H 57 3 © Al 1T HA R Y
RHBBENE ZEEEBRG AEF
ERERESSIT

Exercisable period Number of share options
A &
At 1 January During the year At 31 December
Date of grant From To Exercise price 2023 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Reclassified 2023
RZBZZ% REEE KIBZ=f
RiHAH ] E ﬁﬁ% -A-B it fi% s i ENRE t-A=t-B
HK
Al
Directors
£
16.6.2022 16.6.2024 15.6.2025 0.240 8,160,000 - - - - 4,420,000 12,580,000
ZBCEARTAR CECMERATAE CRCREAATER
16.6.2022 16.6.2025 15.6.2026 0.240 7,920,000 - - - - 4,290,000 12,210,000
ZBCCERATAR CECRESRATAR CBRIAE/ATER
16.6.2022 16.6.2026 15.6.2021 0.240 7,920,000 - - - - 4,290,000 12,210,000
ZBCCEABTAR CEDAERATAE CRCtEAATER
24,000,000 - - - - 13,000,000 37,000,000
Chief Executive Officer
ERHIE
16.6.2022 16.6.2024 15.6.2025 0.240 9,537,000 - - - - - 9,537,000
“ECCEARTAR CECMEAATAR CBRCEESATEA
16.6.2022 16.6.2025 15.6.2026 0.240 9,256,500 - - - - - 9,256,500
Z222E5ATAE CECRERATRH ZBIOAERATEA
16.6.2022 16.6.2026 15.6.2021 0.240 9,256,500 - - - - - 9,256,500
ZECCEARTAR CESAEARTAR CBROLESATEA
28,050,000 - - - - - 28,050,000
Other officers, employees and
others
HMBRERAS
EEREf
16.6.2022 16.6.2024 15.6.2025 0240 127,734,600 - - (10,781,400) - (4,420,000) 112,533,200
“ECCEARTAR CECWEAATAR CBRCEESATEA
16.6.2022 16.6.2025 15.6.2026 0.240 123,977,700 - - (10,464,300) - (4,290,000) 109,223,400
ZRCCERATARE CEIRERATAE CEOAEAATEB
16.6.2022 16.6.2026 15.6.2021 0240 123977700 - - (10,464,300) - (4,290,000) 109,223,400
ZECCEARTAR CESAEARTAR CBROLESATRA
15.6.2023 15.6.2025 14.6.2026 0.200 - 30,838,000 - - - 30,838,000
ZBCSEAATRER CEZRERATREE CECAEAATEH
15.6.2023 15.6.2026 14.6.2021 0.200 - 29,931,000 - - - - 29,931,000
“ETCERATER ZECAERATRER CECEENATEA
15.6.2023 15.6.2027 14.6.2028 0.200 - 29,931,000 - - - - 29,931,000
ZBTSEAATRER CECEERATREE CECNEAATEH
375,690,000 90,700,000 - (31,710,000) (13,000,000 421,680,000
421,740,000 90,700,000 - (31,710,000) - - 486,730,000

Exercisable at the end of the year -

RERAFfE
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Share Options (Continued) (c) FBRGHE (48)

During the Year, there were 90,700,000 (2022: RAEE » B H90,700,00013 (=
434,300,000) share options granted. No share T T4 1 434,300,00017) BERS
option was exercised or cancelled (2022: Nil) and BoRANEE ITEEMAERER
31,710,000 (2022: 197,560,000) share options were ETHEHAEH(CEZ2F  HF) »
lapsed during the Year. MA31,710,00013 (ZZE =
197,560,00017) FERZIEE L o

25 BAMEHE (&)

RAEFE X BREERRHBERER

During the Year, the variables and assumptions used

in computing the fair value of the newly granted share RENEEREIZILIEEEENR
options are based on Management's best estimate. TifEaJr%%ﬁgﬂ%HﬂEﬁ%@.%@E

The value of an option varies with different variables BERXNAREEMB TR Tk
of several subjective assumptions. Any change 4 28 B T ) 2 B BT AE M R AR Y
in the variables so adopted may materially affect NABEMTEREAFE £ I8
the estimation of the fair value of an option. The BRERGHEMERESRHEBBEARE

significant assumptions used in the binomial model ZBEREFAOT
to derive the fair value at the dates of grant were as
follows:
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
£t B F=H E—1tt FTH Etis
Dates of grant REBH 15 June 2023 15 June 2023 15 June 2023 16 June 2022 16 June 2022 16 June 2022
—E-= —E-= ZEZ= _E--F CBI”E C"BI_E
ANB+ER  XA+ER  AKBtTER  ABTAE  ABtAH  ABtAH
Risk-free rate A A= 3.640% 3.534% 3.451% 2.971% 3.013% 3.035%
Expected volatility B RS 45.317% 45.317% 45.317% 50.256% 50.256% 50.256%
Expected dividend yield BEtREX 4,63% 4.63% 4.63% 0% 0% 0%
Life of share options (years) FEREEH (5) 3 4 5 3 4 5
Closing share price before IR BEARTZ HK$0.198 HK$0.198 HK$0.198 HK$0.242 HK$0.242 HK$0.242
date of grant BB Ak0.198c  Atk0.1987  BIS0.1987w  BiS0.2427t  EMR0.2427  EK0.2427T
Exercise price per share SRITEE HK$0.200 HK$0.200 HK$0.200 HK$0.240 HK$0.240 HK$0.240
#AM0.200t  A¥o.200t  E0.2000r  EHK0.2407  AHE0.2407  HE0.2407T
Weighted average fair value SR ERENIETS
per share option NRE
Directors and Chief Executive Officer EZREERNITE HK$0.0857  HK$0.0992  HK$0.1107

- - - A10.08577T #10.09927t #0.11077T
Other officers, employees and others EffiSHREEAE EER HK$0.0522  HKS$0.0571  HKS$0.0604  HK$0.0833  HK$0.0973 HK$0.1088

Hith #%0.0522;r A¥%0.05717r #1£0.06047T #£70.08337c #£150.09737 H0.10887T

The expected volatility is calculated based on the
historic volatility of share prices of the Company and
comparable companies based on publicly available
information. Expected dividend yield is based on
historic dividends.

During the Year, share-based payment expenses of
approximately RMB10 million (2022: approximately
RMB5 million) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in relation to share options.

Rt B REEALBDRMDERZ
FEsERIEST B > MA] LR AT B &R
’\F%T’E'ﬁ?ﬂﬁ%°§‘E§+H§E\>}37§%
RELRESR[/H-

RAEFEE > pBREELENURD S
ERZANRAZOAARBI0BE T
(CEZZF: AR5EET) BN
REEmARAHER
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Capital Contribution by Non-Controlling Interests

During the Year, the difference of approximately
RMB4 million (2022: approximately RMB18 million)
between the carrying amounts of share of the net
assets of subsidiaries of approximately RMB2,112
million (2022: a subsidiary of approximately RMB982
million) and the capital contribution of RMB2,116
million (2022: RMB21,000 million) received from a non-
controlling shareholder of the subsidiary was recorded
as other reserve.

Safety Production Reserve

Pursuant to Caizi [2022] No. 136, the “Administrative
Measures for the Collection and Utilisation of
Enterprise Work Safety Funds” jointly published by
the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry of Emergency
Management on 21 November 2022, the Group
provided for safety production expenses which were
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and included in other reserve during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

25 BARMEE (&)

(d)

(e)
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o82E &) LB AR B A B IE
PERGAR R AN B AR 2,116 8
B (CEZH AE®1,00088
7o) 2B EBENARKIGET (&
T F I HNARBISEET) EA
IRFIMEE iz o

ZREEME
AERIZBH B ESSERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 PERPETUAL MEDIUM-TERM NOTES

wR e M B R B

26 XEBEFHRE

2023 2022

—E-= -
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT ARBEET
At 1 January ®w—B—H - =
Issues of perpetual medium-term notes 1T k&P HAZ 4 3,500 =

Transaction costs for issue of BITKERIAERE

perpetual medium-term notes 2R B (6) =
At 31 December ®+=ZB=+—H 3,494 -

The Company issued 3 tranches of perpetual medium-term
notes with principal amounts in total of RMB3,500 million
during the Year (2022: Nil). The total net proceeds after
deducting the issue expenses amounted to approximately
RMB6 million (2022: Nil). The distribution rates for the
perpetual medium-term notes are 3.68% per annum, 3.77%
per annum and 3.65% per annum, respectively in the first
2 years from the dates of issue, and subsequently will
be reset in every 2 or 3 calendar years. The perpetual
medium-term notes have no maturity dates and the
instruments can only be redeemed at the option of the
Company. The payments of distributions can be deferred
into perpetuity at the discretion of the Company, except
for compulsory distribution payment events, including
declaration or payment of any discretionary dividends to
shareholders of the Company has occurred over the past
12 months before the payment date of each distribution.

RAFEE > KRB ET =M KBEFHE
B ALHEBEAARKI 50058 T (°F
TITE ) oIRREITHRE R FIIERUE
FREMG N ARKBEE T (T2

) o kBT ERNIKEXBEITHE
EEMED R AEEI68% FF3.77%
KEFE3.65% HESMA—EBEEEE
FE KETHERWEIPARH > BERE
T HEEHAAEEERERD c A A A
1B RTE R AR IR IE 73 R A5 =R 0 1 3% Ao )
DR REH (BENESMD KRG E L
FBE+T_EEARNEBARERESIK
RS EMEIEIRE) BRIN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRS A R T
27 CONVERTIBLE BONDS 27 AIRRRIES
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AEBEET
Non-current JERNER - 355
Current BPHEA 343 =
343 355
On 29 June 2021, the Company issued three-year A B —FRBEt+AB ARAFRE
convertible bonds to independent third parties as follows: UB=HET=FHOBMRESNT
On inception
R RAEE
Date of issue HTAH Net
proceeds
(equivalent Financial
Principal Interest to liahilities
amount rate  approximately) at FVTPL
BARE
FRSmIESE  ABEN
FEEE fE  WOEEH ERAaE
US$’million RMB’million RMB'million
BBET AR®HET AREEETR
29 June 2021 “E_—#xA-+AhH 50 3.8%p.a. 316 316
SE3.8%

The bondholders are entitled to convert the bonds into BEHFA AR R 85 EA 9 (E ) B &

shares credited as fully paid at any time during the BEEERAARIAEHEZRM

conversion period:

(@) at any time on and after the day falling 41 days after (a) BTHHBRRF4HEHEMFER
the date of issue to the close of business on the date ZBBEZIBHAFEI0HER (ER
falling 10 days prior to the maturity date (both days WHEEEAN) SEFBERE;
inclusive); or

(b) if the bonds have been called for redemption before (b)y BEHFERHHZaIHEREG - Y
the maturity date, then up to and including the close BERMNERIEEER HEBRI1I0HE R
of business on date no later than 10 days prior to the (BIEZBEN) EXRFBAERR

date fixed for redemption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
27 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 27 AR ES (B)
The movements of convertible bonds during the years MR EEREE _SE _=ZFEK_F
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: &+ A=+—HIEFEEZEHN
T
2023 2022
—E=HF B4
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETT ARBEBETT
At 1 January ®—B—H 355 346
Interest payments SAAHE (13) (13)
Subsequent re-measurement fair value HEEBEHtEZ ARE
losses (Note 10) 518 (f¥5E10) 1 22
At 31 December ®+ZHA=+—H 343 355
The fair value of convertible bonds was determined by using MR ESHNAREBEEFER B
the binomial model with the following key assumptions: BATMEE  FERRAOTF :
2023 2022
Discount rate IR 22.24% 25.37%
Fair value of each share of KRBEBRERMDZARE
the Company (HK$) (BH) 0.133 0.239
Reset conversion price per share (HK$) EESZRBMH 2 EBHRE
1)) 0.30 0.30
Coupon rate E@EAE 3.8% 3.8%
Redemption price ELE 106% 106%
Risk-free interest rate % @ faF) = 4.48% 4.24%
Time to maturity (year(s)) EHREFE] (5F) 0.5 1.5
Expected volatility TRHAR 18 30.54% 59.16%
Expected dividend yield TEHAR S U = 7% 0%
BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatRETRBIRER A IR 28 R 287
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R B AR M

28 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 28 FEIHENE

2023 2022

—E-= —EF-
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREEET
At 1 January ®w—B—H 21 =
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 34)  UXBEMI B AT (ffz£34) - 21
Reassessment B (18) =
Exchange difference bE 2 EXR 2 =
31 December ®W+=-—B=+—H 5 21

Representing: EIE=S=E

Non-current JEBNHR 3 19
Current BNHEA 2 2
5 21

The contingent consideration payables were derived from
the acquisition of a company established in Vietham (Note
34), which the additional payments will be subject to the
total net electricity generation of the company for the
relevant earn-out periods. The contingent consideration
payables were estimated based on the historical electricity
generation and will be paid upon the final approval of the
annual aggregate generation hours for the wind turbines
reaches an agreed milestone payment pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement.

The key assumptions used for the present value of
contingent consideration payables in relation to the
acquisition of a company established in Vietham are as

BARAEREREWE —BRERERIL
WAE (Mi5E34) > WARFZABRAE
BIE R AR RO 4R T S BB M E RAIMY
R BNXEREBHREETLEEEMD
st MRS RASHE RIS FE B EBRY
ERREEENZHWENERRTRE
e

PERWE—ERERE R AR AR
BOXAENBREMANIZRROT

follows:
2023 2022
—E=F B2
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEETT ARBBAET
Discount rate HrIg= 8.80% 11.9%

Effective working hours (hours/year)

BMEBRE UMK, F)

2,200 to 2,630
2,200%2,630

2,200 to 2,630
2,200%2,630
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ey A B R B
29 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29 RITRHfthfEK
2023 2022
—Z-=g% BT TE
Current Non-current Current Non-current
portion Portion Total portion portion Total
EERERS  FREERERS st EEREE S FERPEAZED W5t

RMB’million ~ RMB’million  RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AEBERT AREEER ARKEEBRT AREEEx AREEER AREEER

Bank borrowings (Note (b)) RATER (HEEDb)) 17,578 32,503 50,081 11,647 20,666 32,313
Loans from financial institutions (Note (¢) ~ RE&RI&EZ EX
(FizE(c)) 2,159 9,426 11,585 2,516 8,956 11,472
Other loans (Note (d)) HihEw (k) 1,022 85 1,107 70 100 170
20,759 42,014 62,773 14,233 29,722 43,955
Unamortised loan facilities fees REHETHEER (14) (53) (67) (28) (137) (165)
20,745 41,961 62,706 14,205 29,585 43,790
The Group’s bank and other borrowings were repayable as AEBREEEZRITREMERTUWT :
follows:
2023 2022
—E-ZHE TZTCE
Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings borrowings Total borrowings borrowings Total
RITER Hithfam st RATREM EffifEm st

RMB’million  RMB’million ~ RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREEER ARKEER AREEEx AREEER AREEET

Within 1 year —FR 17,578 3,181 20,759 11,647 2,586 14,233
1-2 years —ERE 10,978 967 11,945 9,563 1,157 10,720
25 years RERE 12,340 5,034 17,374 8,108 3,114 11,222
Over 5 years AER 9,185 3,510 12,695 2,995 4,785 7,780

50,081 12,692 62,773 32,313 11,642 43,955

Notes: FEE -

(@) As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings, loans from (@ MNZTEBE_=F+"B=+—H #RITE
financial institutions and other loans were secured by the T REERIEE BERREMERUT
following: 718 B K
(i)  pledged deposits (Note 24(b)); (i) BIEFRER 5E24(0));

(i) power generating modules and equipment, plant and (i) BHEREAREZEH BEKRESRUK

machinery and construction-in-progress (Note 16); ERTRE (fi5E16) ;
(iii) pledge of the fee collection rights in relation to the (i) BEAENHEWEREZIER ; &

sales of electricity; and
(ivy mortgage over the equity interest in certain (ivy &ETHBARZKREZI

subsidiaries.
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29 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans included loans from
the subsidiaries of a controlling shareholder of approximately
RMB7,470 million (2022: approximately RMB4,820 million).
The loans were unsecured and bore interest rates ranging
from 2.70% to 3.45% (2022: 2.75% to 4.50%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans included loans from a
controlling shareholder of approximately RMB10,865 million
(2022: approximately RMB8,585 million). The loans were
unsecured and bore interest rates ranging from 2.99% to
4.36% (2022: 3.20% to 4.50%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans included loans from
a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of approximately
RMB324 million (2022: Nil). The loans were unsecured and
bore interest rates ranging from 0% to 2.75% (2022: Nil) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2023, loans from financial institutions
included loans from subsidiaries of a controlling shareholder
of approximately RMB5,450 million (2022: approximately
RMB1,692 million). The loans were secured by property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB6,288 million (2022:
approximately RMB2,921 million) and bore interest rates
ranging from 2.79% to 4.17% (2022: 3.30% to 4.47%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2022, loans from financial institutions
included loans from an associate of approximately RMB235
million. These loans were secured by property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB460 million and bore
interest rates ranging 4.90% to 4.95% per annum.

As at 31 December 2023, other loans included a loan
from an associate of approximately RMB60 million (2022:
approximately RMB60 million). This loan was unsecured,
bore interest rate between 3.45% and 3.65% (2022: between
3.65% and 3.70%) per annum and repayable on demand.

The principal of bank borrowings and loans from financial

29 RITREMBER (B
B E (4

(b)

(e)

RTE_=F+"_B=+—H RTER
BIERE—2ERBRREZHNBARZE
R ANREET ATOEE T (T ©
HANRHA4,8205ETT) - ZSEXRER
IR ERN RN F2.70%E3.45% (—
T4 2.75%F4.50%)5 B o

R _E =&+ _A=+—H BT E
HEERBERBREZERNARKE
10,865EE T (CE__F . N AR
8,585H E L) ° % B A EIK I i
FERNENF2.99%E4.36% (C B - _4F :
3.20%%E4.50%)5t B ©

R-EB_=F+"HB=+—H 78
TMEERE—ZTERBZ—RBRBA
SIZERNARIEI24FE T (CE -
F | ZEERABEIRR I IRFRNE
NFO0%E2.75% (C T - —4&F : ) 5t B o

RIE_=F+"_BA=+—H KB
BB EREERE -2 ERREBE K
BRBEIZERNARES 450 T (&
T CFE N ARKLGR2EETT) cZE
ERLUME- -BERREBEHNAREG,288
BEx (CE_—_F:HAREK2,9215
Bom) (FIEH > WIRFFENF2.79%F
4.17% (ZEZ "4 : 3.30%E4.47%) 5t
Bo

R-EBE_—_F£+-"HB=+—H 'XB=%
RMEEZENEERE—HBE AR
BERHNARK23E R  ZEERUY
¥ BmERRENAREICOE & TIER
o IR FER RN F4.90%E4.95%51 B o

RCE_=F+"A=+—H0 > HthEx
BIERE—BBEQATDNERNARE
60EET (CTE_—_F: HYAREKe0H
B cZEXRAERF REMNENF
3.45%%F3.65% (CE_— —&F : NTF3.65%
EF3.70%) st EMBRERER

BF A XS BNRITERRRE R

institutions which bore floating interest rates were as follows: HEZERATWT !
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AREEET
Bank borrowings IRITHER 30,477 20,967
Loans from financial intuitions RETHEBZER 9,454 10,723
39,931 31,690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f) As at 31 December 2023, the effective interest rate per (f)
annum of bank and other borrowings was approximately
3.92% (2022: approximately 4.18%) and the weighted
average life of bank and other borrowings was approximately
5.40 (2022: approximately 4.58) years.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted off when the e}
taxes relate to the same tax authority and where offsetting
is legally enforceable. The following amounts, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown separately on the
consolidated statement of financial position:

wR e M B R B

29 RITREMER (&)
Fif & ()

R-_EBE_=F+"HB=+—H'#RTkK
HifER 2 BREMNENA3.92% (T
T 1494.18%) 0 SRT R E MBI Z N
BT FERNASA0FE (CEZ_F | 4
4.58%F) ©

30 RIEFRIE

MR R AER 2 K% & B I Bl KA 58

RIEITIRE AEERBEEKRARA T
DUREE - TN EBEREREE
WHEEMBRREEPOREY

2023 2022
—E=HF B &
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBETT ARBBET
Deferred tax assets EIERRIEE B 70 12
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIEE R (1,135) (482)
(1,065) (470)
The net movement in the deferred tax during the Year is as FIERRIBN AFEENFEBWNT -
follows:
2023 2022
g = -
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEETT ARBBEET
At 1 January ®—HB—H (470) (361)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 34) UEEMBAS (FI5E34) (652) (124)
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBESTTAERN
ETHMEE (7) =
Recognition of property, plant and SN EE ~ R R ek
equipment 4 -
Credit to consolidated statement RiraiEmRst A (F5E13)
of profit or loss (Note 13) 61 15
Exchange difference BE R ZERE (1) -
At 31 December ®+=ZB=+—H (1,065) (470)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

30 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(a) Deferred Tax Assets

L*ﬁIE (n\ﬁ)
(a) IBEMBEE

2023 2022
—E_= = —
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AEBEET
At 1 January ®—B—H 38 75
Acquisitions of subsidiaries B B B (i5E34)
(Note 34) 9 7
Recognition of property, plant and MR B E &5 E
equipment 109 -
Credit/(charge) to the consolidated Riz&Bm st A~ FOR)
statement of profit or loss 238 (44)
Deferred tax assets before set-off IXEHRTIRIEIR IEE FE 394 38
Set-off of tax RIHRIE (324) (26)
At 31 December r+-B=+—H 70 12

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unrecognised
deferred tax assets of approximately RMB649 million
(2022: approximately RMB318 million) in respect of
tax losses of approximately RMB2,628 million (2022:
approximately RMB1,305 million), that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. As at 31
December 2023, these tax losses of approximately
RMB2,601 million (2022: approximately RMB1,279
million) will expire at various dates up to and including
2028 (2022: 2027).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
30 DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 30 RIEMIE (4B)
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (b) RIEFMIEAE
Deferred taxation, representing fair value adjustment, FEMIB AR LDADERE KB E
is calculated in full on temporary differences under EREPAREZ B LB EEM
the liability method using taxation rates enacted or NEEEMMELZEaE LN YR
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting ERRRHUCTE RIS RIEE EE
period in the respective jurisdictions. The movements U -
in deferred income tax liabilities are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= -
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETRT ARBEET
At 1 January ®—RB—H (508) (436)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WHEM B A B (i5E34)
(Note 34) (661) (131)
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREEABEEN
THEE (7) =
Recognition of property, plant and B E BB KRR E
equipment (105) -
(Charge)/credit to the consolidated F4&R&EIE (G0K) /5t A
statement of profit or loss (177) 59
Exchange difference PEREZR (1) =
Deferred tax liabilities before set-off X #HRTIRIEIRIEE & (1,459) (508)
Set-off of tax EEHIRIE 324 26
At 31 December ®+=ZB=+—H (1,135) (482)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

30 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in the PRC for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax liabilities of
approximately RMB121 million (2022: approximately
RMB93 million) have not been recognised for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the
remittance of earnings of PRC subsidiaries. As at
31 December 2023, the related unremitted earnings
totalled approximately RMB2,412 million (2022:
approximately RMB1,860 million) and the Group did
not intend to remit these unremitted earnings from
the relevant subsidiaries to the Company in the
foreseeable future.
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(b) BEMIEE E (1)
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BEZ R AERBEFI MBS Al
ERREEIIRE-RIL Z"EEA
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31 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

31 HithENRIEREER

2023 2022
= —E=_—
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT ARBEET
Non-current JEENHA
Restoration provision (Note (a)) 1&EEE (HisE@a)) 165 =
Current ENHA
Construction costs payable ENFEE N 3,991 1,660
Consideration payables in relation to BRAWEEBZEMRE
acquisitions 504 1,042
Amounts due to sellers for advanced BB 5 EBRIE
payments 1,721 801
Deferred income 4 SE WA 2 1
Value-added tax payables FET BB 44 35
Amounts due to associates (Note (b))  FE{TEAE /AT RIE
(H35%(b)) - 8
Other payables and accruals HMENRIERESER 894 785
7,156 4,332
7,321 4,332
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

31 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 31 HfthfE(tHERESER (&)

Notes: B 5E
(@) Movements of restoration provision (a) 1BEEE &)
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHRT AEBEBHET
At 1 January wW—HA—H -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 34) UWEEHIEBA S (ff5E34) 145
Additions AE 16
Accretion of interests in consolidated R4iFEaEEHmERESTFIE
statement of profit or loss 2 -
Exchange difference PERERE 2 -
At 31 December ®W+=B=+—H 165 -
(b) As at 31 December 2022, the amounts due to the associates by MTE_—_F+"B=+—H EIl=
of approximately RMB8 million were unsecured, interest-free NEFBELHANRESE B TAEMRE &
and repayable on demand. B ARERMEE
206 BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group held the following financial instruments:

32 £ T AYEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

FEEFBUATERTA:

2023 2022
—EZ= —E_—
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEETT ARBBEET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARESAEBERHN
THMEE 57 34
Financial assets at amortised cost PR IE R AT IR 2
SRIEE
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment FEUERIE s ZEE R EE
receivables AL FE AR 18 8,218 8,296
Other financial assets at B IE R AT R
amortised cost HthEMEE 1,543 3,170
Cash deposits HEFN 6,806 8,023
16,624 19,523
Financial liabilities ETRBaE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREstABmD
SRIBE
Convertible bonds AR ES 343 855
Contingent consideration payables R AERE 5 21
Financial liabilities at amortised cost %84 Ak <% BR =~
B y=N
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMERR 62,706 43,790
Other payables H g 718 7,039 4,261
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,438 1,139
71,531 49,566

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with
the financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.1. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets mentioned above.

AEEEEMES AT TESRR T EAR
WEZERR - NEREHARERNRKREE
RO % LR ETHEEZREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 33 WEREEH
(a) Cash Generated from Operations (a) KEFRERHRE
2023 2022
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AERBEET
Profit before income tax PR PR 1582 Al F1 654 623
Adjustments for MU T RIEEH AR
Government grant BT+ 80 - (1)
Bargain purchase gain arising EBEaHEEZRE
from business combinations e W (79) (7)
Depreciation of property, plant M RE R R EITE
and equipment 1,795 1,244
Depreciation of right-of-use FRESEITE
assets 108 72
Fair value losses on financial R REFTAEBE
assets at FVTPL THEENANE
518 - 1
Fair value losses on financial BRREFAEGRN
liabilities at FVTPL TMEENARE
518 1 22
Finance income BE A (69) (38)
Finance costs B A 1,997 1,514
Impairment charge on property, ME--BER
plant and equipment RERESZ S 163 -
Impairment charge on financial STHEERESH
assets 1 25
Provision for compensation TAHEFT IR B B - 35
Safety production reserve L EMRE 2 1
Share-based payment expenses UMD AERS AR 10 5
Share of profits of investments FELEREmEARZ
accounted for using equity K EmA
method (30) (19)
Operating profit before working ~ EEEEE A1 2 EEHEF
capital changes 4,553 3,477
Changes in working capital EEETHEE
Trade, bills and tariff adjustment  FEURERTE « 245 K E(E
receivables 17 B e Y BR 1B 528 16
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWIRIE 2 K
prepayments TR FIE 499 363
Other payables and accruals HpERUIBE & ETE A (1,045) (787)
Cash generated from operations fEEFRBIRE 4,535 3,069
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr o B e B RE
33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 33 WEREEN (@)
(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing (b) RIEEZEFRELEEEHIR
Activities
Loans from
Bank financial Other  Convertible Lease
borrowings institutions loans bonds liabilities
REER
BITER  HEZEXR HtER THRES HE&RE
RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million  RMB’million
AREBEERT AREBET AREEER AREBET AREBBEER
At 1 January 2022 RZ2__#—H—-H 21,582 10,258 199 346 601
Cash flows R&nE
Principal and related rERIEBZHER

arrangement fees 9,752 (882) (364) - (55)

Interest paid BAF S - = = (13) (31)
Non-cash flows FRERE
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WeEEHT B A B (FfiE34)
(Note 34) 424 1,891 335 - 162
Addition of leases YN - - - - 432
Termination of leases RIS - - = = (1)
Fair value loss (Note 10) PaEEE (iEE0) - - - 22 =
Finance costs MEME 11 55 - = 31
Exchange difference EREHE 529 = = = =
At 31 December 2022 KZEZZF+-A=+—H 32,298 11,322 170 355 1,139
At 1 January 2023 KZEZ=%—HB—H 32,298 11,322 170 355 1,139
Cash flows RERE

Principal and related AEREEZHER

arrangement fees 15,035 (3,170) (558) - (151)
Interest paid BAFE - - - (13) (42)

Non-cash flows FRETE
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WeBEHT B A B (PH5E34)

(Note 34) 2,623 3,341 1,505 - 194
Addition of leases ENHEE - - - - 254
Termination of leases RIS - - - - (1)
Fair value loss (Note 10) NaERE (fE10) - - - 1 -
Finance costs RE B A 3 32 - - 44
Exchange difference ERERE 115 - (10) - 1

At 31 December 2023 WZE-=%+-B=+—H 50,074 11,525 1,107 343 1,438
BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatRETRBIRER A IR 28 R 299
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % — = 4E4E



300

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the Year, the major non-cash transactions
included the reduction of share premium on 19
December 2023 that the entire credit balance of
the share premium of the Company at approximately
RMB9,125 million was reduced and utilised to
eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company at
approximately RMB7,087 million with the remaining
balance transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no major non-cash transactions.

34 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

It is the Group’s strategy to identify suitable investment
opportunity to acquire renewable energy projects with good
prospects and potential for stable returns.

(a) Business Combinations

During the Year, the Company completed the
acquisitions of 31 (2022: 7) power plants in the
PRC from independent third parties through its
subsidiaries. The acquisitions have immediately
enabled to supplement the Group’s existing renewable
power plant portfolio and further expand its scale of
business in the renewable energy sector in order to
enhance return to the shareholders of the Company.

33 REREEH (@)

(c)

FTERERS

RAERE > IE#E%*%a%m:
T —F+ "B TABETHERE
&ﬁﬁﬁ ZIN/N T&@@EW%%L
BREBGO AR, 1258 B T/ #E1T
ﬁmvtﬁhﬁ@¢AEM£ﬁ%E
HWANRET,087TE B T FIERAGERRE
AR BB ARERER

BHE_ - £+ _FA=+—HL
FE MEFEERERF -

34 KEBREAR
FEBZRESYEEEZRERE LU
WEERI R RiF M A E I HRRBE Q]
Z P BERRIER -

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business Combinations (Continued)

The key assumptions used for the post-tax cash flow
projections for the purchase price allocation, which
are based on experience of the Group and external
sources of market information, are as follows:

2023

—_—m—_—

wR e M B R B

34 WEEKME LT (48)

(a)

EBAH (B

BEEDEZERERSAERAR
(REBEAEBRERKRINBHHER

FFRRE FIRBZE2RRUT

2022

=
e

Capacity (subject to impairment)
AE (CBst=2R1E)
Utilisation/insolation hours

1,391.50MW
1,391.50Jk K

AR/ BB 1,635%4,310JkFLEF JKIER
Degradation factor 0% to 0.45% per annum
RIEE& S5F0%%E0.45%

FITs RMBO0.24 to RMBO0.6/kWh
LHEEB AR#0.24TE

1,635 to 4,310MWh/MWp

AR¥o0.67T/ TERE

Discount rate 6.17% to 7.75%

rIRE 6.17%E7.75%
Construction costs per watt RMB4.60 to RMB9.78
S REZMAE AR14.60TE AR 19.787T

Operating expenses per watt

RMBO0.07 to RMBO0.63 with

annual growth rate of 1%

BREEMX
REERELY

Acquisitions of Assets

During the Year, the Company acquired the equity
interests of certain companies in the PRC and in
Australia from independent third parties through its
subsidiaries. These acquisitions are considered as
acquisitions of assets as the fair values of the gross
assets acquired are concentrated in a group of similar
identifiable assets. All these companies have also
been consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

AR#0.07tEAK#0.637T

(b)

472.12MW
472 12JKE,
1,065 to 2,800MWh/MWp
1,065ZF2,800JK LB, JKIE R
0% to 0.7% per annum
FEO%ZEO0.7%
RMBO0.49 to RMB0.90/kWh
AE#0.497tE A K #0.907T
/S TRBEE
8.11% to 11.4%
8.11%%E11.4%
RMB7.64 to RMB8.54
AR#7.6470FE AR 8.547T
RMBO0.33 to 0.42 with
annual growth rate of 1%
AR #0.337cE AR #0.427¢
REBEZEI%

BEEWE

REFE > ARBZEBEWE AT
BUS=HWETERENETA
BN RIE - BINPRINBBRREEZ A
AEERE—EREUTRNE
B ZEWEREAEERB -FTE
ZERBNEBHEEHATERZE
G BREIAR

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JuatRETRBIRER A IR 28 R

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =% — Z4E4E )

301



302

34 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table summarises the details of the

subsidiaries acquired.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

34 BB AT (48)
TR BB AR 2 15 o

Power plants acquired

R g3 Bk
Grid-
Equity connected
Month of interest Number of installed
Name of the company acquisition acquired Consideration  Type Location plants capacity
sk
AGEL WeiE A 13 FrUk R 1 RE 5 i g Bty E AE
RMB’million MW
AEBBET KB
Year ended 31 December 2023
HEZZZ=E+"A=+—HLEE
Accounted for as business combinations
ARBEBEH
Baoshan Energy Development Joint Stock Company Limited* Apr 2023 65.7% 885  Hydro Yunnan 26 952.50
RUERERRNEIRAR ZEZ=fMNA b\ £/
Asia New Energy (Jinhu) Wind Power Co., Ltd.* Sep 2023 51.0% 6  Wind Jiangsu 1 100.00
DR (&) RNEEFRAT ZEZ=FNB 5 L&
Beitun City Fengyu Wind Energy Development Co., Ltd.* Oct 2023 100.0% 199  Wind Xinjiang 1 49.50
TEmEEREREERAT ZZ°=F+H =W ik
Jingxin (Hami) Wind Power Co., Ltd.* Dec 2023 100.0% 6  Wind Xinjiang 1 50.00
(Formerly known as: Sany Hami New Energy Co., Ltd.*)
= (RE) ANEEERAR it E7 #iE
(Fi#8 © =—MAEIMAERARAR) +ZA
Tianjin Renhui New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* Dec 2023 100.0% 84  Solar Liaoning 1 100.00
RECENERNRERAR “EoCE K  E=E
+Z8
Daging City Shengbu Electric Power Co., Ltd.* Dec 2023 100.0% 101 Solar Liaoning 1 100.00
RETRSENERAE - K BE=
+ZA
Accounted for as acquisitions of assets
AEREERE
Asia New Energy (Baoying) Wind Power Co., Ltd.* Apr 2023 51.0% - Wind Jiangsu 1 100.00
DMFTAER (EE) RNZEEFRAF —Z”=fFMNA =W LBk
Moorabool Wind Farm (Holding) Pty Ltd and Jul 2023 51.0% 996  Wind Australia 2 312.00
Moorabool South Wind Farm (Holding) Pty Ltd
Moorabool Wind Farm (Holding) Pty Ltd “E=£tH 5 M
Moorabool South Wind Farm (Holding) Pty Ltd
Jiangda County Yingli Jinma New Energy Development Co., Ltd.* Dec 2023 100.0% 1  Solar Xizang 1 20.00
LERER B RAEERAT “ZoCE K EE
+Z8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

wR e M B R B

34 WEEKME LT (48)

Power plants acquired

Fr U B 3 B 0k
Grid-
Equity connected
Month of interest Number of installed
Name of the company acquisition acquired Consideration  Type Location plants capacity
itk ]
R Yok A 17 P R B e RE E5 i g Bty AE
RMB'million MW
ARBEET KR
Year ended 31 December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-B=t+—HLFE
Accounted for as business combinations
INEVEE
Ningxia Yanchi Kaineng Photovoltaic Power Generation May 2022 100.0% 57  Solar Ningxia 1 20.00
Co., Ltd.*
EEEMIENREERRAR “E”"FhnR KiEeE  2E
Shenzhen City Qianhai Yuhua Clean Energy Investment July 2022 100.0% 162  Wind Shanxi 1 50.00
Co., Ltd.*
F TR ERERZERRERRAR “E-"FtR =W T
Xizang (Jiangda County) New Energy Co., Ltd.* July 2022 100.0% 23 Solar Xizang 1 20.00
(Formerly known as: Changdu City China Power Construction
New Energy Development Co., Ltd.*)
PR (LER) MERERAR “E-"F+R Kk EE
(5178 : EHHHERMERBERRAR)
Xiyang County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd.* July 2022 100.0% 180  Wind Shanxi 1 30.00
EFRAIERERRAR “E-"F+R R T
Shuozhou City Pinglu District Honggou Wind Power Co., Ltd.* July 2022 100.0% 511  Wind Shanxi 1 100.00
PN ERBAERERRAR kSt | =W T
Youyu County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd.* July 2022 100.0% 328  Wind Shanxi 1 99.50
EEXBREEREERAT “E-F#+R 5 7
Fengtai County Shengyang New Energy Power Generation December 2022 100.0% 412 Solar Anhui 1 150.00
Co., Ltd.*
BERREHEREERRAR k- St KfGeE %
+ZA
Accounted for as acquisitions of assets
AERBERE
Huogiu County Huaqgin New Energy Co., Ltd.* April 2022 100.0% 85  Solar Anhui 1 107.86
EBBESIERERA “E-_F£MNA KiFeE 2
Mingshui County Hongda New Energy Co., Ltd.* September 2022 100.0% 2 Wind Heilongjiang 1 2.00
BAKBRITERERERAR “E_"FnR BE5 2Rl
Qingan County Xuyuan New Energy Co., Ltd.* September 2022 100.0% Wind Heilongjiang 1 18.00
BRRIERMERERAR ZZZZFhR B5H 2L
Anda City Yufeng New Energy Co., Ltd.* September 2022 100.0% Wind Heilongjiang 1 6.00
ZENHENERERAD “2-"FhAR 5] 2L
Hailun City Hongda New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* September 2022 100.0% 6  Wind Heilongjiang 1 11.00
BifRmIENERRKARAT ZEZZENR B5 R
Suihua City Xuyuan New Energy Co., Ltd.* September 2022 100.0% 4 Wind Heilongjiang 1 8.00
BIETBRHAERARAT ZZZ"FhR B5 AL
Cuu An Wind Power Joint Stock Company December 2022 100.0% 236 Wind Vietnam 1 46.20
St 5 2]
+ZA8
Yichuan County Kangging New Energy Co., Ltd.* December 2022 100.0% 24 Wind Henan 1 24.00
FI| B EREMERERAT St 5 AE
+ZA
Sanmenxia Xiahuyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd.* December 2022 100.0% 14 Wind Henan 1 40.00
=R RR N EEBRAT 2T F 5 ¥l
+ZA8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

34 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid,
the fair value of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities
assumed and the non-controlling interests as at the
respective acquisition date:

34 KM E B (48)

2023
“g-cE
Business Acquisitions
combinations of assets

E3 BEKE
RMB'million RMB'million
AEBEET  AREEER

TERBAEN B FrUtB A5 S E
FiAEaRRIFEREaRNSBWER
HRARE :

2022
5 f
Business Acquisitions
Total combinations of assets Total
At £Ha0 BEWE st
RMB’million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million

AE%¥EET AREBEERT ARKAEER AR%EER

Consideration K&
Cash Ré 396 577 973 1,673 354 2,027
Contingent consideration payables ERRERE (fiz528)

(Note 28) - - - - 21 21
Capital contribution b 885 - 885 - - -
Previously-held interest remeasured  FAIFTSERRANAESHHE

at fair value (Note 20) (Bf5¥20) - 420 420 = = =

1,281 997 2,278 1,673 375 2,048
Recognised amounts of fair value Pk HAEE ik aER
of identifiable assets acquired, FEREENAREERIRE
liabilities assumed and non-
controlling interests
Property, plant and equipment W& BERXME (HE16)
(Note 16) 10,979 5,059 16,038 3,119 2,019 5,138
Right-ofuse assets (Note 17) EREEE (H#17) 137 220 357 75 160 235
Investments in associates REEARDNEE
(Note 20) (Hz£20) 302 - 302 = = =
Value-added tax recoverables, net oJREEER 154 70 224 138 9% 232
Trade and tariff adjustment FERERER BERHLERRE
receivables (Note (ii) (B 5ii)) 399 51 450 775 45 820
Other receivables, deposits and HftERERIE e RAATE
prepayments 545 74 619 18 4 22
Amounts due from associates FEREBE AR TE 5 - 5 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN 124 118 242 105 17 122
Pledged deposits BiEAER 5 - 5 26 - 26
Other payables and accruals EtERUERESER (5,086) (829) (5,915) (914) (886) (1,800)
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMBER (5,124) (2,345) (7,469) (1,681) (969) (2,650)
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HEaE (H:E7) (57) (137) (194) (51) (111) (162)
Restoration provision (Note 31(a)) Rk (HE31(a) - (145) (145) - - -
Deferred tax assets (Note 30) EERBEE (15£30) 2 7 9 7 - 7
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) BERIBAE (HzE30) (472) (189) (661) (131) - (131)
Total identifiable net assets BE 213 1,913 1,954 3,867 1,486 373 1,859
Non-controlling interests (Note (iv)) FEEER R (1) (553) (957) (1,510) = = =
Other losses Hit 8 - - - - 2 2
Bargain purchase gains recognised R EBERTRER ZEE

in the consolidated statement of BEEW s

profit or loss (79) - (79) (7) - (7)
Goodwill recognised in the UNCRRL b I Gl Ak

consolidated statement of financial (HzE )

position (Note (v)) - - - 194 194

1,281 997 2,278 1,673 375 2,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

wR e M B R B

34 WEEKME LT (48)

2023 2022
S I
Business Acquisitions Business Acquisitions
combinations of assets Total combinations of assets Total
25806 BEKE i £HBak BEWE it
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AEBEET AREEERT ARKEER ARBEER AREBET AREEET
Net cash (outflow)/inflow arising KEEEZRE (RE) /HAFE
from the acquisitions
Offsetting with deposits for AREREES
investments - - - 25 87 112
Offsetting with capital contribution HHEE (885) - (885) = = =
Other payables (including HiEARE (BE2KEERN
consideration payables in KB
relation to acquisitions) 145 1 146 383 262 645
Cash and cash equivalents kRS RREEEY
acquired 124 118 242 105 17 122
Less: cash consideration - RERE (396) (577) (973) (1,673) (354) (2,027)
(1,012) (458) (1,470) (1,160) 12 (1,148)
Notes: FEE -
(i) Revenue and profit contribution () WAKRFMER

The table below illustrates the revenue and the profit

TR AFEWREETREREDHE

included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss since St AGZEERRZ WA RGF] o
acquisition dates contributed by the acquisitions during the
Year.
2023 2022
—ZE-= =2
Total Total
45t st
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBET AREBEET
Revenue WA 681 227
Profit contributed to the Group AAREESRRT] 205 115

(ii)

Had the consolidation taken place at 1 January 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss would show pro-
forma revenue from sales of electricity and tariff adjustment
of approximately RMB6,028 million (2022: approximately
RMB4,545 million) and profit of approximately RMB344
million (2022: approximately RMB563 million), respectively.

Acquired receivables

The gross contractual amount of these trade and tariff
adjustment receivables due in aggregate was approximately
RMB450 million (2022: approximately RMB820 million),
which approximate to their fair value. Management of the
Company considered the ECL is insignificant.

(ii)

WS ABRR_E_=¢—F—B8%#
fT’leEﬁﬁ%ﬂd‘ﬁEU?ﬁT TIHE K

EEMLEZERALNAREE,0285E T
(ZEZZF AR H4,5455 & 1)
BB ARKIM4\BET (TS -
F I HYARESE3HETT) ©

BUEE 2 FEUREIRTE
%55 B HA 7 FE UK BR 1B R B 1B 4 AL FE UK R
BB ESHNEREHNBAREIS0EE
T(CEZ_F Y ARES205ETT)
BHAAEEE SATEEERATEH
EEBBIETEK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

34 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) Provisional fair value of acquired identifiable assets under

(iv)

(v)

business combinations during the Year

The fair value of the acquired identifiable assets under
business combinations during the Year was provisional
pending receipt of the final valuations of those assets.
Deferred tax has been provided in relation to these fair value
adjustments. Management performed retrospective review
of the fair value of the acquired identifiable assets under
business combinations during the year ended 31 December
2022 and considered no retrospective adjustment was
required.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests were recognised at their
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquirees’
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill

During the year ended 31 December 2022, goodwill was
recognised in the acquisitions of the equity interests of
Shenzhen City Qianhai Yuhua Clean Energy Investment
Co., Ltd., Xiyang County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd.,
Youyu County Sineng Wind Power Co., Ltd., Shuozhou City
Pinglu District Honggou Wind Power Co., Ltd. and Fengtai
County Shengyang New Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd.
for amounts of RMB18 million, RMB83 million, RMB16
million, RMB71 million and RMB6 million, respectively.
The Management of the Company were in the opinion that
these acquisitions created synergy benefits with the Group’s
existing operations and enhanced the renewable power plant
portfolio of the Group.

35 CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB8,985 million (2022:
approximately RMB3,975 million).

36

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Names and Relationships with Related Parties

Related parties are those parties that can control,
jointly control or exert significant influence over
the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or joint
control.

34 KM E B (48)
ERRC:)

35

36
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(v)

ZHEARE
FEERBEBSHIABBETANEE
ZAREREEE AFEREZSTEEZ
REERD IEE - ZE AR EHES
RIEERE- EEBRBEE _T_—
TZR=1T—HLLEFE  HREXEZHSH
FRUEBRI BRI E E 2 A A EETT T EM
BE URaERETBHRE

El3dieg 3
SRR G 1 o 1 HL PR (G 4 WK BB 5 BT R P
BEENERD TR LA -

[k 5
REBEEZE-_—_F+"B=+—HIHF
B mlmalamE R 2 RRERRER
B EERIERERRABE  AERK
FEERBERAT HINTFEFEEALERS
BRABIKBAGRGHAEREEAR
NEIHNREWEEERDREEEEA
R¥I18SHE T - ARKSIEE T AR
16E8 T  ARETIEBE TR ARKEE
B AN EEERAZERESERE
AAREBNIREKEEE R EBIEKRRE
AAREEN A BEEREEILAS o

B KE

N _E_=F+_A=+—H > ~EE%
B -BERZEBEBNEARKENA
Ri#8,08FB T (CE__F  HARE
3,975 B TT) ©

EALRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36 FIEALTRS (@)

(a) Names and Relationships with Related Parties (a) FAEALTHRBREHRRG (@
(Continued)
The following companies are related parties of the T RTARBE_E_=FK_
Group that had balances and/or transactions with the T+ _HA=+—HIFEH
Group during the years ended 31 December 2023 and REBBREGRE IR FZAEER
2022. MRAZEA L
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
RAEANLTHETE EARE BRI
Beijing Energy Service Management Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
RERBEEGRAE —SIERKRRE KB AT
Beijing Jingneng Hotel Management Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
IR FREBEEEERRAT —RERKRRZWE AT
Beijing Jingneng Information Technology Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
ITRREEERMERAT —RIERKRRZWE AT
Beijing Jintai Property Management Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
TRERMEEEBRAF — RS T B AT
Beljlng Jintai Kaiyuan Automobile Sales and Service CO., Ltd. An associate of a Contro”ing shareholder
ITRE AT IBHERFTERAS —RIERKRRZBE AT
Beijing Jingneng Energy Technology Research Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
L RABRERRNARBREEAE — ISR E T B AT
Beijing Jingneng Carbon Asset Management Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
ERREHRBEEEERRAT — 2T T B A S
Beijing Energy Holding Co., Ltd. A controlling shareholder
IERERERFREELE — SRR
BEH Finance Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
REKEMBRRAF —ZIERBRE HBAT
Beijing Jingneng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
R RERERAERRAE — & P RE R T > (A E)
Shenzhen Chuangxin United Trading CO., Ltd. An associated company

(Formerly known as Shenzhen Chuangxin Silk
Road Leasing Company Limited)

EYITTRIF S B2 ERAT @RI HAIH 482 R A ]
HREHAERRAR)
Shenzhen Jingneng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. A subsidiary of a controlling shareholder
A REEMERERRAE —LERKRZHE AT
BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLniREIRBIREERE A R 2 R 307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Significant Related Party Transactions
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following is
a summary of the significant transactions carried
out between the Group and its related parties in the

36 FMEALXRS (8
(b) BEAMEALRS
B MBRR LM EHAIRES
S FEEAHMBEALRBEE"S
TEFERIBIF+TZR=1+—
BEFE—REBBRPETNE

ordinary course of business during the years ended 31 RRGEEEUT o
December 2023 and 2022.
2023 2022
= —E£-—
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBEET
Interest expenses made to a M — S ERREEHZFIE
controlling shareholder (Note (i)) X (BfdEGi)) 392 273
Interest expenses made to B—2IERKREZ B AR
subsidiaries of a controlling EHRBIF) B RS (M EEGi))
shareholder (Note (ii)) 267 160
Interest expenses made to an m—EBE AR EHZFIE
associate (Note (iii)) B2 (e %(iii)) 4 13
Loan facilities fees made to B—ZIERKREZHE AR
a subsidiary of a controlling EHNERRMEER
shareholder (Note (iv)) (B 5% (iv)) 2 3
Building management fees made  [A— & IERIRE Z B A E
to a subsidiary of a controlling EHNIZF EEE
shareholder - 2
Business trip expenses made to M — & PERRREE 2 [T E A
a subsidiary of a controlling EHM R E RS
shareholder 1 2
Employee benefit services m—2ERREZHBAE
acquired from subsidiaries of a EENEESRMARE
controlling shareholder 8 1
Motor vehicle expenses made M — & PEERRE Z K EAF
to subsidiaries of a controlling EHBRERS
shareholders 1 -
Rental expenses made to a F—2ERKEZNE A
subsidiary of a controlling EHBEEER
shareholder 9 10
Information technology consulting  A— &R Z B A E
service expenses made to EH B E MR A RS
a subsidiary of a controlling X
shareholder 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Significant Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Notes:

(c)

(d)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

During the Year, interest expenses on loans from BEH
were charged at interest rates ranging from 2.99% to
4.99% (2022: from 3.20% to 4.50%) per annum.

During the Year, interest expenses on loans from
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing and BEH Finance were
charged at an interest rate ranging from 2.70% to
4.47% (2022: from 1.85% to 5.99%) per annum.

During the Year, interest expenses were charged for
loans from an associate at interest rates ranging from
3.45% to 3.65% (2022: 3.65% to 4.95%) per annum.
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loans from an
associate were repayable on demand (Note 29(b)).

During the Year, loan facility fees for the loans from
Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing amounted to approximately
RMB2 million (2022: approximately RMB3 million).

Significant Related Party Balances

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, there are no other significant
related party balances as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Key Management Compensation

wR e M B R B

36 AEALRS (@)

(b) EXFEAL

X5 (%)

MIsE -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RAEE > BREEEBERNFE
F';ﬁEzEEﬂIﬂSLz 99% % 4.99%
(ZEZZF : N FE3.20% =
4.50%) Sz {3

RAEE > AERIIFERAERTE
EBMBERNAN EMAZREMNE
NF2.70%F4.47% (B - _&F .
T F1.85%%E5.99%) 3 11 o

RAFE m—RBEHEQABDER
ZHERZRFENENF3.45%F
3.65% (ZE-_F : N F3.65%=
4.95%) ZEffo R B =FK_F
—THE+_"_B=+—H'kE—®
MENR 2 ERBREREE (I
3£29(b)) ©
RAEE > BFIIREREERN
EXREERANARB2BEE T (&
T F I HNARKBIHEET ©

(c) EXRAEALEER
PRir e M BREREMEBOFTIKES

8-
A

|

WoE-=ER-B-F+-

=+—R UEAEMEREEAL

4EER o

N

(d) TEEIE A SN

2023 2022

—E-=F BT _F

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBBEETT AEBBEET

Short-term employee benefits RS RN 3.77 2.44
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREF ST EIMERR

contributions 0.09 -

Share-based payment expenses DR AERS RS 0.73 0.30

4.59 2.74
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

37 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF 37 MBERAKRBEEREIE

310

FINANCIAL POSITION

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the followings are other events after the date
of statement of financial position.

On 14 December 2023, a group of indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Australia with
limited liability (the “Buyers”) and the Company (as the
buyer guarantor) entered into the share sale and purchase
agreement with Lightsource Asset Holdings (Australia)
Limited, West Wyalong HoldCo 1 Limited, Woolooga HoldCo
1 Limited and Lightsource Australia FinCo Holdings Limited
(collectively, the “Sellers”) and Lightsource Holdings
1 Limited (as the seller guarantor), pursuant to which
the Sellers conditionally agreed to sell and the Buyers
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital in each of the project holding companies for a total
consideration of no more than AUD813 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB3,942 million) (the “Acquisition”).
This Acquisition constitutes a very substantial acquisition
of the Company and is therefore subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a SGM scheduled on 19 April
2024 under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
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SR EMBRREMBEPAIREE SN L
TRPHRIRBREZHEMEER

N_Z2_=F+"A+HE > ZAFN—
EARREMNE ML B R B /Y B
2EMBRR (BRI RARE ERE
FH#HEARA) ELightsource Asset Holdings
(Australia) Limited ~ West Wyalong HoldCo
1 Limited ~Woolooga HoldCo 1 Limited
KLightsource Australia FinCo Holdings
Limited (A% & 5 1) MU KLightsource
Holdings 1 Limited {EAEHIERA) 57
URHEERZ B BAERERR
LERBERFEKRHEAEREESEEER
REAIMNEEERTRE BAERBR
813 E Mt (HENMNARYE3,9428
B (NkESE)) -ZWEEEEHAA
REINIEBEARWBEEIE FILBRE L
TRWBAEFERTN S _MFMNA
THABERITHRRFIAS LESKE
HEfE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Er e A A T
38 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 ZRFMB KR RARREBEE
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Company (a) BREEFBRAR
2023 2022
—E-= ZEBICF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
= AREEETRT AREBBET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENE E
Interests in subsidiaries [NPGRS 4,391 4,391
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUSHIEB AT FIE 14,410 9,010
Right-of-use assets FREEE 10 18
Deferred tax assets RICRIEE E 1 =
Total non-current assets EREN B ELEEE 18,812 13,419
Current assets TEEE
Other receivables, deposits and ~ HfEWERIE SR
prepayments FE(IFUIE 206 173
Pledged deposits BIRIRER - 202
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 119 931
Total current assets TEEEELE 325 1,306
Total assets BEME 19,137 14,725
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EakafE
Equity attributable to FATRREGE S
shareholders of the Company
Share capital N 25(a) 1,921 1,924
Reserves & 38(b) 4,795 5,587
6,716 7,511
Perpetual medium-term notes K #E R H 4 26 3,494 =
Total equity MR 10,210 7,511
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

38 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 AATIMBERRR R AEHEES
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (48)
(Continued)

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)

(a) TABMBRRE (B)

2023 2022
—EC=HF —EBEICF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEHETRT AREEHET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E A 3,534 1,672
Convertible bonds ARG B 355
Lease liabilities HEEE 7
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE =
Total non-current liabilities JERE A ELRLE 3,536 2,034
Current liabilities P B=
Other payables and accruals HMEARIER
fEst &M 93 57
Lease liabilities HEaE 6 8
Convertible bonds AR ES 343 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE (St B A = T8 2 106
Bank and other borrowings R1T R E B 4,947 5,009
Total current liabilities b f=REE 5,391 5,180
Total liabilities BE4%E 8,927 7,214
Total equity and liabilities R RkEBEEE 19,137 14,725

The statement of financial position of the Company KANDHBERAREEFTEN _F
was approved by the Board on 28 March 2024 and “HE=ZBAZ=Z+/\BH#HIETHHER
was signed on its behalf REE

Mr. Zhang Ping Ms. Li Hongwei
RERE = AR Eogun
Chairman Director

*E EBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M

38 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 ZABMBRARKRHEES
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY €))
(Continued)
(b) Reserve Movements of the Company (b) EATHEEE
Reserves
o
Share-based
Treasury Share payment Shares held Translation Other Accumulated
Note shares premium reserve under EIS reserve reserve losses Total
i NRfASMz  RELEHE
Bk RiEE finfEeE ETRANRS BERE Atk RitHR @t

RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AEMEER  AR%EER ARMEER AR¥ESn ARMEER  ARMEER  ARMEER  AR¥EED

(Note (1))
(GE)

At 1 January 2022 KZ%ZZ§-B-A - 9,128 193 (73) (160) 3,060 (6,631) 5,617
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - (228) (228)
Other comprehensive loss Eth2EHE - - - - 299 - - 299
Total comprehensive loss 2EFELE - - - - 299 - (228) n
Transactions with equity holders AREREAZRR
Repurchase of ordinary shares BEEER 25(b) 6) - - - - - - 6)
Share-based payment expenses MRAARRZ MRS 25(c) - - 5 - - B - 5
Lapse of share options RREXH - - (59) - - = 59 =

(6) o (54) = o = 59 (1)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZE+2A=+-B 6) 9128 139 (13) 139 3,060 (6,800) 5,587
At 1 January 2023 WZ%Z=5-B-8 (6) 9,128 139 (13) 139 3,060 (6,800) 5,587
Comprehensive loss 2ERR
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - (567) (567)
Other comprehensive loss At 2EGR - - - - (25) - - (25)
Total comprehensive loss 2EGRLE - - - - (25) - (567) (592)
Transactions with equity holders HREREAZRR
Declaration of 2022 final dividends ER-EIZERERE 15 - - - - - (199) - (199)
Repurchase of ordinary shares RELER 25(b) (14) - - - - - - (14)
Cancellation of repurchased shares HHRERR 25(b) 6 3) - - - - - 3
Share-based payment expenses MRAARRS AH0ES 25(c) - - 10 - - - - 10
Reduction of share premium HERMEE ] - (9,125) - - - 2,038 7,087 -

8) (9,128) 10 - - 1,839 7,087 (200)
At 31 December 2023 RZ¥Z=F+ZA=+-A (14 - 149 (13) 114 4,899 (280) 4,795
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M B R R B

38 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Reserve Movements of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(if)

Pursuant to a group reorganisation during the year
ended 31 March 2000, a contributed surplus of
approximately RMB37 million was resulted from the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Company and the underlying
net assets of subsidiaries acquired by the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, a capital
contribution reserve of approximately RMB3,023 million
was recognised in relation to the acquisition of a
subsidiary upon group reorganisation.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company. However,
a company cannot declare or pay dividends, or make
a distribution out of contributed surplus, if: (a) the
Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the
realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the SGM on 18
December 2023, the reduction of share premium has
become effective on 19 December 2023 that the
entire credit balance in the share premium account of
the Company at approximately RMB9,125 million was
reduced and utilised to eliminate the accumulated
losses of the Company at approximately RMB7,087
million with the remaining balance transferred to the
contributed surplus account of the Company.

39 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been represented to
conform to current year's presentation.

38@%11?%&%&%%“@

(b)

TAEEEES (B
PE

(i)

(i)

BRERBE_EEZF=-_F=+—
HEFEEGTZEEREH BHE
HFNARBITEETHARTE
BTRAZEEKRZEREFTRE
ZHMBRABHEMBEEFEME B
ZEB-NBE_Z_—F+_H
=+—HLEFE AMREEREMR
Ry W B —FE Y B R B I E R EH A
ARW3,0235 5 m 2R

BEERE-—NAN—FRQEE (K
EE]) » BRRERAIED IR FERAE
B ER o ZAT > i HIR TGN > Bl A
SAAERSKTES  HEBEH
BERIEEH DK (a)B R B RIKT &
BEHREEIZCHIBPES ;
(b) ZK’ATQEZT“EET{E;HIJ&
ﬁ'ﬁTEEﬁ HEBTRARKMDRER
ZHA%E

BERE_=ZF+"A+/\BH
BREFNAE LEBRRAZEE H
BB EBENRZE-_=%+_4
+HBER > K AT WD HER
E!ﬂﬁ)\§m<9 125E B2 EBE

ARASBREMEHR W B HBRA R
TE’J%D+ES¢E%7/\EW7,087§%
7o RRERBALRATINBAR
BRER o

39 LE®REF
ETHRH LTI UALEELT)
HH—Bo

BEIJING ENERGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING CO., LTD. JLstREHRBIRER A R A ]
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 % . —4E4E]



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR

FEERBELBAYREENEE BEEK
BEHMEHIAOT

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

For the years ended 31 December

BE+ZA=1+-HLEE

Results 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

£ | —E-=f C"B__F CEB_-F C"BEEF C"E-NE

RMB’million  RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million  RMB'million

AE¥EERT AREEER AREBER AREEER AREEER

Sales of electricity ENHE 3,080 1,800 922 664 629

Tariff adjustment BB 2,488 2,315 1,903 1,485 1,539

Revenue KA 5,568 4,115 2,825 2,149 2,168

EBITDA EBITDA 4,559 3,500 2,397 1,967 1,920
Profit/(loss) for the year: ERiaf]/ (58) :

From continuing operations REFEREEY 472 472 650 262 (3,499)

From discontinued operation REDK MRS - - - = 4

472 472 650 262 (3,495)

As at 31 December
®t+ZB=+—H

Assets and Liabilities 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

BERAR —E-=f C"B__F CB_-F C"BIEE C"E-NE

RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million

AE¥EER AREEER AREBER AREEER AREEER

Total assets BELE 90,036 60,328 46,159 26,088 25,456

Total liabilities EEME (72,973) (50,145) (36,875) (20,433) (21,815)

17,063 10,183 9,284 5,655 3,641
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BRAASH AN
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INFORMATION ABOUT SHARES

Board Lot: 2,000 Shares
Issued Shares as at
31 December 2023:

Issued Shares as at
28 March 2024:

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 00686
Bloomberg: 686 HK
Reuters: 0686.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACTS

Telephone: +852 3112 8461
Fax: +852 3112 8410
Email: irpr@bjei.com

Address: Unit 1012, 10/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Wechat Public Account QR Code:

22,399,550,432 Shares
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DEFINITIONS
R

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the RAFRAN > BXERBFFIEIN > T A=

following terms shall have the meanings as set forth below:

“ABCP”
EEXFBERE

“ABS”
MEE 35

“AGM”
MRERBEKRE]

“Audit Committee”
EBiZEEE)

“Authorised Representative”
MR REMRER]

“Baoshan Energy”

MR BE TR

“BEH”

MRAEEE)

“BEH Group”

BEHEE

“BEH Finance"
IRBERT 75

"BEIED"
TREEE R

"Beijing Al Public Computing

Platform"

ERAIBERAKEENFE]

“Beijing Energy Investment”
MREERE]

“Beijing Jingneng Leasing”
NERRAEHEE]

“Board”
=ci=ch-

“Bye-Laws”
EI24RE

BLUTHEE

the asset-backed commercial papers

BEEXRHBEXER

the asset-backed securities

A ER

annual general meeting of the Company

TABRRBFEANG

the audit committee of the Company
KABBREER

the authorised representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the
Listing Rules
RiE EMiRAEE3.05& 2 A A B ERK

Baoshan Energy Development Joint Stock Company Limited*

RUBERERRNDABRATE

Beijing Energy Holding Co., Ltd.*, a controlling Shareholder holding
7,176,943,498 Shares, representing approximately 32.14% of the
issued share capital of the Company

EREREEERETAT ARFAT7,176,943,498K 13 (EEATE
BITRRAR432.14%) Z ERRRGER

BEH and/or its associates, excluding the Group

REEEKR /FHBBEA TEELAEH

BEH Finance Co., Ltd.*
REEEMBEARAR

BEI Energy Development (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*
RAERKERER (bR) BIRAT

the artificial intelligence computing platform located in Beijing, the PRC
IR PREIERPIATIEEENES

Beijing Energy Investment Holding (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
IREREEER (B8 BRAF

Beijing Jingneng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*
ERREREEEFRAF

the board of Directors
AATEEY

the Bye-Laws of the Company
/N v =]
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DEFINITIONS
R

“CG Code”
MhZEEAFEL

“Chairman”

FEE]

“Chief Executive Officer”

MERERITE

“China Huarong”

MR B 22

“China Merchants Securities”

M8 #5555
“CMG”
EELICESEN
“CMNEG”

EEEE S

“Company”, “BJEI”, “we” or “

M A8 TRAEE R 3 F )

“Director(s)”
==y

" EPCII
l'EPC J

“FITs”
I EAEEE]

“Grant Thornton”

EdEN

“Group”
i=SE T

“GW”
ER

“HKFRSs”
r&EEMBRE 2

the corporate governance code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules

EHRAINERCLFT# ~ BT R

Chairman of the Board

EXTIRE

Chief Executive Officer of the Company
RRABEFERITE

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.*

PEEREEEERNBRAS

China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd.
A sRAHBEAT

China Merchants Group Limited, together with its parties acting in
concert, a substantial shareholder of the Company

BAERERABRAR  ERE-—BITHALTATRRAETERR

China Merchants New Energy Group Limited, together with its parties
acting in concert, a substantial shareholder of the Company

AR REEBRAR BERE—BITHALTATRTAETERE

Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd.
IERERERZERERAF

the director(s) of the Company
KABESE

engineering, procurement and construction

IR -HRERER

feed-in tariffs
HHEEBE

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
A (FR) EstESEHEAAERAR

the Company and its subsidiaries

EN/NSTYS3= L) UNS

gigawatt(s)
=5

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
BEEMHBREER]
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“Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance”

=y = NSk SN

“Inner Mongolia Power”

P

“KWh”
I R B

“Listing Rules”
FEmARAL
“Model Code”
MEAEST A

“MW
MIEE
“MWp”
MIKIE R

“MWh”
Ik RLBF)

“NEX”
NEX J

“NEX Group”
INEXEE &

“Nomination Committee”

MeZEg)

“PRC”
A [

“PRC Corporate Income Tax”

MR 1 2 PSR

“Qccl”
'S S

DEFINITIONS
=

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BBEDF6228 R FMEG (EFRERT IR UAM S B

Inner Mongolia Power (Group) Co., Ltd.*

AREHES EE) SREEAH

kilowatt-hour(s)

TRBF

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

PR S L ARRI (ERRHMEST ~ MRSl At 75 E 0

the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
T TARAIMERCIFTE 2 E B ITAEZESETE SR 7 2R ETH|

megawatt(s)

KR

mega-watt-peak

JKiER

megawatt-hour(s)

AIN:S3

New Energy Exchange Limited
R ZFAARAE

NEX and its subsidiaries
NEXK H i @A 5

the nomination committee of the Company

rABIRBEEG

the People’s Republic of China
FhEE A A

the corporate income tax of the PRC

PEEERS

Qingdao City Construction Investment (Group) Co., Ltd.*
BERMERXKRE (EE) AREEAR
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DEFINITIONS
R

“REITS” real estate investment trusts

FREITs | 5 THEKEELES

“Remuneration Committee” the remuneration committee of the Company

EEZEE g 5 KARFMNEES

“Risk Control Committee” the risk control Committee of the Company

RfEEHEZEE ) 5 AT RERBEGZE

“RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TARE 5 AR REEEGE

“SFO” Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

5855 R BB 1R A 5 EREFESTIER S RPE R (KRB Rl UE s 1B
20

“SGM” special general meeting of the Company

EY b= 5 KATRRRFFRAE

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company

M5 5 KRB AFEFREESBE0.1THEER

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of issued share(s) of the Company

N E 5 AR BRITROHNFTEA

“Shenzhen Jingneng Leasing” Shenzhen Jingneng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*

DRIImBEEE] 5 ANREMEEERRRE

“State Grid” State Grid Corporation of China

MEl =X B 48 5 BxXEAEBRAE

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

TE AP {5 ERABMERAZMBRAE

“Sustainability Committee” the sustainability committee of the Company

AREEREES) 5 KARAFEEREES

“UP Changzhou” United Photovoltaics (Changzhou) Investment Group Co., Ltd.*

Bt S SR E I 5 BaX R (BN REEBFRAT

"Xuansteel" Xuanhua Steel Group Co., Ltd.*

=i il 5 SHBER RN AR

“Year” for the year ended 31 December 2023

IREE] 5 HE_Z_-—F+"RB=+—HIHFE

*  For identification purpose only *x (B
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—_ Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd.
REgsRE Selnernerey B o

Unit 1012, 10/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
BB TEEEH168-2005%
FEPOFEE10181012F

www.bjei.com
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